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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm Chairman Jim

          3  Gennaro, Chair of the Committee on Environmental

          4  Protection. I'd like to welcome you to this hearing.

          5  Today the Committee will hear testimony on proposed

          6  Intro. 191-A. Non-road vehicles, such as refuse

          7  haulers, bull-dozers, dump trucks and cranes are

          8  being heavily utilized in the rebuilding of Lower

          9  Manhattan, also in the renovation of City buildings,

         10  streets and other public works projects in all five

         11  boroughs. Unfortunately, diesel fuel exhaustion

         12  non-road vehicles pose a serious health concern for

         13  those who live and work in New York City.

         14                 The concerns stem primarily from the

         15  fact that according to the USEPA, who is here with

         16  us today, diesel is not only a likely carcinogen but

         17  pollutants that have been associated with diesel

         18  admissions, such as particulate matter, and nitrogen

         19  oxide, result in respiratory problems, such as

         20  aggravated asthma and decreased lung function.

         21                 In light of this fact, if City

         22  residents are to attain and maintain a healthy

         23  lifestyle, the City must do whatever we can to

         24  control and lessen air pollution.

         25                 I recognize that non-road vehicles
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          2  play a major role in City construction projects,

          3  which are a big part of the City's economy. In fact,

          4  according to the New York Building Congress, public

          5  sector construction accounts for much of New York

          6  City's spending in that area.

          7                 Public construction, made up of new

          8  construction and repair and maintenance of various

          9  systems, education facilities and transportation

         10  networks, a total of 9.1 billion in 2002, up from

         11  8.9 billion in 2001.

         12                 I also understand that more

         13  construction projects generally reflect a healthier

         14  local economy. However, we must make sure that these

         15  activities do not adversely impact the air quality

         16  and the quality of life for our City by creating air

         17  pollution.

         18                 Simply put, it is vitally important

         19  that we always seek ways to protect and improve the

         20  quality of our air, since our health and lives

         21  depend on it.

         22                 To that end, I believe that we find

         23  common ground, whereby construction activities can

         24  occur, while simultaneously promoting a healthier,

         25  cleaner environment for the City's residents,
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          2  workers and visitors, proposed Intro. 191-A, seeks

          3  to this issue by requiring this City to use ultra

          4  low sulfur diesel fuel and we'll hear more about

          5  that as we go on, and the best available

          6  non-technology and non-road vehicles within City

          7  public works construction projects in order to

          8  combat emissions in the City's non-road vehicles.

          9                 Before I call my first witness, which

         10  is going to be the EPA, we're also going to hear a

         11  statement from the prime sponsor of this bill,

         12  Council Member Gerson, but I'm also going to

         13  introduce the other members that are here with us

         14  but I want to talk just very, very briefly about the

         15  subject of the World Trade Center and the air

         16  emissions and all that. There's been a lot in the

         17  press about that. This hearing is not on that topic.

         18                 This Committee had sent out a very

         19  detailed letter to the EPA regarding our concerns on

         20  that, as a follow-up of so many hearings we've had

         21  on that issue. We sent this letter out before the

         22  most recent press accounts of that issue that have

         23  been circulating for the last month or so.

         24                 The EPA has responded to this

         25  Committee. They gave us a long letter, and, you
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          2  know, reams of documents which we're going through

          3  now. I thank the EPA for their response to that

          4  letter, and I just want to put out here on the

          5  record, although a lot of people have concerns about

          6  world trade center air and all the issues that still

          7  sort of stem from that, this is not the topic of

          8  that hearing, and I wish to thank the EPA publicly

          9  for their response to this Committee's letter on

         10  that, and we'll have further correspondence with

         11  them on that, and follow-up hearings I am sure on

         12  that issue with Alan and others.

         13                 And, so, we're joined by Council

         14  Member Serrano from the Bronx, Council Member

         15  Koppell from the Bronx also, members of this

         16  Committee. But before we introduce the good people

         17  from the EPA, Council Member Gerson, the main

         18  sponsor of this bill and someone who has shown a lot

         19  of leadership in a lot of areas on the Council,

         20  particularly matters that relate to World Trade

         21  Center area redevelopment, as a statement, and it's

         22  my pleasure to introduce my friend and colleague,

         23  Council Member Gerson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         25  much, Mr. Chair, and fellow colleagues, and thank
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          2  you for allowing me to be here as a guest of the

          3  Committee, as I am not a member of the Committee.

          4                 But the first order of business in my

          5  statement, Mr. Chair, is on behalf of my community

          6  and, of course, myself, to thank you for holding

          7  this hearing, for holding this hearing on such an

          8  expedited basis, and beyond that, to thank you for

          9  your tireless environmental advocacy Citywide, but

         10  you've been a strong ally to us in Lower Manhattan,

         11  and from the very beginning I'll never forget how

         12  you came up to me and said that whatever

         13  environmental needs your community has, let me know,

         14  and you've lived up to your word, and I'd be remiss

         15  if I did not begin my statement by thanking you on

         16  our behalf. And this hearing is just another example

         17  of your enlightened and progressive work, and I

         18  would note that Chair Gennaro has signed on to be a

         19  prime sponsor of this legislation, and again that's

         20  another example of your leadership and your

         21  commitment. So, please, thank you very, very, very

         22  much. I look forward to working with you.

         23                 I also want to thank my colleagues,

         24  especially my colleagues present, Council Members

         25  Koppell and Serrano are also each prime sponsors of
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          2  this bill and have been strong allies of the

          3  environmental movement in general, but the

          4  environmental movement in Lower Manhattan, and I

          5  thank you for your friendship and for your support,

          6  both of you.

          7                 Mr. Chair, and colleagues and guests,

          8  we all know that Lower Manhattan is fast becoming

          9  the world's largest construction site, and that is a

         10  good thing, because we need to redevelop and we need

         11  to redevelop quickly and strongly and we not only

         12  need to replace and rebuild, but we need to rebuild

         13  in a way that it's expansive and makes Lower

         14  Manhattan stronger and more vibrant than ever

         15  before.

         16                 But as you pointed out in your

         17  statement, Mr. Chair, we need to do so wisely, and

         18  we need to do so in a way which protects the health

         19  and well-being of the residents of Lower Manhattan,

         20  but also those who will visit and work there,

         21  including those who will work on the construction

         22  itself and those who will be working in the

         23  vicinity.

         24                 As a result of this hearing, we will

         25  all be able to breathe easier, because we'll be able
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          2  to breathe better once we get this legislation

          3  adopted and enacted, in order to protect the health

          4  and safety and the breath of each person who lives

          5  or visits or steps foot in Lower Manhattan, we need

          6  to assure that the equipment we use and the vehicles

          7  we use as part of the rebuilding process do not

          8  exacerbate the difficult environmental condition we

          9  all have lived through recently do not add diesel

         10  particulate, especially to the atmosphere which we

         11  breathe.

         12                 I'll conclude by pointing to the

         13  Committee, as you will hear in testimony from

         14  residents as this hearing progresses, we are still

         15  wheezing and coughing and breathing with difficulty

         16  as a result of the environmental disaster that we

         17  have lived through in Lower Manhattan.

         18                 This is especially the case with too

         19  many of our children, with too many of our seniors,

         20  and too many individuals who, to begin with, suffer

         21  from pulmonary challenges and disabilities.

         22                 For their sake, and for the sake of

         23  all of us, and I might add we in the City Council

         24  are among those who work in Lower Manhattan, we

         25  cannot -- we cannot add poison to our air, when the
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          2  history of Lower Manhattan, the Lower Manhattan

          3  reconstruction effort is written, let us not look

          4  back and say they unwisely contributed pollutants to

          5  the air when they could have avoided it, but rather,

          6  let the history books record that we were

          7  environmentally conscious enough to make sure we

          8  used the best possible, the least polluting fuel

          9  that in fact is available.

         10                 That's what this bill is all about,

         11  and I look forward to hearing from the witnesses,

         12  witnesses from all levels of government, witnesses

         13  from industry and labor, witnesses from the

         14  community and the scientific community, to hear your

         15  input as to any technical input that we can make

         16  this bill better and stronger. I'm specifically

         17  interested in ways of expanding the protections so

         18  we can cover some of the equipment and vehicles that

         19  perhaps are not fully covered so we could look into

         20  the possibility of covering with low sulfur fuel

         21  requirements private construction that don't meet

         22  the contractual predicate that currently is worked

         23  into the bill.

         24                 So, I'm looking to get technical

         25  input and specifically ways to make this the most
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          2  expansive and responsible bill possible.

          3                 And really, finally, Mr. Chair, we're

          4  one city and pollution doesn't stay in one place and

          5  just hang out there, and what's good for Lower

          6  Manhattan is good for the City as a whole for all

          7  five boroughs and for the Metropolitan area.

          8                 So, I would note that any protections

          9  we impose in Lower Manhattan will serve the entire

         10  City, because air does flow around, but beyond that,

         11  this bill is specifically designed with phase-in

         12  provisions so that provisions and these restrictions

         13  and requirements will soon, and as soon as possible,

         14  apply to the all, to the entire City, to all of five

         15  boroughs. So what we begin 14th Street South, we

         16  assume and as rapidly as possible apply to all

         17  neighborhoods in each of our five boroughs, because

         18  we need to protect the lungs of each and every New

         19  Yorker.

         20                 So, I thank you very much, Mr. Chair,

         21  and I look forward to a good hearing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you, Council Member Gerson.

         24                 And without further ado, we'll call

         25  to the witness table, Raymond Werner, Chief of the
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          2  Air Programs Branch, USEPA Region II. Mr. Werner,

          3  it's a pleasure to have you and the good folks from

          4  EPA. Your reputation proceeds you, and I'm grateful

          5  to the EPA for being here today and for providing

          6  your valuable insights on this bill under

          7  consideration.

          8                 And Donna DeCostanzo, Counsel to the

          9  Committee, someone not unknown to the EPA, will have

         10  the pleasure of giving you the oath. We swear in

         11  witnesses, after which, you know, state your name

         12  for the record and proceed with your good testimony.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just before

         14  the first witness, I know it's customary to

         15  acknowledge staff towards the end of the hearing,

         16  but because this is going to be a rather lengthy

         17  hearing and the staff has done so much work, I would

         18  be remiss, I know if on behalf of the community I

         19  represent I did not thank, Mr. Chair, your counsel,

         20  the Counsel to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, for

         21  all of her great input, along with the other staff

         22  members of the noted, and those Robin Forest and

         23  Michael Catus previously from our office, and

         24  Solomon Turkell will be joining us. I've worked

         25  directly with these individuals and I just want to
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          2  thank them, and, Donna, thank you, for your great

          3  labor.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, you can't

          5  mention Donna without mentioning Richard Colon, Josh

          6  Wojcik and Maria Alvarado also, who made

          7  contributions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I knew you

          9  were going to do that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, thank you

         11  very much, I greatly appreciate you being here

         12  today.

         13                 Donna, take it away.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         15  right hand.

         16                 In the testimony that you're about to

         17  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         18  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. WERNER: Yes.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 MR. WERNER: Yes, my name is Raymond

         22  Werner, and I'm Chief --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could,

         24  Mr. Werner, if you could speak right into the

         25  microphone, just like I'm doing now, just like that.
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          2  Right into the microphone.

          3                 MR. WERNER: Yes. I'm Ray Werner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You can twist it

          5  around so it's right in front of you. Otherwise it

          6  won't -- we're tape recording the proceedings, too,

          7  and it's important that it go on the record, okay?

          8                 MR. WERNER: Okay. Thank you.

          9                 Yes, I'm Ray Werner, I'm Chief of the

         10  Air Programs Branch of the US Environmental

         11  Protection Agency's office here in New York at 250

         12  Broadway. And thank you, Chairman Gennaro, and the

         13  members of the Committee, for inviting me here

         14  today. I appreciate the opportunity to share with

         15  you what we know about the benefits of ultra low

         16  sulfur fuel and diesel retrofit devices. And I'd

         17  also like to provide you with some guidance on any

         18  federal requirements that may conflict with this

         19  proposal. I think that's important.

         20                 First of all, let me congratulate you

         21  and applaud the City on your effort to control

         22  diesel emissions. As the proposed bill so eloquently

         23  states, emissions from diesel engines are a risk to

         24  human health, for the variety of reasons of the

         25  respiratory implications, exacerbating asthma, which
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          2  we know is a major problem in New York City, and the

          3  long-term exposure to diesel exhaust is thought to

          4  increase the risk of lung cancer, and these effects

          5  are from the more than 40 hazardous compounds that

          6  EPA has identified in diesel exhaust, one of which

          7  is fine particulate matter. And these particulate

          8  matter is the ones or the kind that can penetrate

          9  deeply into your lungs and cause so many of the

         10  problems we talked about.

         11                 Non-road engines, the kind of engines

         12  that we're talking about regulating today, are

         13  particularly dirty. Nationally they're a large

         14  fraction of the mobile source emissions, but in

         15  major cities like New York, they can emit half of

         16  the fine particulate matter from the mobile sector.

         17                 What that means, just think about

         18  that, think about the number --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: One-half. You

         20  said one-half?

         21                 MR. WERNER: One-half. Yes, they can

         22  contribute to approximately half of the particulate

         23  emissions from the mobile sector, meaning all

         24  trucks, buses, cars, et cetera. And when you think

         25  about that, think about the number of cars, trucks
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          2  and buses, compared to the construction equipment,

          3  that's pretty amazing.

          4                 In addition, they can actually emit a

          5  quarter of the nitrogen oxides, which are the

          6  smog-forming compounds, and we know smog in New York

          7  City. So, anything that we can do to reduce these

          8  emissions is huge.

          9                 Now, EPA over the years has regulated

         10  diesel emissions, and in fact, there's a very

         11  ambitious regulation that's adopted that will go

         12  into effect, while they're controlled already, this

         13  new regulation will require a 95 percent decrease in

         14  pollution from the current on-road diesel. Now,

         15  these are trucks, buses, delivery vans, those kinds

         16  of things.

         17                 And one of the cornerstones of this

         18  proposal is the fact that they will reduce the

         19  amount of sulfur allowed in fuel by 97 percent over

         20  what's allowed today, and that is comparable to the

         21  numbers you're proposing in your bill.

         22                 Now, to address the non-road portion,

         23  and that's what we're talking about today, EPA

         24  recently proposed a new rule that would ultimately

         25  reduce pollution by 90 percent. It will start to be
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          2  phased in in 2007. The first step of that is, is to

          3  require in non-road engines the fuel that is used by

          4  on-road vehicles today, and that's important,

          5  because a non-road engine today typically burns fuel

          6  with a sulfur content of about 3,400 parts per

          7  million, compared to about 300, which is the fuel

          8  that is used today by on-road engines, and of course

          9  we'll be restricted to 15 parts per million by this

         10  proposed legislation and EPA's adopted regulation.

         11                 So, that's how dirty the fuel is

         12  that's being used by non-road engines.

         13                 We held a public hearing on this

         14  proposal. In fact, in Manhattan in June, and I thank

         15  you, because a number of the people in this room

         16  testified in support of that regulation. But

         17  notwithstanding, this proposed rule can nationally

         18  control non-road engines from construction

         19  equipment. We know that diesel engines are very,

         20  very durable, and what's in operation today and will

         21  be manufactured over the next several years, and has

         22  the potential to pollute so much, is going to remain

         23  in operation of any new standards and new cleaner

         24  equipment.

         25                 So, that's the bad news. The good
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          2  news is that we can do things now to reduce these

          3  emissions, and that is what we see in this bill and

          4  that's what we applaud you on.

          5                 We've also found that you can do

          6  these controls, the retrofit, the ultra-low sulfur

          7  fuel, without hurting engine performance, all right?

          8                 Just the use of the ultra-sulfur fuel

          9  alone has an impact, but if you combine that with

         10  control equipment, you can reduce emissions by 90

         11  plus percent, okay?

         12                 And we need the ultra-low sulfur fuel

         13  because without it the sulfur can clog the emission

         14  controls, or the more sophisticated, the most

         15  effective ones. There are emission controls that

         16  don't require ultra-low sulfur fuel, but are not

         17  nearly as effective as the ones in combination, that

         18  are used in combination with ultra-low sulfur fuel.

         19                 And EPA has championed this ultra-low

         20  sulfur fuel in the metropolitan area, we know it's

         21  commercially available today and in large

         22  quantities, and you may already know this, but the

         23  New York City Transit Authority is the largest

         24  consumer of ultra-low diesel fuel in the country,

         25  uses approximately 50 million gallons per year. So,
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          2  we know it's available. Cost-wise, ultra-low sulfur

          3  fuel does have a moderate price penalty associated

          4  with it, although part of that is off-set by the

          5  fact that there's lower maintenance.

          6                 I'm hesitant to quote a figure

          7  because it varies quite a bit, depending on your

          8  delivery options, and I know there are

          9  representatives here from the fuel industry that can

         10  speak to this with more authority. But let me say,

         11  one of the things that EPA knows, when we started

         12  regulating lead and gasoline, as the refinery

         13  capacity builds to meet the demand, and, remember,

         14  in 2006, June 2006, the only fuel you'll be able to

         15  buy diesel fuel, you'll be able to buy in the

         16  fueling station is ultra-low sulfur. As that

         17  refinery capacity increases we know that the

         18  increment, the difference between the more polluting

         19  fuel and the lower polluting fuel will diminish.

         20                 We've encouraged the application of

         21  retrofits and non-road diesel engines through

         22  partnership, and based on our experiences at 7 World

         23  Trade Center, we know that retrofit devices can cost

         24  between $6,000 and $7,500 a piece for the most

         25  sophisticated retrofit devices.
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          2                 For the less efficient devices,

          3  they're approximately $2,000 a piece, and I just

          4  want to talk a little bit about EPA's efforts to

          5  green Lower Manhattan or the reconstruction of Lower

          6  Manhattan.

          7                 Earlier this year, Regional

          8  Administrator Jane Kenny signed an MOU with

          9  Silverstein properties, who was the owner of 7 World

         10  Trade Center, and it outlines the commitment to

         11  support non-road diesel emission reductions, in

         12  conjunction with the rebuilding of 7 World Trade

         13  Center.

         14                 I believe there is going to be a

         15  gentlemen here from NESCAUM who also speaks today to

         16  talk a little bit more about this project, but the

         17  important thing is, I think that project

         18  demonstrated the feasibility of using ultra-low

         19  sulfur diesel fuel and retrofit on a project on the

         20  site of the World Trade Center. So, we know it's

         21  feasible.

         22                 In addition to that, one of the major

         23  impacts on Lower Manhattan is the increased commuter

         24  ferry traffic in the harbor following 9/11.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Increased what?
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          2  I didn't hear that.

          3                 MR. WERNER: Pollution from the

          4  ferries. The ferry traffic has doubled since 9/11,

          5  partly in response to the collapse of the Trade

          6  Center and the disabling of the Path facilities, but

          7  also many more people are finding it convenient

          8  apparently to use the ferries and the service is

          9  improved.

         10                 Last week at a press conference here

         11  in Lower Manhattan, the Federal Transit

         12  Administration agreed to provide $5 million of

         13  rebuild money to implement a project to clean-up

         14  private ferries, and we're also working with New

         15  York City's Department of Transportation and the

         16  Port Authority to reduce emissions from the Staten

         17  Island ferries.

         18                 This project, on the Staten Island

         19  ferries for retrofitting and the use of cleaner

         20  fuels is expected to reduce particulate matter

         21  emissions, 25 tons a year, and NOx or smog-forming

         22  compounds by almost 500 tons a year, and this is all

         23  on or around Lower Manhattan. And EPA has actually

         24  cleaned up its own act. We own and operate an

         25  ocean-going research vessel that often is used in
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          2  the harbor and we converted the Anderson to use

          3  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel also.

          4                 I think I need to talk a little bit

          5  about EPA's enabling legislation, the Clean Air Act,

          6  and what that does or doesn't do in terms of the

          7  City's authorities to regulate non-road engines.

          8                 Generally speaking, the architects of

          9  the Clean Air Act, the legislation, preempted state

         10  and local agencies, authorities, to regulate fuels

         11  and control equipment on on-road engines, and the

         12  idea was if every locality had its own regulation

         13  for cars that were sold nationally it would become

         14  impractical to manufacture a vehicle.

         15                 Similarly, the case law has shown

         16  that for non-road engines, for non-road engines

         17  there's also a preemption possibility in the Clean

         18  Air Act.

         19                 With regard to New York City's

         20  proposal, the proposal we're talking today, there is

         21  no federal Clean Air Act preemption for New York

         22  City's proposal to regulate the fuels in non-road

         23  engines.

         24                 There's no preemption, and in fact,

         25  there are no federal regulations at this time that
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          2  require control sulfur in non-road engine fuel.

          3                 With respect to the retrofit, there

          4  is a preemption, however, there are certain

          5  exemptions which allow state and local authorities

          6  to regulate non-road emission requirements, that is

          7  the retrofit requirement.

          8                 What this exemption revolves around

          9  is that State and local authorities are allowed to

         10  regulate non-road engine emissions when it's under

         11  their sovereign power they use it to purchase, lease

         12  or use contracting powers to require the use of

         13  non-road engines meeting certain emission

         14  requirements.

         15                 In other words, New York City,

         16  through their requirements to use ultra-low sulfur

         17  diesel fuel and retrofits, can choose to limit the

         18  emissions for engines it owns, purchases or leases

         19  and this extends the contracts into which the City

         20  will enter, okay?

         21                 So, engines that are under your

         22  control, non-road engines that are under your

         23  control, you can regulate and require retrofit

         24  devices, okay?

         25                 Now, this exemption has never been
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          2  tested in court formally, but we believe you can

          3  make a reasonable argument based upon this

          4  proposition and, of course, EPA would support it.

          5                 I am also going to submit to you a

          6  copy of my written testimony, but just in closing

          7  I'd like to reiterate a couple of points.

          8                 Number one, diesel engine exhaust is

          9  a major threat to human health. Non-road diesel

         10  engines contribute half for the motor source

         11  particulate emissions in this area, and one-quarter

         12  of the smog-forming compound.

         13                 These non-road engines will likely be

         14  in use for many years to come, and the use of

         15  ultra-low diesel fuel and retrofit can reduce their

         16  emissions now.

         17                 The use of ultra-low diesel fuel and

         18  retrofit devices has no negative effect on these

         19  engine's performance. New York City has not

         20  preempted from regulating non-road diesel fuel, and

         21  New York can choose to purchase, contract or

         22  self-regulate in terms of non-road diesel engine

         23  emissions, as long as it is acting under its

         24  sovereign authority to carry out these activities.

         25                 I look forward to working with you on
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          2  this proposal, and I'd be pleased to answer any

          3  questions you may have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you, Mr. Werner.

          6                 Just to kind of set the regulatory

          7  landscape a little bit, you made reference to it,

          8  currently the off-road vehicles used, sulfur

          9  containing fuse of like 3,400 parts per million,

         10  on-road vehicles currently use 300 parts per

         11  million?

         12                 MR. WERNER: Approximately 300.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: On its way down

         14  to 15 parts per million as of 2006.

         15                 MR. WERNER: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And you

         17  mentioned something about EPA's efforts to take

         18  action against off-road vehicles as well.

         19                 MR. WERNER: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What was that

         21  again?

         22                 MR. WERNER: It turns out, we have

         23  proposed a regulation, would it take effect and

         24  start regulating emissions in 2007, but it would

         25  only go after, it would only go after newly
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          2  manufactured off-road engines, cranes, compressors,

          3  okay? It does not address, it does not address the

          4  ones that are on the road today, okay?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 And what will be the sulfur content

          7  of those fuels?

          8                 MR. WERNER: Yes, starting in 2007,

          9  they would be required to burn essentially what is

         10  sold in filling stations today, in terms of diesel

         11  fuel, about 300 parts per million, and in 2010, they

         12  would have to burn the ultra-low sulfur fuel as it

         13  is proposed in today's bill.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         15                 MR. WERNER: It will ultimately get

         16  there, but it will be 2010.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But certainly

         18  the vehicles that are in use now, and maybe

         19  manufactured between now and that date will be in

         20  the service for quite awhile.

         21                 MR. WERNER: That's absolutely true,

         22  including -- they literally can last decades, they

         23  are very expensive pieces of equipment. A bull-dozer

         24  can cost $230,000.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just a couple of
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          2  questions before I turn it over to my colleagues.

          3                 If you can comment on the types of

          4  federal funding that may be available for the

          5  purchase of ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel, and the

          6  emissions reductions technology, as may be required

          7  by this bill? Are you familiar with the funding that

          8  may be available for this?

          9                 MR. WERNER: Yes, the funding --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I'll ask you

         11  once again to speak as directly into the microphone

         12  as you're comfortable with doing.

         13                 MR. WERNER: Okay.

         14                 The funding right now is mainly aimed

         15  at school buses. There is federal funding available

         16  for retrofits and for ultra-low sulfur fuel for

         17  eligible school districts for the use in school

         18  buses, because obviously that's a priority because

         19  the fumes from the diesel buses get trapped in the

         20  school buses, and naturally the children have the

         21  most sensitive lungs, et cetera.

         22                 There are no, at this point there are

         23  no, that I'm aware of, but I certainly can look into

         24  this further, there are no federal funds available

         25  for subsidizing a non-road engine.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's always

          3  worth asking, right? You know, you never know.

          4                 MR. WERNER: Yes.

          5                 I will say that EPA, right after 9/11

          6  wrote to FEMA and said we recommend that you

          7  reimburse everyone for the incremental cost of

          8  ultra-low sulfur fuel and FEMA did that, okay? That

          9  was an eligible expense, the extra fuel expenses, so

         10  their clean-up equipment could use the ultra-low

         11  sulfur fuel.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And we did

         13  that, right?

         14                 MR. WERNER: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Does the

         16  EPA currently certify these emissions reduction

         17  technologies like these devices that you would put

         18  on, do these go under some sort of EPA

         19  certification?

         20                 MR. WERNER: Yes. Well, there's two

         21  types of certification. One is in terms of the

         22  newly-manufactured engines. The manufacturers have

         23  to supply that equipment those engines to EPA and

         24  EPA does test them to certify that they meet the law

         25  before of after they're sold.
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          2                 However, with respect to some of the

          3  retrofits, EPA has been involved through its own

          4  work and its contractors in terms of testing the

          5  efficacy of their various equipment, so when I speak

          6  90 to 95 percent, it's based on test results, based

          7  on EPA tests and other tests in the industry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course,

          9  everyone knows that the New York City region is

         10  currently classified as a severe non-attainment area

         11  for ozone and I just wanted your thoughts in whether

         12  or not an effort such as that, which would be

         13  included in this legislation, you know, would help

         14  New York City reach the federal national standard

         15  for ozone in a significant manner.

         16                 MR. WERNER: Absolutely, it certainly

         17  will help in that regard, and there's something

         18  else, actually another reason to do this, is that in

         19  approximately a year's time EPA and the State will

         20  complete their, what they call a designation process

         21  for fine particle matter.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Would that be

         23  the PM 2.5?

         24                 MR. WERNER: That would be the PM 2.5.

         25  Now that hasn't happened yet.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's going to

          3  happen though, right?

          4                 MR. WERNER: It's going to happen. It

          5  will happen by April. Yes, April of 2005 the area

          6  will be designated, the Governor will make the first

          7  recommendation and EPA will finalize it by April

          8  2005.

          9                 Every expectation is based on the

         10  large amount of monitoring in New York Metropolitan

         11  area, that this area will be designated

         12  non-attainment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. WERNER: The levels are above the

         15  15 part per million annual standard at many

         16  locations in many of the boroughs, and so clearly

         17  there is a fine particle problem.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Whereas now with

         19  PM 10 we're not that bad, right?

         20                 MR. WERNER: It's not that bad with PM

         21  10, but what we found in 1997 was, and when we

         22  proposed our new PM 2.5 standard, the PM 10 standard

         23  is not fully protected of public health.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. WERNER: So, while it's important,
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          2  it's certainly not sufficient.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

          4  I'd like to recognize the presence of another valued

          5  member of the Committee, Council Member Vallone,

          6  from Queens, also a great champion on the

          7  environment, particularly in areas that relate to

          8  air pollution and power plants and has long been

          9  active on many environmental areas and has given of

         10  his time as counsel to environmental groups. So,

         11  always happy to have people who are champions in the

         12  environment, you know, serve on the Committee, and

         13  certainly he is one.

         14                 And without further ado, I'd like to

         15  turn it over to Council Member Gerson, who has some

         16  questions for you as well.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Werner.

         18                 MR. WERNER: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And just

         20  before the questioning, Mr. Chair, since so many

         21  members and leaders in my community are present, I

         22  want to acknowledge Council Member Vallone and then

         23  thank him for his friendship and support to Lower

         24  Manhattan during a time of crisis.

         25                 As Chair of the Public Safety

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Committee, as well as a member of the Council, he

          3  has provided invaluable support.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Let me just

          5  thank the both of you, especially the Chair, for

          6  having this hearing and apologize for my lateness. I

          7  neglected to notice I was in a W and not an N and

          8  took a tour of Brooklyn. Nice place, but that's

          9  where I've been.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And thank you

         11  very much, Mr. Werner, for your testimony.

         12                 Just also I should note the reason I

         13  had to step out briefly was I was called for a vote

         14  in the parks committee next door, and it's one of

         15  these Council things where it's impossible to avoid

         16  these conflicts, but I did have the opportunity to

         17  read your submission and I want to thank you, most

         18  sincerely, for a helpful presentation.

         19                 I hope I know the answer to this

         20  question, but for the record, do you support the

         21  adoption of this legislation, or would you advise

         22  the Council to adopt this?

         23                 MR. WERNER: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you. And

         25  of course, you as you and EPA?
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          2                 MR. WERNER: Yes, I'm speaking for

          3  EPA.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

          5  Thank you very much.

          6                 Could we just go over what we were

          7  talking about when we referred to non-road vehicles

          8  and non-road engines? I know that that's a technical

          9  term but we have a lot of laypersons and certainly

         10  it would also help me if we kind of describe the

         11  universe of what non-road vehicles entail?

         12                 MR. WERNER: Absolutely. And I

         13  apologize, sometimes we lose sight of plain English

         14  here, but non-road, the EPA's view of diesel

         15  engines, it falls into two categories. One is, the

         16  term we use is on-road engines, and that is

         17  essentially diesel trucks, whether they be the small

         18  delivery vans, or whether they be the huge

         19  18-wheelers and City vehicles, or it could be buses,

         20  it could be dump trucks, those are on-road just

         21  simply because they spend most of their time on the

         22  road.

         23                 Non-road vehicles are basically most

         24  everything else, and they could be things anywhere

         25  from construction equipment, which is in fact
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          2  bull-dozers and cranes and large diesel compressors

          3  for air or generators even to provide electricity at

          4  a construction site.

          5                 So, when we talk about non-road, it's

          6  all those kind of construction equipment, or other

          7  engines that assist in construction. They may in

          8  fact not be moving like a compressor, but we

          9  consider that a non-road engine.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         11                 I take it there are pieces of

         12  machinery that are typically used in construction

         13  sites that are in a third category other than

         14  on-road and off-road vehicles?

         15                 MR. WERNER: I'm not sure. I don't

         16  think so. I think most everything you would find at

         17  a construction site is a non-road engine, I mean

         18  other than the dump trucks coming to and from the

         19  site.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. Because

         21  what I wanted to make sure, or what I wanted to ask

         22  you, is there a need to kind of expand the

         23  definition or add an additional category of vehicles

         24  to be inclusive?

         25                 Or rephrasing it, is there anything
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          2  that we're missing by using the term non-road

          3  vehicles in the way in which we do in the bill?

          4                 MR. WERNER: No, I think it's very

          5  consistent to with the way EPA looks at it, and

          6  basically our regulation was geared for those

          7  engines that we thought contributed the most to the

          8  pollution. So, no, I wouldn't recommend any changes,

          9  I think it's fine as it is.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. And I

         11  think in your testimony you covered this, but I just

         12  wanted to make sure we all got it right.

         13                 What is the percentage of emissions

         14  or particulate that is attributable to these nonroad

         15  vehicles?

         16                 MR. WERNER: If you look at an area

         17  like New York City, about half --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Fifty percent?

         19                 MR. WERNER: Fifty percent.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: It deserves

         21  underscoring, I think.

         22                 MR. WERNER: Yes, absolutely.

         23                 -- Come from the non-road engines or

         24  the construction equipment, which I think is

         25  remarkable considering compared to the number of
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          2  other kinds of on-road engines, you know, like your

          3  trucks and your delivery vans, and dump trucks and

          4  buses, they're a very small number of construction

          5  vehicles in Manhattan, compared to the other kind of

          6  diesel engines, and yet they contribute half of the

          7  particulate emissions.

          8                 So, it's a huge, a huge source that

          9  is relatively uncontrolled.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So a bill like

         11  this would go a long way to significantly reducing

         12  the dangerous particulate we can now breathe.

         13                 MR. WERNER: Absolutely. And think

         14  about it for a second, I mean where are these

         15  construction equipment? This is not Omaha. This is

         16  not a mile between houses. Your construction

         17  equipment is across the street from a day care

         18  center or from an apartment building. So, the

         19  emissions are right where people live, and breathe

         20  and walk. So, that's another reason that this is an

         21  important piece of legislation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And the last

         23  here I just want to cover very briefly is the issue

         24  of federal preemption, which you raised.

         25                 And is there a differential in
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          2  federal preemption now between on-road and non-road

          3  vehicles?

          4                 MR. WERNER: Yes, there is.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Can you just

          6  review that?

          7                 MR. WERNER: First of all, if you just

          8  look at fuels alone, on the on-road engines, the

          9  trucks and buses, there is a preemption for the

         10  fuel. For the non-road, the kind of sources we're

         11  talking about today, there is none.

         12                 So, from a fuel standpoint, it's a

         13  night and day situation, okay? There is no

         14  preemption for the kind of sources that we're

         15  controlling and we propose to control when it's

         16  built.

         17                 When you look at the other aspect of

         18  preemption and that is the control equipment,

         19  catalyst or the filters that you put on the

         20  equipment, okay, there is a preemption for both,

         21  on-road and the non-road, the construction

         22  equipment.

         23                 However, there are certain exemptions

         24  that are out there that allow state and localities

         25  to control, to require controls through the use of
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          2  particle filters, et cetera.

          3                 In the case of the non-road, which is

          4  what we're talking about today in New York, as long

          5  as New York City is proposing to regulate sources

          6  under its sovereign control, which are the

          7  construction equipment or non-road engines it owns

          8  or leases, or controls through contracts, then it is

          9  not preempted, okay?

         10                 It would be different if New York

         11  City was to pass a law that said all non-road

         12  engines in the City have to meet that because now

         13  you would be proposing to regulate sources that are

         14  not in your sovereign power.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But I take it we

         16  could with respect to the fuel, in other words we

         17  could in theory, I'm talking hypothetically, expand

         18  the bill to require the low sulfur or a certain

         19  category of fuel across the board, whether or not it

         20  relates to a City contract with respect to

         21  preemption.

         22                 MR. WERNER: That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: But we could not

         24  do that with respect to the retrofitting or the type

         25  of equipment that is used?
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          2                 MR. WERNER: I'm going to say yes

          3  under this sovereignty exemption.

          4                 Now, the Clean Air Act, actually, has

          5  other exemption provisions in, okay? And I didn't go

          6  into that because I didn't want to complicate

          7  things, but I can, if you want, go into that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Essentially, the

          9  Clean Air Act says if any locality was to adopt a

         10  regulation that California has adopted for non-road

         11  engines, it specifically says that in the

         12  legislation, specifically identifies California as

         13  the benchmark perhaps because of their extreme air

         14  quality problem.

         15                 MR. WERNER: If New York City were to

         16  follow California's lead in developing a successful

         17  and approved non-road engine regulation, okay, you

         18  could, too, also. Now, I want to say now California

         19  doesn't have that regulation, so at this point it's

         20  a theoretical exemption.

         21                 But in theory, were California to

         22  develop a regulation, and they have one, that was

         23  adequate and approved by EPA in terms of controlling

         24  non-road engine, and if New York City adopted the

         25  same or similar regulation, then in fact, you could
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          2  control all the construction equipment, all the

          3  non-road engines, even if it's not under your

          4  sovereign power.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So,

          6  those would be the next logical steps.

          7                 MR. WERNER: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I would

          9  look forward to working with you on that.

         10                 We have other witnesses, so I just

         11  want to thank you very much for your testimony, and

         12  thank you very much for your support of the

         13  legislation.

         14                 MR. WERNER: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Werner. We're very grateful to have you here. Thank

         17  you for your strong support and for your

         18  comprehensive testimony.

         19                 Next witness will be from the

         20  Department of Consumer Affairs, and she's right in

         21  front of me, how do you like that, Eileen Sullivan,

         22  and Andrew Eiler. Welcome. Thank you very much for

         23  being here. I appreciate your testimony before us

         24  today. We want to kind of move things along here.

         25  So, once again welcome. The Council to the Committee
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          2  will administer the oath. Please state your name for

          3  the record and proceed with your testimony. It's a

          4  pleasure.

          5                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          6  right hand.

          7                 In the testimony that you are about

          8  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

          9  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         10                 MR. EILER: Yes.

         11                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         12                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and

         13  members of the Environmental Protection Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And what I'll do

         15  also is, yes, tricky microphone. You've got to speak

         16  right into it, otherwise it won't record and we

         17  won't hear you. And the fan is blowing, the louder

         18  the better.

         19                 MS. SULLIVAN: Okay.

         20                 My name is Eileen Sullivan, and I

         21  have for the past six months been working with

         22  Gretchen Dykstra, who is the Commissioner of

         23  Consumer Affairs, on a project related to the

         24  development of Lower Manhattan.

         25                 As you know, at the beginning of this
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          2  year, Deputy Mayor Doctoroff appointed ten teams to

          3  take charge of policy and planning and various

          4  aspects of the development of Lower Manhattan, and

          5  Commissioner Dykstra, her team is to develop a

          6  construction management policy.

          7                 So, I have been working with her on

          8  that. And Andrew Eiler is the Director of

          9  Legislative Affairs for the Department. Well, I

         10  wanted to thank you very much, and Commissioner

         11  Dykstra would be here, but she's on vacation in

         12  Africa, so she asked me to communicate to you our

         13  appreciation of being able to testify.

         14                 Well, let me say, first, that the

         15  Administration concurs with the objective and

         16  purposes of this piece of legislation. The

         17  Administration does, however, have concerns about

         18  the timing of the proposal, and concerns that it

         19  might undermine another proposal that the

         20  Administration has developed, and, so, we

         21  essentially are asking the Council to consider this

         22  other approach to the development of Lower

         23  Manhattan; that is, that the Administration has

         24  developed a coordinated construction act for Lower

         25  Manhattan, which is a proposed bill, a proposed
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          2  state law, and we have submitted it to the State

          3  Legislature and mobilized a large number of

          4  organizations in support of it, and I have brought

          5  you copies, kits really that describe the bill and

          6  describe the organizations that have supported it,

          7  et cetera.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is this a bill

          9  that has been introduced?

         10                 MS. SULLIVAN: No, it has not. It has

         11  been sent to Senator Bruno and to Speaker Silver at

         12  the end of last session, but it has--

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. We don't

         14  want to interrupt with questions, I just wanted to

         15  make that clarification.

         16                 MS. SULLIVAN: No, it hasn't been. It

         17  hasn't been introduced.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         19                 MS. SULLIVAN: But the advantage of a

         20  coordinated construction act from the

         21  Administration's perspective is that it does provide

         22  a comprehensive approach to the development of Lower

         23  Manhattan, and by comprehensive I mean two things,

         24  one, the number of agencies that are covered under

         25  the bill; and two, the subject areas that are
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          2  covered.

          3                 So, in terms of the agencies covered,

          4  it covers City agencies, State agencies and State

          5  authorities.

          6                 Then for the areas it has seven

          7  provisions, one of which is the requirement for the

          8  use of ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel and appropriate

          9  retrofit technology. So, we have examined somewhat

         10  at least any differences between your bill and the

         11  provision in the coordinated construction act and

         12  the differences seem to us to be very minor matters

         13  of detail.

         14                 So, it seems then that the

         15  coordinated construction act achieves the objective

         16  of the Council bill and it achieves them for City

         17  agencies, State agencies, and State authorities.

         18                 But in addition --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If we could get

         20  it passed?

         21                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes, exactly. But what

         22  we're trying to do is mobilize as much support as

         23  possible to get it passed, including past the

         24  support of the City Council.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we'll
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          2  talk.

          3                 MS. SULLIVAN: I'll just describe

          4  briefly, because I know you have many other

          5  speakers, what the other provisions are, and as I

          6  say I'll leave you the kits.

          7                 But the other six provisions are, one

          8  to allow public agencies, in particular city

          9  agencies, to prequalify bidders, which the City

         10  can't do now and it really slows down the

         11  procurement process.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What was that? I

         13  didn't catch that.

         14                 MS. SULLIVAN: It means to prequalify

         15  bidders. So, with the modification in state law that

         16  we're proposing, City agencies would be able to have

         17  a regular process where every year they prequalify

         18  bidders, so then when each bid comes in, it's from

         19  you solicited those that are already prequalified.

         20  You don't have to go through qualification every

         21  time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         23                 MS. SULLIVAN: And State agencies

         24  already can do that, but the City can't.

         25                 The second one is to require that
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          2  contracts over a million dollars be awarded only to

          3  contractors with state-certified apprentice training

          4  programs so that promotes safety. And it leaves

          5  lesser projects or those under a million open for

          6  everybody.

          7                 It requires all City agencies to be

          8  subject to the State law requirements of 15A, which

          9  mandate agencies to set goals for the participation

         10  of minority and woman-owned businesses, and City

         11  agencies are not now subject to that.

         12                 So, as the coordinated construction

         13  act, City agencies would have to set goals for

         14  participation for minority and woman-owned

         15  contractors, monitor the achievement of those goals,

         16  report publicly on their achievements. So it

         17  promotes fairness.

         18                 Another one is to allow joint

         19  bidding. Joint bidding means that the City agencies

         20  and utilities plan their projects together. One

         21  reason why if you look at it, William Street, the

         22  streets are torn up and repaved and torn up and

         23  repaved is that the City is not able to do joint

         24  bidding, so the City does its work, then it has to

         25  pause to let the utilities do their work, who have
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          2  to pause to let the City do its work. So, the

          3  Coordinated Construction Act proposes the

          4  modification in state law to allow joint bidding.

          5  And that has environmental impacts as well, it means

          6  less tearing up of the street, less dust, as well as

          7  things like less traffic obstruction, et cetera. And

          8  we think that might be the most controversial aspect

          9  of the bill. So in the sense of trying to mobilize

         10  as much support, including the Council's support, it

         11  could be very important on that one.

         12                 Then two more. One is to make it

         13  easier for City agencies to do cooperative

         14  purchasing with state agencies, and that could help

         15  in the use of ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel, the

         16  costs aspects of it, because if every agency has to

         17  use it, you might be able to negotiate many deals on

         18  volume, and this would just make this kind of

         19  cooperative purchasing easier.

         20                 And then the last one is that it

         21  allows owner controlled insurance, because as you

         22  know, Lower Manhattan is getting increasingly

         23  difficult for contractors to have insurance, and

         24  maybe especially minority and woman-owned or small

         25  enterprises, but for everybody it's getting really
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          2  difficult. So owner-controlled insurance would

          3  really help that and lower premiums and costs.

          4                 So for that reason, on behalf of the

          5  Mayor, I'm just urging that the Council, you know,

          6  consider supporting this more unified comprehensive

          7  approach, rather than tackling the issues in a

          8  piecemeal basis, that we would accomplish a common

          9  goal of safety in the environment, as well as these

         10  other goals, which are related to the speedy and

         11  fair effective, cost effective development of Lower

         12  Manhattan.

         13                 So, I wanted to thank you again for

         14  testimony, and we're here to answer questions if we

         15  can.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.

         17  Thank you very much for being here. Thank you for

         18  your testimony and thank you and the Administration

         19  for your interest in trying to, you know, promote

         20  and find goals for some of the same things that we

         21  seek. It's nice when we come together and we're all

         22  trying to figure out creative ways to do get to the

         23  same goals.

         24                 And Ms. Sullivan, you have many

         25  people within the Council that admire your work
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          2  personally, you know, and so your reputation

          3  precedes you, as well.

          4                 Now, as I understand it, the

          5  initiative that you're putting forward is really

          6  only for Lower Manhattan, right?

          7                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes, it is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It is?

          9                 MS. SULLIVAN: Only for Lower

         10  Manhattan south of Houston Street.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. And our

         12  bill will apply to the entire City, and so, we have

         13  a Citywide focus with what we're doing here, and

         14  while it seems that there's a lot of, you know,

         15  common ground between I guess the Bloomberg

         16  Administration and us regarding Lower Manhattan,

         17  everyone is sort of on the same page, you know, we

         18  feel the need to sort of send the benefits of our

         19  bill, although it will first start in Lower

         20  Manhattan to the far reaches of the City, just

         21  because we think it's important to do so, so I think

         22  it would be difficult to sort of get us off the

         23  Citywide focus that we have in mind.

         24                 Although, you know, the comprehensive

         25  approach to doing a lot of things certainly is
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          2  appealing; do you have any comments regarding our

          3  need to reach Citywide, and your proposals, you

          4  know, sole focus on Lower Manhattan; how would you

          5  pose we reconcile that?

          6                 MS. SULLIVAN: Well, just two

          7  comments. First, over the next number of years, the

          8  most concentrated intense construction is going to

          9  go on in Lower Manhattan, by multiple agencies, so

         10  one reason to focus on Lower Manhattan, it is where

         11  the most intense activity is going to go on.

         12                 I think the other argument is that,

         13  when we learn what goes on in Lower Manhattan, we

         14  might be better able to figure out issues of supply

         15  and cost and available technology and then use it to

         16  perhaps move beyond Lower Manhattan. So, I think

         17  those are the two issues really.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         19                 Also, does your bill, is it just for

         20  kind of the rebuilding of Lower Manhattan --

         21                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- For this

         23  phase, or is it something that will apply to

         24  projects in Lower Manhattan indefinitely?

         25                 MS. SULLIVAN: No, Lower Manhattan for
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          2  the payout of federal funds, meaning ten years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

          4                 MS. SULLIVAN: So, it's Lower

          5  Manhattan over the next ten years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

          7                 MS. SULLIVAN: So 2014.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I have one

          9  or two more questions, but I want to turn it over

         10  now to Council Member Gerson who has some questions

         11  as well, and I'll reserve the right to come back for

         12  a second round.

         13                 Council Member Gerson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Good to see

         15  you.

         16                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And please

         18  extend my best wishes to the Commissioner.

         19                 You know, we have a lot of issues in

         20  common and let me just make it clear from the outset

         21  that I have the greatest of respect for your

         22  Department and in the great work that you're doing

         23  in tackling some of the very thorny issues that we

         24  face in Lower Manhattan, in my district, but

         25  Citywide.
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          2                 And then I was overjoyed when I

          3  learned of the appointment in the designation of

          4  your Department of your Commissioner to take the

          5  lead on construction-related work, because I know,

          6  because I appreciate the good working relationship

          7  we have, and I know that you will have the interest

          8  of our community at heart.

          9                 So, that's kind of my predicate.

         10                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I guess I'm a

         12  little disappointed, as I'm sure you could

         13  understand, so let's pursue it and see if we could

         14  wind up on a common page briefly.

         15                 First of all, do you agree that we

         16  face a potential environmental and health disaster

         17  and emergency if we don't get this diesel under

         18  control real soon in Lower Manhattan?

         19                 MS. SULLIVAN: Oh, yes, that's the

         20  idea why the provision is in the bill.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I understand

         22  that. Okay, so if we agree that we're facing a

         23  potential health emergency and an environmental

         24  crisis, wouldn't it make sense to do what we can

         25  immediately to protect the health and deal with the
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          2  air quality kind of in a singular way to use your

          3  language, as quickly as possible, at the same time

          4  as we pursue all the other laudable objectives?

          5                 MS. SULLIVAN: Well, this would be as

          6  quickly as possible. I mean, our hope is to get,

          7  have the coordinated construction passed in this

          8  calendar year, because I mean for all of the

          9  provisions speed is --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Does this

         11  require state legislative --

         12                 MS. SULLIVAN: This is a state bill.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And are you

         14  confident we're going to have a special session

         15  before the end of this calendar year?

         16                 MS. SULLIVAN: I said our hope was

         17  before the end of the year.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         19                 MS. SULLIVAN: So, that's our hope,

         20  and we're working very hard to accomplish that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Now, you I

         22  think correctly singled out joint bidding as the

         23  most controversial aspect of it.

         24                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You are aware,
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          2  I take it, there have been joint bidding bills

          3  before the State Legislature in the past.

          4                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Do you know

          6  how many years that has been pending?

          7                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Quite a few,

          9  right?

         10                 MS. SULLIVAN: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, I'm just

         12  concerned when I hear that we're kind of possibly

         13  delaying dealing with the most pressing help issue

         14  by linking it to these other controversies that have

         15  been lingering for a matter of years, and we don't

         16  even know that we may have a special session in the

         17  State Legislature before the Council, but we do know

         18  that the City Council is in session, so it seems to

         19  me, if we give a priority, after all that Lower

         20  Manhattan has been through with respect to breathing

         21  in the environment, it seems to me we should get

         22  that piece of it done through the Council, which we

         23  can do, and then proceed in the united way to get

         24  everything else done before the State Legislature, I

         25  mean, as a matter of good strategy and good sense
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          2  and concern for the environment.

          3                 Well, maybe you should just consider

          4  this and take it back. I would just say if the

          5  Mayor, and I was prepared, and I remain prepared to

          6  support the State bill, I believe one of my

          7  community boards has already endorsed it, and I

          8  believe the other two --

          9                 MS. SULLIVAN: Two of them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Two of them,

         11  and I believe that I can tell you, I'm quite

         12  confident that if the goal was to marshal support

         13  for the bill, I think you're on the verge of

         14  achieving the exact opposite, because by opposing

         15  this City Council bill, in favor of the State bill,

         16  I mean I almost feel like throwing up my hands and

         17  walking away from the State in order to get done

         18  what we can do on the City, because I can tell you

         19  all, everything is laudable and needed in the bill,

         20  but if there's one thing we had to single out as a

         21  priority, it's the air we believe and the diesel

         22  particulates, and we cannot take a chance in

         23  delaying it for one more day than we have to.

         24                 MS. SULLIVAN: I will definitely

         25  communicate this back. I mean, all I can say is that
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          2  the Administration's position about it is that if

          3  all the forces in this City, public and private and

          4  civic, mobilized in support of the coordinated

          5  construction act, we would get sort of everything

          6  that we wanted, rather than dealing with the issues

          7  in a piecemeal way.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'll wind up

          9  on this. We're such a vast and complex city, and we

         10  have so many needs and so many issues that come up

         11  at any one time, and I think the Mayor on more than

         12  one occasion has pointed out that we have to do

         13  multiple tasks at the same time. It seems to me we

         14  should be doing both and not sacrificing or

         15  potentially delaying one for the other. I think

         16  that's the best way to maintain unit, and not

         17  potentially holding up a dire environmental need,

         18  you know in exchange for other very important needs

         19  as well, but when we're talking about, when we hear

         20  testimony that the diesel particulate that these

         21  equipment emit, that this equipment emit, directly

         22  endangers our health, it seems we should go full

         23  speed ahead on that, at the same time as we pursue

         24  everything else, so please take that message back.

         25                 MS. SULLIVAN: Certainly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And just one

          3  other point, you do know in addition, the Chair

          4  correctly pointed out, our bill applies Citywide and

          5  the construction act only applies to Lower Manhattan

          6  south of Houston Street, but our bill defines Lower

          7  Manhattan for the phase-in purposes as 14th Street

          8  south. 14th Street was the initial street closure

          9  when Lower Manhattan was shut down, and there is a

         10  lot of ancillary construction work related to Lower

         11  Manhattan and rebidding that will go on north of

         12  Houston and that's another reason, more than just a

         13  detail that it distinguishes this bill from the

         14  construction bill.

         15                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you, Council Member Gerson. A few real quick

         18  questions, I'll read them just as they're written

         19  without embellishment.

         20                 DOS, the Department of Sanitation, we

         21  had originally wanted to have other City agencies

         22  present who had been using ultra-low sulfur diesel,

         23  and you're the only representative of the

         24  Administration, you folks, so, you know, you're

         25  designated to sort of field these questions, if
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          2  you're able to.

          3                 The Department of Sanitation has been

          4  using ultra-low sulfur diesel in some of its trucks;

          5  do you know the sulfur content of the fuel that

          6  they've been using in DOS?

          7                 MS. SULLIVAN: Well, let me say one

          8  thing, is that we got those questions only this

          9  morning, we didn't really have time to prepare.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MS. SULLIVAN: But we're able to

         12  mobilize some answers and Andy can give them to you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         14                 MS. SULLIVAN: And in the meantime,

         15  the City Legislative Affairs is mobilizing answers

         16  to them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, let me

         18  just put them on the record.

         19                 Is there an answer that you have?

         20                 MR. EILER: I don't have it in terms

         21  of exactly what fuel level it is, I don't have it,

         22  but the City co-defines ultra-low fuel as something

         23  not containing more than 15 parts per million, but

         24  it certified that what is certified as ultra-low

         25  sulfur fuel is at less than 30.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, that's

          3  good.

          4                 MR. EILER: It is within that ball

          5  park.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. You're

          7  close.

          8                 The differences in cost between

          9  ultra-low sulfur diesel and standard diesel and what

         10  the City's experience has been?

         11                 MR. EILER: Well, what we've gotten

         12  about that is that the costs range from four to 14

         13  cents per gallon, that's the difference between

         14  number one and number two diesel and the ultra-low

         15  sulfur.

         16                 That can be approximately four to 16

         17  percent difference.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Four to 16

         19  percent difference in cost, regular diesel to

         20  ultra-low sulfur diesel.

         21                 And has the DOS or any other City

         22  agency had any problems with respect to ultra-low

         23  fuel diesel being available?

         24                 MR. EILER: I'm not sure, I mean as

         25  far as I know, there's a limited supply source,
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          2  there is one supplier that we are aware of, but

          3  that's as deeply as we've dealt into the subject.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          5                 Thank you. Thank you very much.

          6  Appreciate you being here.

          7                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

          9  pinch-hitting for other agencies, as well.

         10                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Next time tell

         12  them to come. We would welcome them.

         13                 Okay, we're going to be hearing a

         14  brief statement from Catherine McVay Hughes, to be

         15  followed by the Port Authority representatives who

         16  we know have a time constraint, so we will take a

         17  statement from Catherine McVay Hughes, and to be

         18  followed by Mr. Francis Lombardi of the Port

         19  Authority and Janno Lieber of Silverstein

         20  Properties, that will be a panel. So, the Port

         21  Authority will be a panel with the Silverstein

         22  Properties representative, but first we'll hear from

         23  Catherine McVay Hughes, thank you for being here.

         24  We're kind of just squeezing you in here. And so I

         25  thank the Port Authority people for being patient.
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          2  Welcome. Thank you very much for being with us

          3  today, we look forward to hearing your statement.

          4                 Counsel to Committee will give the

          5  oath, as we do with all witnesses, and then you can

          6  proceed. State your name for the record and proceed

          7  with your testimony.

          8                 MS. McVAY: Thank you very much.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         10  right hand.

         11                 In the testimony that we're about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth, and nothing but the truth.

         14                 MS. McVAY: Yes, I do.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 MS. McVAY: Thank you so much. This

         17  will be very brief. My name is Catherine McVay

         18  Hughes. I live with my husband and two young boys,

         19  one block east of the World Trade Center site, so we

         20  definitely support your bill today.

         21                 And I also work with NYU as a World

         22  Trade Center Environmental Community Outreach, and I

         23  put over up front, they have a new World Trade

         24  Center newsletter.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is this it?
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          2                 MS. McVAY: Yes.

          3                 And there's two paragraphs I just

          4  wanted to read in for your record. First of all, on

          5  the back page is the section on redeveloping the

          6  World Trade Center Environmental Review Process, and

          7  there's a whole bulletpoint endorsing using the low

          8  sulfur fuel. So I think it's very important, and we

          9  also refer to the environmental defenses briefing

         10  paper, which is up front, which I won't go into.

         11                 The second thing I wanted to bring to

         12  your attention is on page five, under the health

         13  effects among community residents of Lower

         14  Manhattan, the last paragraph.

         15                 NYU and Bellevue and New York State

         16  Department of Health did a World Trade Center

         17  respiratory study. It's the only study that I'm

         18  aware of on the respiratory of the residents

         19  downtown, and the preliminary findings of this

         20  study, the results indicate that previously healthy

         21  persons living near Ground Zero had greater increase

         22  in prevalence of respiratory symptoms after

         23  September 11th than persons living at a distance

         24  from Ground Zero.

         25                 These respiratory symptoms were
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          2  predominantly cough, wheeze, and shortness of

          3  breath, preexisting asthmatic residents in the World

          4  Trade Center vicinity also reported a higher

          5  prevalence of respiratory symptoms after September

          6  11th and an increased use of asthma medication as

          7  compared to those living further away.

          8                 Only the preliminary findings were

          9  briefed to a small portion of the community in June.

         10  They're still finalizing the data, and working on

         11  publishing it.

         12                 One of the things that's not

         13  mentioned in this article is that when you take a

         14  more advanced respiratory test, which I participated

         15  in, they've been finding that some of the residents

         16  have something called "twitchy lungs," and have a

         17  built sensitivity to dust, and living next to the

         18  largest construction site the bill that you're

         19  proposing today is very important and we greatly

         20  applaud it.

         21                 And I would also like to remind that

         22  City Hall is only three blocks north of the World

         23  Trade Center, so you're not very far from the fumes

         24  from all this constructional equipment either. It's

         25  not in another borough. You work here a lot, you put
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          2  in a lot of hard hours.

          3                 I also wanted to bring to your

          4  attention that I have a popular website called

          5  "Asthma Moms." And it's one of the top Google

          6  listings under asthma organizations.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Why don't you

          8  give us the full website address.

          9                 MS. McVAY: It's asthmamoms.com, and

         10  it's very comprehensive in the information that it

         11  provides about asthma, and they also have maps on

         12  the statistical prevalence, and it also goes into

         13  whole World Trade Center section resources and

         14  articles.

         15                 So, what you're doing today is very

         16  important, and I also think if this bill does pass

         17  and actually becomes reality, you should work with

         18  LMDC and the Winter Garden. They have a beautiful

         19  display, you should brag about it.

         20                 So, you know, show what does a low

         21  sulfur fuel look like, take pictures of the station

         22  where everybody is going to be buying this fuel, you

         23  know, where you get it, you know, what does this

         24  machinery look like, I mean I think it would take

         25  away some of the mystery and then it could be
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          2  duplicated in some other part.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much for being with us today. Thank you for your

          6  advocacy on behalf of your local community, and the

          7  wonderful bulletin or newsletter that you've put

          8  out. It's great when people really come together,

          9  and update the community and create the websites and

         10  give out information that is going to be helpful.

         11  And thank you for being helpful for what we're

         12  trying to do here today and for helping us to make

         13  the case even more strongly of the need to get this

         14  bill done.

         15                 MS. McVAY: Great.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         17                 MS. McVAY: Thank you. And of course,

         18  I can't wait til it gets passed in force, and then

         19  obviously road vehicles is a big issue too. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         22                 Okay, as I said, we'll be graced by

         23  the presence of Mr. Francis Lombardi, the chief

         24  engineer of the Port Authority of New York and New

         25  Jersey. Janno Lieber of the Silverstein Properties.

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  That will comprise one panel. To be followed by

          3  Richard Muller of the Manhattan Borough President's

          4  Office, and Michael Kadish, representing Brooklyn

          5  Borough President Marty Markowitz.

          6                 That will be the panel after this

          7  one.

          8                 Thank you very much. The Counsel to

          9  the Committee will give the oath.

         10                 Oh, pardon me. I wish to recognize

         11  also the presence of Council Member Margarita Lopez,

         12  a valuable member of this Committee and who serves

         13  the district closest to Lower Manhattan who was a

         14  member of this Committee.

         15                 Alan is not a member of this

         16  Committee but is a frequent participant. So, I'm

         17  happy to recognize Council Member Lopez, my good

         18  friend and colleague.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And Mr. Chair,

         20  even though contrary to the paperwork, I should note

         21  that Council Member Lopez is not only a prime

         22  sponsor of the bill, she's been a source of support

         23  to it, working with me from the very beginning, and

         24  I want to thank Council Member Lopez for that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          3  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth.

          6                 MR. LIEBER: I do.

          7                 MR. LOMBARDI: I do.

          8                 Good afternoon, Chairperson Gennaro

          9  and other Council Members. My name is Francis J.

         10  Lombardi, and I am the Chief Engineer of the Port

         11  Authority of New York and New Jersey.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  speak to you today regarding the Port Authority's

         14  recent experience and future commitment toward the

         15  use of ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel in the Port

         16  Authority's construction activities at the World

         17  Trade Center site.

         18                 Earlier this year, at the urging of

         19  Governor Pataki, the Port Authority committed to

         20  explore the use of ULSD fuel construction activities

         21  at the World Trade Center site.

         22                 The Council will be pleased to know

         23  that the Port Authority is part of its downtown

         24  restoration program, has initiated a test program

         25  using ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel on certain heavy
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          2  equipment in the construction of the temporary World

          3  Trade Center Path station.

          4                 This is an extensive program

          5  demonstrating the Port Authority's commitment to

          6  reducing air emissions associated with this critical

          7  construction project.

          8                 To implement the test program, the

          9  Port Authority worked with the General Contractors

         10  Association, the GCA, and the New York State

         11  Department of Environmental Conservation, DEC, to

         12  establish a ULSD fuel test program, that would

         13  identify issues and concerns, explore potential

         14  solutions and share in results and conclusions.

         15                 Factors to be considered

         16  specifications for the ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel,

         17  availability of fuel supply that met the

         18  specifications, compatibility of construction

         19  equipment to the use of ULSD fuel, how its

         20  effectiveness in reducing particulate matter can be

         21  improved, and the impact on construction equipment

         22  service and maintenance.

         23                 The data and experience gathered in

         24  the use of ULSD fueled equipment for the

         25  construction of the temporary Path Station at the
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          2  World Trade Center site, will be evaluated to

          3  determine opportunities to implement a larger scale

          4  use of these technologies in the construction of the

          5  permit World Trade Center Path terminal.

          6                 As part of the current test program,

          7  the primary site generator is being solely run on

          8  ULSD fuel, in addition to four site loaders which

          9  were retrofitted for that fuel use.

         10                 The test program which began earlier

         11  this year is unique for construction projects in our

         12  region. After a period of nine months, test data

         13  will shortly be compiled and evaluated. However,

         14  even before the results of that testing are in, we

         15  have made significant strides towards the

         16  utilization of USLD fuel technology.

         17                 During this time, there were no

         18  adverse effects on productivity or equipment

         19  performance, schedules were not negatively impacted,

         20  fuel was readily available, and perceived industry

         21  concerns on the use of this fuel and retrofit

         22  technologies were alleviated, just as important, the

         23  temporary World Trade Center Path station will open

         24  to downtown consumer service in November of 2003, a

         25  month ahead of schedule.
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          2                 The Port Authority is confident that

          3  the evaluation of the test program results will

          4  allow us to identify achievable goals in reducing

          5  particulate emissions.

          6                 Therefore, I am pleased to report

          7  that the Port Authority will specify the use of, and

          8  I quote, ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel in off-road

          9  construction equipment with engine horse power

         10  rating of 60 HP and above, in contract bid

         11  requirements for construction of the permanent World

         12  Trade Center Path Terminal.

         13                 Construction on the permanent

         14  terminal is scheduled to begin in early 2005. The

         15  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel will reduce particulate

         16  emissions from construction equipment that remain

         17  on-site, such as loaders, excavators, construction

         18  cranes, as well as generators powering equipment

         19  such as lights, signs and pumps that would

         20  contribute to emissions within a localized area.

         21                 Furthermore, we anticipate that the

         22  Port Authority, where practical, use diesel engine

         23  retrofit technology and off-road equipment to

         24  further reduce emissions. Such technology may

         25  include diesel particulate filters, engine upgrades,
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          2  engine replacement, all combinations of these

          3  strategies.

          4                 These requirements, engine retrofits

          5  or filters would not apply to on-road vehicles that

          6  would be used to transport materials to or

          7  construction debris from the World Trade Center

          8  site.

          9                 Many of these on-road vehicles are

         10  typically gasoline powered and subject to regular

         11  emission standards are readily in place.

         12                 However, in conjunction with the

         13  construction industry, Port Authority will

         14  continually evaluate the feasibility and

         15  practicability of requiring certain construction

         16  vehicles to ULSD or to be equipped with engines

         17  and/or filters to reduce emissions.

         18                 The Port Authority will also

         19  implement typical construction staging precautions

         20  for work around the World Trade Center site,

         21  including measures to reduce engine idling times to

         22  three minutes or less and to locate diesel-powered

         23  exhaust from fresh air intakes.

         24                 These air quality mitigation measures

         25  are among numerous environmental performance
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          2  commitments or EPCs that the Port Authority, the

          3  Metropolitan Transportation, MTA, and the New York

          4  State Department of Transportation, State DOT, have

          5  agreed to implement as part of the federal

          6  Transportation Recovery Projects in Lower Manhattan.

          7                 The State agencies, in conjunction

          8  with the federal transportation agency will be

          9  announcing the complete set of EPCs shortly. The

         10  EPCs will be part of the environmental review of the

         11  major transportation projects in Lower Manhattan.

         12                 The magnitude and concentration of

         13  construction activity in and around the World Trade

         14  Center site over the next several years create the

         15  special circumstances that enable these enhanced

         16  measures regarding diesel exhaust to be efficient

         17  and effective.

         18                 Additionally, the Port Authority will

         19  be examining its other major upcoming projects in

         20  the region that require significant activity for a

         21  long period in the concentrated area that may

         22  warrant application of similar diesel exhaust

         23  mitigation measures.

         24                 In conclusion, the Port Authority is

         25  committed to working with other agencies, commercial
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          2  developers, construction industry, and the City

          3  Council to promote the use of ULSD where practical

          4  and feasible. We are already fully engaged in this

          5  effort at the World Trade Center site.

          6                 The Port Authority's commitment

          7  toward improving air quality is already demonstrated

          8  by our adoption of the environmental performance

          9  commitment for the Lower Manhattan Transportation

         10  projects, and by our ongoing ULSD fuel program.

         11                 We hope to advance these and other

         12  environmentally friendly initiatives in the future

         13  as the Port Authority does its part in rebuilding

         14  and renewing the regions transportation

         15  infrastructure.

         16                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         17  to speak, to provide you with this information

         18  today, and I will accept any questions that you may

         19  have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Lombardi. We'll hear the testimony first from Mr.

         22  Lieber. Am I pronouncing that right? Is that right,

         23  Lieber? And then we'll ask questions or make

         24  comments of both of you.

         25                 Mr. Lieber.
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          3  and members of the Council.

          4                 I am Janno Lieber, Senior Vice

          5  President of World Trade Center Properties, LLC. In

          6  that capacity I serve as Larry Silverstein's

          7  Director of World Trade Center Redevelopment.

          8                 I'm here today to describe the

          9  Silverstein organization's experience in utilizing

         10  diesel emission reduction technology in the

         11  reconstruction of 7 World Trade Center, and our

         12  plans for commercial space, for the commercial space

         13  that will be constructed on the main World Trade

         14  Center site.

         15                 In the spring of 2002, the

         16  Silverstein organization, together with Con Ed, was

         17  urgently trying to begin reconstruction of the

         18  electrical substation that had been destroyed on

         19  September 11th, 2001. And of 7 World Trade Center,

         20  the Office Building above it. The substation, of

         21  course, is essential to the restoration of reliable

         22  electrical service in Lower Manhattan, so everything

         23  had to be expedited.

         24                 In the middle of this process, we

         25  were approached by NRDC, the Natural Resources
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          2  Defense Council with a suggestion that we team up

          3  with the Northeast Safe Clean Air Foundation,

          4  NESCAF, to try to reduce diesel emissions from the

          5  construction equipment at the site.

          6                 We were interested, we wanted to make

          7  sure that this wasn't a situation where an

          8  experimental technology would slow things down.

          9                 NESCAF was persuasive about the

         10  successful experience in Boston's big dig with these

         11  techniques, and they offered to pick up any

         12  additional cost as a pilot program.

         13                 Thus, we entered into a memorandum of

         14  understanding with NESCAF, NRDC, EPA Region II and

         15  DEC, in which we agreed to try out these techniques

         16  in the 7 World Trade Center construction.

         17                 We started with the installations of

         18  the caissons, which was already underway. In a

         19  single piece of construction equipment, the muffler

         20  was replaced with a combination catalytic

         21  converter/muffler and ultra low sulfur diesel fuel

         22  was used.

         23                 For the excavation and foundation

         24  work we inserted language in all of our bid material

         25  requiring the low sulfur fuel and associated
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          2  catalytic converter muffler technology be used on

          3  all diesel burning equipment.

          4                 We faced some initial challenges in

          5  figuring out how to arrange on-site fueling. Once

          6  that was solved, however, I can report to you that

          7  the experiment went very, very smoothly. Our general

          8  contractor, Tishman Construction Corporation, tells

          9  us that there were no problems at all with that

         10  equipment.

         11                 Despite some early concerns, the low

         12  sulfur fuel did not cause any operational

         13  difficulties, didn't clog the equipment or reduce

         14  fuel efficiency. The catalytic converter muffler

         15  technology has worked just fine.

         16                 It also turned out that the cost of

         17  the ultra low sulfur fuel, which had been a concern,

         18  was close to that of regular diesel fuel, and so

         19  there were almost no added fuel costs. Retrofit

         20  equipment costs about $2,000 per unit plus

         21  installation, NESCAF has picked up these additional

         22  costs. We have committed to using these techniques

         23  for the erection of steel and other structural

         24  elements at 7 World Trade Center, a process that is

         25  beginning very, very soon. And also in the interior

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  work that will be done on behalf of tenants, to the

          3  extent that that work requires diesel equipment.

          4                 In short, the experiment has been a

          5  success. In view of this experience we intend to use

          6  ultra low sulfur diesel fuel and catalytic converter

          7  muffler devices in the construction of all the

          8  commercial towers at the main World Trade Center

          9  site.

         10                 Knowing in advance that these

         11  techniques will be used, we will be able to make

         12  appropriate plans for fuel delivery and to have the

         13  mufflers installed at the outset.

         14                 It is very important that there be

         15  more than one supplier of this special fuel, and I

         16  emphasize that point, and also more than one

         17  supplier of the catalytic converter muffler devices.

         18  It's probably best for the experiment and best for

         19  the policy that you don't place the users at the

         20  mercy of a single provider who therefore inflate

         21  prices.

         22                 But assuming there is beneficial

         23  competition, and other strategies to minimize cost

         24  impact, we don't foresee any problems at all.

         25                 7 World Trade Center will be a green
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          2  building in many different ways. We're pleased that

          3  diesel emission reduction programs of the kind we're

          4  discussing today are going to be another successful

          5  part of this effort.

          6                 Further, we intend to assure that all

          7  the commercial buildings we put at the main World

          8  Trade Center site are indeed green buildings, and we

          9  have a team working as we speak, developing those

         10  ideas.

         11                 One element that we at Silverstein

         12  properties have already decided to include in our

         13  plan for these buildings, starting with the 776 foot

         14  freedom tower, will be the tallest building in the

         15  world, is indeed the use of diesel emission

         16  reduction.

         17                 Larry Silverstein has promised that

         18  the new World Trade Center commercial buildings will

         19  be a showpiece for excellence in the realms of

         20  architecture, life safety and environmental

         21  protection. Reducing diesel emissions is one

         22  significant portion of this effort.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, both, very much for being here, and also for
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          2  your interest in using ultra low for diesel fuel. I

          3  would like to point out we are joined by Council

          4  Member Jennings from Queens.

          5                 With regard to the ultra low -- I

          6  think this is a question for both of you. The ultra

          7  low sulfur diesel that you're using, is it in the

          8  realm of 15 parts per million, or 30 parts per

          9  million? What level fuel are you using?

         10                 MR. LOMBARDI: To be honest with you,

         11  I don't know, frankly, what level it is. We do know

         12  we have one supplier that we have a name, that one

         13  particular supplier, and that particular supplier is

         14  named Sprague, S-p-r-a-g-u-e, which as I understand

         15  only makes one grade.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: And I'm told by folks

         17  from Tishman that it's roughly 30 parts per million.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         19                 But we're in the ball park.

         20                 MR. LOMBARDI: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're certainly

         22  in the ball park.

         23                 It would appear to me, I guess just

         24  by way of making a comment, that you paved the way

         25  for what we're trying to do here today. Certainly
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          2  we're here today, you know, Alan and myself and

          3  others who were proponents of this legislation to

          4  make a strong case for it, and I think that case

          5  certainly bolstered by the good experiences we're

          6  hearing from people in industry and other from, you

          7  know, federal government and others that are

          8  supportive of what we're trying to do, and of

          9  community advocates, certainly we have more people

         10  to hear from, it's certainly heartening to hear that

         11  you've had a good experience. Any other experiences

         12  with your use in ultra low sulfur diesel that you

         13  wish to bring to our attention, and maybe call in

         14  what we're trying to do or other information that

         15  you may have heard from other entities that may be

         16  using this that could help us in our consideration

         17  of this legislation?

         18                 MR. LOMBARDI: I can only speak as

         19  what was mentioned earlier, that the Port Authority

         20  was also involved and supportive of the Staten

         21  Island Ferry and to use that as a model to see how

         22  much is actually being reduced in that particular

         23  test program.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And if I could

         25  just, Mr. Lieber, with respect to the retrofitting,
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          2  you indicated in your statement that you had

          3  absolutely no problem with --

          4                 MR. LIEBER: No, we didn't. It was

          5  about 2,000 per vehicle, $2,000 per vehicle, but the

          6  technology was available and as I said the costs

          7  were offset through this arrangement that we had

          8  with NESCAF, which is important.

          9                 With respect to the response to your

         10  earlier question I just noted, I think it is

         11  important that the fuel was available at prices that

         12  are roughly comparable to conventional fuel, and if

         13  you want, obviously you can put it in your bid

         14  documents, but in the absence of a lot of inspection

         15  to enforce compliance, you want to make sure that

         16  people are doing it. So, to the extent that the

         17  policy can be developed to make sure that the costs

         18  are roughly comparable, as they indeed turn out to

         19  be, you'll have more likelihood of success in

         20  getting people to comply more broadly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. Thank

         22  you. Thank you.

         23                 Okay, thank you very much for your

         24  testimony. Oh, no, we're not going to let them go.

         25  We're not going to let them go. Council Member, I
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          2  will recognize Council Member Lopez for questions to

          3  be followed by Council Member Gerson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You make a

          5  comment about the concern about having only one

          6  supplier.

          7                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Why do you make

          9  that comment? It's a problem with getting more than

         10  one supplier?

         11                 MR. LIEBER: My impression is that

         12  there aren't very -- because the market is

         13  developing for this particular fuel, there was an

         14  issue of whether there would be enough suppliers. If

         15  you have more suppliers, there's more price

         16  competition, and more probability that you'll have.

         17  The differential in price between that and

         18  conventional fuel will be eliminated.

         19                 So, that's the benefit of having

         20  multiple suppliers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But at this

         22  current moment, it is a problem or not?

         23                 MR. LIEBER: From what I understand,

         24  and from what I have been told so far, it was not a

         25  problem but there's still a relatively few
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          2  suppliers, so it's an issue to keep your eye on.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Because if that

          4  will be a problem that the bill will confirm, one of

          5  the things that should be on therefore is to explore

          6  the possibility of all of the possible people that

          7  can compete for this market.

          8                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Particularly if

         10  it's a new market, as a fantastic opportunity to an

         11  investment.

         12                 MR. LIEBER: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just picking

         16  up on that point briefly. As you pointed out, this

         17  is a marker that's under development, and I take it

         18  would it not be the case that the more government

         19  requires this type of fuel, the more those

         20  requirements will prompt other suppliers to enter

         21  the market, would that not follow, from your

         22  experience?

         23                 MR. LIEBER: You're a better economist

         24  than I am, Councilman.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You're the
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          2  business person. So, from your experience, would

          3  that make sense, we increase demand?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: I think that probably

          5  stands to reason.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

          7                 I take it there's nothing in either

          8  of your experiences that should give the City any

          9  pause from proceeding as quickly as possible to

         10  implement the same type of low sulfur fuel

         11  requirements and then some of the retrofits which

         12  your organizations have already in effect done.

         13                 MR. LOMBARDI: I agree. There's no

         14  reason why you should not pursue it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I take it

         16  we have all sorts of construction going on in the

         17  vicinity of Port Authority, there's private sector

         18  and there's construction under City contract, in

         19  terms of getting the job done as quickly as

         20  possible, it's a good idea for all construction to

         21  proceed as expeditiously as possible.

         22                 And you heard earlier the

         23  Administration testified they might want to hold up

         24  on one of these requirements until we get a broader

         25  state legislative package done. I mean, if we were
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          2  to pursue that route, I would expect I would ask the

          3  City to put a moratorium on its construction

          4  contracts until it got that package done and that

          5  would probably hold up City construction work, and

          6  that's something we do not want to do, I take it.

          7  You don't have to answer that.

          8                 Alrighty, you know, in the interest

          9  of time we have other witnesses with pressing

         10  schedules, I want to proceed to the next panel, but

         11  Mr. Lombardi, I just want to make a note that I do

         12  want to follow up with you in the Port Authority on

         13  the on-road vehicles point, you know 99 percent of

         14  your testimony is so positive, but I need to pick up

         15  on the one percent, and you do say many of these

         16  on-road vehicles, specifically gasoline powered and

         17  subject to emission standard, many does not mean

         18  all, and I take it that means there probably are

         19  some diesel vehicles involved, and that's not the

         20  subject of this bill, but certainly I want to follow

         21  up on that with you in subsequent conversations so

         22  we can have a universal diesel reduction program.

         23                 MR. LOMBARDI: I'll be happy to.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So, with

         25  that then, Madam Chair pro-tem, I'll defer my
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          2  questioning.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

          4  As you see the Chair has improved tremendously in

          5  beauty. I'll leave it there -- oh, and in gender.

          6  Big improvement in gender.

          7                 Madeline Wils, Richard Muller, and

          8  Michael Kadish. I hope that I pronounced the names

          9  of everybody correctly, and that you would not

         10  disagree with the improvement of the Chair.

         11                 You look very nice, Madeline. And

         12  welcome one more time here. And we're going to swear

         13  you in like we traditionally do in these Chambers,

         14  okay?

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         16  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         17  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         18  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. MULLER: I do.

         20                 MR. KADISH: I do.

         21                 MS. WILS: Thank you.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Go ahead.

         23                 MS. WILS: She is much improved --

         24  sorry.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Repeat what
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          2  you said.

          3                 MS. WILS: I said she is much improved

          4  over the last chair in her good looks. And as long

          5  as you will compliment me, I will certainly return

          6  it. Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Gerson, as I ran into

          8  the Chamber --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I have never

         10  received any such compliments, Madeline, but we'll

         11  overlook that for now.

         12                 MS. WILS: As I ran into the Chamber,

         13  after fighting the UN traffic and then fighting the

         14  traffic of the democratic debate, I came in, sat

         15  down and took this out of my purse, and took a

         16  couple of puffs of it, and I didn't put it back

         17  because I wanted to show you that this is my asthma

         18  medication, and I've been using this since 9/11.

         19  Case closed.

         20                 I guess what I'm trying to say is

         21  that we all know that the EPA lied to us in saying

         22  the air was safe after 9/11. We lived not only with

         23  five months of the fires burning at the World Trade

         24  Center, but we lived with the unbuilding of the

         25  World Trade Center, and hundreds and hundreds of
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          2  trucks from everywhere, the oldest trucks imaginable

          3  coming down to take the molten metal out, and then

          4  one of the worst situations was the debris, the main

          5  debris barge was on Harrison Street, and certainly

          6  Council Member Gerson knows this rather well, it was

          7  next to several schools, across the street from a

          8  Mitchell-Lama complex, and the line-up of the trucks

          9  and the emissions of the diesel fuel make so many

         10  people in that area sick, additionally ill.

         11                 I worked with Carl Johnson, the

         12  Deputy Commissioner of DEC, from approximately

         13  December probably of 2001, I think when this ended

         14  in May of 2002. Actually we got the barge out in May

         15  of 2002, but it took, the State government agreed

         16  that we should put catalytic converters, use low

         17  sulfur fuels on all the trucks that were being used

         18  to cart out the debris from the World Trade Center

         19  going on to the barge at Pier 25 on Harrison Street,

         20  but it took them six months to be able to identify a

         21  low sulfur fuel provider, and by the time he did

         22  identify it, we didn't need it anymore for this

         23  particular project. So, I think this just goes to

         24  show that I think that I'm not an expert, I won't

         25  pretend to be an expert in this area, but somehow
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          2  there has to be some way of incentivizing these

          3  providers of low sulfur fuel and somehow in the

          4  redevelopment of the World Trade Center site, and

          5  all the areas around it from 14th Street down,

          6  including Battery Park City, and all the -- I mean,

          7  when you think we're going to have literally

          8  millions of square feet of building in just a few

          9  blocks at the same time, and I think there has to be

         10  a way that the Port Authority, Silverstein, MTA,

         11  Battery Park City, that everyone figures out a way

         12  to bulk buy this fuel, probably together, and be

         13  able to create some sort of packaging that can get

         14  it cheaper, because it's expensive, and then can

         15  incentivize some providers to get it there on time

         16  and get enough of it there.

         17                 Certainly this is a piece of

         18  legislation that my community embraces. We have

         19  suffered tremendously. We did a poll last May, a

         20  survey that was conducted by Bloom and Weprin,

         21  approximately 76 percent of the people who live

         22  below Canal Street after 9/11 suffered from

         23  pulmonary problems. That's an enormous amount that's

         24  three-quarters of the people, and 31 percent still

         25  suffer from pulmonary problems.
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          2                 So, this is something that won't go

          3  away. We cannot do anything to exacerbate the

          4  situation any further. These people are vulnerable,

          5  we're all vulnerable, so, I want to congratulate you

          6  on putting forth this piece of legislation and we

          7  wholeheartedly support it, and thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Mr. Kadish.

          9                 MR. KADISH: Thank you.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         11                 MR. MULLER: Good afternoon, Madam

         12  Chair Pro-Tem, and staff of the Committee. My name

         13  is Richard Muller, and I am pleased to deliver the

         14  comments of Manhattan Borough President, C. Virginia

         15  Fields, on proposed Intro. No. 191-A.

         16                 Borough President Fields supports

         17  this Committee in its efforts to improve Manhattan's

         18  air quality by requiring non-road construction

         19  vehicles, and what's not in the written testimony,

         20  it should also say and non-road engines, such as

         21  emergency back-up generators to burn cleaner fuel

         22  and control emissions with the best available

         23  technology.

         24                 Just two weeks ago the Borough

         25  President was at a rally protesting the opening of
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          2  another MTA bus depot, the six of a total seven in

          3  Manhattan, north of 96th Street.

          4                 So she is no stranger to the burdens

          5  of community afflicted with the highest asthma rates

          6  in the country suffered, Lower Manhattan has

          7  suffered great burdens of another catastrophic sort,

          8  that is why we must now do all we can to minimize

          9  pollution from all mobile sources, whether from

         10  cars, trucks, ferries, school buses or construction

         11  vehicles sooner rather than later.

         12                 The Borough President wants to see

         13  downtown rebuilt as quickly as possible in the

         14  context of proper planning. This means that we

         15  should not wait for the federal government to

         16  promulgate new standards for emissions, a process

         17  that at best will phase in over six years, seven

         18  years, ten years. In fact, with legislation such as

         19  that proposed here, New York City can be at the

         20  forefront and a model for local application of

         21  coming standards that everyone agrees unnecessary

         22  for the health of the nation.

         23                 The requirement that City vehicles

         24  comply with the proposed standards is an important

         25  step toward making the City's fleet environmentally
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          2  sound.

          3                 Borough President Fields believes

          4  that New York should be a model in this regard as

          5  well. The proposed oversight and monitoring

          6  provisions are also important features in part

          7  because the technology of emissions control is

          8  evolving.

          9                 Borough President Fields thanks the

         10  supporters of the proposed Intro 191-A and the

         11  sponsors, as well as the Committee, for their

         12  initiative in protecting the millions of people who

         13  live and work in the Borough of Manhattan. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, if

         16  I may, although I must note for the record that

         17  Borough President Fields, and to Rick Muller in

         18  particular, of course our own community board Chair

         19  Madeline Wils have been absolutely in the forefront

         20  of the environmental movement in Lower Manhattan

         21  from the very, very, very beginning. They all have

         22  been absolutely heroic in their efforts and I want

         23  to acknowledge that for the record, and I want to

         24  acknowledge that to the Borough President from the

         25  very beginning and Rick Muller has provided his own
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          2  technical expertise in the work that has

          3  precipitated this particular piece of legislation,

          4  and we appreciate Mr. Muller's great expertise.

          5  We're lucky to have him as a resource.

          6                 I also want to, Mr. Chair, permission

          7  to declare the next witness, as we do in the court

          8  room, as a hostile witness. He, in fact, used to

          9  work, Mr. Kadish, previously work for the City

         10  Council, in fact, in the Office of District 1, and

         11  then he recently left to go to work for the Borough

         12  President of Brooklyn, and I think that certainly

         13  qualifies him as a hostile witness, but in all

         14  seriousness, Michael Kadish, before he left, for all

         15  good reasons, worked extensively on this legislation

         16  and the environmental work of our office, and I

         17  would be remiss if I did not say that we do not miss

         18  his presence but we're lucky that he's still serving

         19  the public in his current capacity, and this bill

         20  reflects in grave part his outstanding work and

         21  contribution.

         22                 So, I have some tough questioning

         23  ahead, but I'm looking forward to hearing from Mr.

         24  Kadish.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2  Please proceed with your testimony.

          3                 MR. KADISH: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's a pleasure

          5  to have all of you.

          6                 MR. KADISH: Before I begin, I'd like

          7  to thank the Chair for this. I'd like to thank

          8  Council Member Gerson for this opportunity and for

          9  the opportunity to work on the bill previously, and

         10  I'd especially like to thank the staff of the

         11  Environmental Committee, particularly Richard Colon,

         12  and Donna DeCostanzo, who I know worked long, long,

         13  long hours on this bill and received many phone

         14  calls. Thank you.

         15                 Good afternoon. I am Michael Kadish,

         16  Deputy Director of Communications and Policies for

         17  Brooklyn Borough President Marty Markowitz.

         18                 The Borough President regrets that he

         19  is not able to attend but on his behalf I am pleased

         20  to have this opportunity to read his testimony in

         21  support of Intro. 191-A, to require the use of

         22  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel and best available

         23  technology by non-road vehicles in City

         24  construction.

         25                 Borough President Markowitz strongly
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          2  urges the Council to pass this legislation, because

          3  this is not an issue that just affects Lower

          4  Manhattan, but it affects all of New York City and

          5  it particularly affects Brooklyn, because it too

          6  long suffered from poor air quality. Asthma rates in

          7  North Brooklyn communities, such as Bushwick and

          8  Williamsburg are among the worst in the City. Indeed

          9  they are among the worst in the nation.

         10                 In his opinion, this is just not

         11  acceptable, the City should be doing everything it

         12  can to reduce levels of dangerous pollutants in the

         13  air we breathe.

         14                 The Borough President is justifiably

         15  proud of the new development going on in Brooklyn.

         16  Our borough is growing, attracting new residents,

         17  new businesses and new energy. The development must

         18  be guided to ensure that it benefits communities and

         19  improves the quality of life for Brooklynites.

         20                 One of the most important qualities

         21  we can fight for is our health. That's why we're in

         22  favor of this legislation.

         23                 The marginal expense of using

         24  ultra-low sulfur diesel and retrofitting equipment

         25  is certainly worth it, as it will help guarantee
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          2  that construction in Brooklyn has the least harmful

          3  impact possible on our quality and on our health.

          4                 Regular diesel emissions, spew

          5  pollutants that are known to be carcinogenic,

          6  aggravate asthma and cause a host of other

          7  respiratory problems.

          8                 In turn these factors cause increased

          9  hospitalization, absenteeism from school, and even

         10  possibly death.

         11                 We should be doing everything we

         12  reasonably can to reduce these threats. The tragic

         13  circumstances tie in poor air quality and health

         14  together were underlined two weeks ago, when along

         15  with parents, educators, environmental and health

         16  experts, the Borough President visited PS 274 in

         17  Bushwick to demand that local ambient ozone

         18  monitoring begin immediately in Brooklyn.

         19                 As some of you may know, to those

         20  suffering from asthma, ozone is a dangerous and

         21  potentially deadly pollutant. I listened as the

         22  school principal reported that at 13 percent of our

         23  students has asthma, as well as the new parent

         24  coordinator and all of her children.

         25                 The sad fact is due to ozone,
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          2  particulate matter and other pollutants, Brooklyn

          3  neighborhoods, such as Bushwick and Williamsburg

          4  suffer from asthma hospitalization rates three times

          5  greater than New York City as a whole.

          6                 Of course, fuel burning industry,

          7  fuel-burning power plants and a large number of

          8  commercial trucks that travel daily to waste

          9  transfer stations in North Brooklyn are also

         10  culprits in spoiling our air. But regular diesel

         11  fuel, when burnt by construction equipment,

         12  contributes to this problem.

         13                 As we move forward in Brooklyn, we

         14  must keep in mind that development is done best when

         15  it treats people's health best. 191-A is an

         16  important step towards making this principle into a

         17  reality, I urge you to pass it and thank you for the

         18  opportunity to testify here today.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you very much for being here. I wish to echo all the

         21  kind sentiments and truthful sentiments of Council

         22  Member Gerson on the very good work of the Borough

         23  Presidents and of their most able and dedicated

         24  representative. So, thank you very much for being

         25  here and please give our best to the Borough
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          2  Presidents.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, in

          5  the interest of time I'll dispense my questioning,

          6  especially that of Mr. Kadish, but I reserve the

          7  right to recall the witness at a time most

          8  inconvenient to him. Thank you very much. And thank

          9  you Mr. Kadish and Mr. Muller for your great

         10  testimony and work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. And

         12  in the interest of moving things along, we're going

         13  to be creating some panels, and people should know

         14  that people who are paneled together, we're not

         15  doing that to indicate that the panelists on a

         16  particular panel represent each of the views or just

         17  in the interest of time to move things along. So,

         18  we'll hear from this next panel, will be Jeff Elmer

         19  of the General Contractors Association, and Dr.

         20  James Melius, New York State Labors Union, is that

         21  right?

         22                 To be followed by the next panel, so

         23  that panel can take a seat at the table. The next

         24  panel will be Dr. Melinda Treadwell, Dr. Schachter

         25  of the American Lung Association, and Joel Shufro of
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          2  NYCOSH. So that will be the panel to follow.

          3                 But right now we'll be hearing from

          4  Jeff Elmer and Dr. James Melius.

          5                 And, so, thank you both for being

          6  here. Thank you for your patience, and I appreciate

          7  your bearing with us, Counsel to Committee will

          8  administer the oath and you can proceed with your

          9  testimony.

         10                 I'm grateful also, I just will

         11  mention, I'm grateful for Frank McArdle's presence

         12  in the Chamber, I know he's a very busy guy and

         13  wanted to testify personally and didn't have the

         14  opportunity to do so, so we're sorry we did not get

         15  to him in time but he's of course the most ably

         16  represented by Mr. Elmer. So, Donna will give the

         17  oath and then you can proceed with your good

         18  testimony.

         19                 We'll listen to both statements and

         20  then question collectively.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         22  right hand. In the testimony you're about to give,

         23  do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

         24  truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. ELMER: Yes.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          3                 MR. ELMER: Okay, my name is Jeff

          4  Elmer, and I thank you for giving me the opportunity

          5  to address you on the matter of Intro. 191-A.

          6                 Can you hear me okay?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have a

          8  written statement?

          9                 MR. ELMER: Yes, I passed it out.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MR. ELMER: The General Contractors

         12  Association is representing the heavy construction

         13  industry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I want to make

         15  sure I have your statement in your hand before you

         16  begin.

         17                 MR. ELMER: Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I got it.

         19  I'm good.

         20                 MR. ELMER: We represented the heavy

         21  construction industry active in New York City since

         22  1909. Our members are engaged in the construction

         23  and reconstruction of the City's infrastructure.

         24                 Our members are instrumental in the

         25  clean-up at Ground Zero. They rebuilt the 1 and 9
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          2  train and are now rebuilding the Path Station. They

          3  will be involved in the investment in Lower

          4  Manhattan of the $4.5 billion that have been

          5  allocated for transportation infrastructure

          6  investment. They will also be directly effective on

          7  these projects and others around the City by the

          8  enactment of Intro. 191-A.

          9                 The heavy construction industry in

         10  New York City has already been involved in pilot

         11  projects underway in Lower Manhattan.

         12                 Urban and Moretrench, two companies

         13  active at World Trade Center Number 7, both report

         14  no adverse outcomes of the limited pilot in which

         15  they've been involved.

         16                 The heavy construction companies and

         17  our partners and the operating engineers that

         18  operate and maintain the equipment, look forward to

         19  working successfully on whatever next steps are

         20  taken.

         21                 There are some issues involved in the

         22  next steps.

         23                 Equipment in this marketplace is

         24  serviced by contractors self-fueling, in which the

         25  contractor operates his or her own refueling
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          2  operation for the equipment, or by supplier fueling

          3  in which a supplier fuels a vehicle.

          4                 Companies that sell fuel want to

          5  retain the ability to do so. So as programs go

          6  forward, distributors and suppliers must make

          7  available rack pick-up access for the self-fuelers.

          8  Contractors that engage suppliers or pick up at a

          9  rack want to have a choice of suppliers and not be

         10  locked into a sole source procurement situation.

         11                 Contractors, much like the City of

         12  New York try not to be locked into sole source

         13  procurement situations, because it's hard to judge

         14  the fairness of pricing and because the failure of

         15  the sole source to make a product available can

         16  expose the contractor to long project delays.

         17                 Contractors don't ever want to have

         18  an obligation that they cannot meet.

         19                 Both of these issues have to be

         20  addressed in any program that goes forward.

         21                 Contractors want a level playing

         22  field. They want everyone to play by the same rules.

         23  This makes it important that whatever goes forward

         24  meets that test and is legally sustainable.

         25                 With that in mind, the question of
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          2  legal conformance with this proposal is one the

          3  Council should address carefully. Just as we

          4  wouldn't want to go forward with any legislation

          5  that created a monopoly supplier situation, we

          6  wouldn't want to go forward with anything that was

          7  legally not sufficient.

          8                 We learned recently that the ability

          9  of local governments to enact legislation like

         10  Intro. 191-A is being contested before the United

         11  States Supreme Court in the new term, which starts

         12  next month.

         13                 Section 209-E of the Clean Air Act

         14  would appear to some people to bar local governments

         15  from requiring equipment retrofits or fuel usages

         16  that are not on the national schedule for the

         17  introduction of low sulfur diesels for on-road and

         18  off-road vehicles.

         19                 We've also been told that the product

         20  now sold as ultra low sulfur diesel is not in fact a

         21  diesel fuel at all, but kerosene with lubricity

         22  additives.

         23                 If that's the case, we don't want to

         24  be caught in the supplier conflict over whether or

         25  not the fuel supplies conform to the legislation
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          2  that you or others might enact.

          3                 The reduction of air pollutants is a

          4  goal that's important to all of us. The key for the

          5  heavy construction industry is to manage the

          6  reductions on a fair playing field that can

          7  withstand any tests.

          8                 I've tried to identify a few concerns

          9  that we think need to be addressed to assure that

         10  the playing field is level, and so that we don't end

         11  up with a program that creates a sole source

         12  circumstance for one fuel supplier, or that

         13  unnecessarily raises cost or that we end up with a

         14  program that cannot be sustained legally.

         15                 We stand ready to work with you on

         16  these and other issues. And one thing that you might

         17  consider to do is undertake a staff study now to

         18  learn the sulfur content of the fuels that are now

         19  being routinely used in New York City for on-road

         20  and off-road vehicles in construction.

         21                 This information should prove

         22  valuable as we move forward on this issue.

         23                 Thanks for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, Mr. Elmer, for your testimony.
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          2                 We'll hear the statement of Dr.

          3  Melius, and then sort of pose questions or comments

          4  to both of you.

          5                 DR. MELIUS: Thank you. Can you hear

          6  me okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Gotcha.

          8                 DR. MELIUS: I'm Dr. Jim Melius, I'm

          9  an occupational environmental health physician that

         10  worked for the Labors Union in a variety of

         11  capacities in New York City and New York State.

         12                 We represent over 40,000 construction

         13  laborers throughout the state, about half of them

         14  work in New York City and roughly half of those work

         15  with the contractors that Jeff Elmer and the General

         16  Contractors Association, and obviously you've been

         17  very involved in the past work and planned work in

         18  Lower Manhattan.

         19                 Our members, and we certainly

         20  recognize the hazards, health hazards, cancer and

         21  lung disease, both for people working around diesel

         22  exhaust, as well as those in the community, and

         23  therefore we're very supportive of the intent of

         24  this legislation, do feel that it will have some

         25  significant impact in terms of reducing exposures in
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          2  community and certainly reducing exacerbation of

          3  asthma and other respiratory diseases among people

          4  working, particularly during this large

          5  reconstruction effort that is underway.

          6                 We have, and I guess to go back, I

          7  want to try to briefly summarize, but the 99 percent

          8  is that we support. We have two sort of cautionary

          9  concerns about this, one is a more general public

         10  health concern, is that I think we all need to

         11  recognize that this legislation, just, you know, one

         12  part of what can be done in terms of preventing

         13  asthma, preventing environmental disease in the

         14  community, and should not be taken as sort of the

         15  cure-all for what needs to be done, any more than

         16  the removal of lead from fuel, gasoline, reduced

         17  lead exposures, but we still have significant

         18  problem from residential lead exposure.

         19                 Our other concern, which I think can

         20  be readily addressed in the legislation, is that

         21  there is not much experience using ultra low sulfur

         22  fuel. There's not much experience with retrofitting

         23  machinery and so forth with the various devices that

         24  would reduce these emissions.

         25                 Construction is a dangerous
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          2  occupation, and to some extent into the construction

          3  industry, we rely on this machinery to protect the

          4  lives and safety of our members. And, so, the

          5  reliability of this machinery, the reliability of

          6  retrofitted machinery, the use of ultra sulfur,

          7  ultra low sulfur fuel, really needs to be addressed

          8  in this legislation.

          9                 We need to make sure we have enough

         10  experience with it. The experience so far has been

         11  positive when it's been used, but that experience is

         12  very limited, it's really only the very limited

         13  extent so far, and we just want to make sure that

         14  that's addressed, I think very simply by providing

         15  some sort of clause in here that would allow for

         16  safety sensitive equipment, only if necessary that

         17  there be an exemption from the use of this on

         18  construction sites, would I think simply take care

         19  of that concern.

         20                 We also think it's important that

         21  some of the economic and practical concerns that

         22  Jeff Elmer just spoke to also be addressed. Simply

         23  because construction is a competitive industry. We

         24  don't want some sort of perversed economic incentive

         25  that would lead to the use of unsafe equipment, but
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          2  I think those can be readily addressed, and given

          3  that we would be very supportive of this

          4  legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 Let me just get into that a little

          8  bit. Yes, the last part of your statement, Dr.

          9  Melius, you indicated that there could potentially

         10  be some possible safety concerns, and if you could

         11  just elaborate very briefly on that, because we have

         12  to move along.

         13                 Do you have concerns that heavy

         14  construction equipment that was to be made to

         15  operate under ultra low sulfur diesel may pose some

         16  -- what kind of safety concerns do you see?

         17                 DR. MELIUS: The concerns is the

         18  reliability with the equipment. This equipment needs

         19  to operate constantly under fairly tight schedules

         20  and so forth, and we'd be worried about problems

         21  with equipment malfunctioning or stalling at an

         22  inappropriate time, when our members, or members of

         23  some of the other people working with equipment,

         24  their lives or safety would be at stake.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 DR. MELIUS: And this is particular

          3  concern with the retrofitting equipment. Newer

          4  equipment will be designed to handle these fuels,

          5  older equipment has to be retrofitted. As I said

          6  what we've heard so far has been very positive about

          7  it, seems to have worked well, we just need to make

          8  sure that we constantly monitor that. We already

          9  have provisions in the bill, that there be basically

         10  logs or records kept of any malfunctions. I think

         11  that's an excellent idea. That, you know, if

         12  necessary there could be some sort of a safety

         13  exemption, or safety sensitive exemption, for very

         14  limited types of equipment where this might be a

         15  concern.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Would you mind

         17  if I gave you a little homework?

         18                 We don't usually give out homework at

         19  hearings, but to the extent that you could, you

         20  know, put any recommendations or legislative

         21  language, suggestions, in and e-mail or letter to

         22  Counsel to the Committee, we certainly want to make

         23  sure that any valid safety concerns are spoken to

         24  and, you know, whatever we may do.

         25                 So, I just want to make sure that you
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          2  have all the contact information for the Counsel to

          3  the Committee, so that anything that you may want to

          4  provide to us would be, you know, considered and

          5  included as appropriate.

          6                 DR. MELIUS: We'd be glad to provide

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's good.

          9  We're making progress here.

         10                 Jeff, Mr. Elmer -- well, I know you

         11  as Jeff, I'm just going to call you Jeff, okay?

         12                 MR. ELMER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There we go.

         14                 You made a reference to the ability

         15  of local government to put forward legislation like

         16  this is being contested in the US Supreme Court, and

         17  that Section 209-E of the Clean Air Act I guess it

         18  is, would appear to bar some local government from

         19  requiring equipment retrofits -- I'm reading from

         20  your test here. Now, this I believe was spoken to

         21  by, or at least the Clean Air Act reference was

         22  spoken to by the people at EPA and they appear

         23  pretty sanguine that, like that was going to be

         24  okay. But I guess you may have a little bit of a

         25  difference of opinion?
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          2                 MR. ELMER: Well, I'm not an attorney,

          3  and I wouldn't --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Neither is Ray

          5  Werner.

          6                 MR. ELMER: I wouldn't want to

          7  contradict the EPA, but my understanding from a

          8  nationalist, the American Road and Transportation

          9  Builders Association, is that there has been a

         10  number of court decisions, I believe Texas may be

         11  one of them, perhaps Massachusetts, I don't remember

         12  where the local governments have done rules that

         13  were similar, not exactly the same but similar to

         14  the proposal that the Council is considering, and

         15  this association has gone to court and had the

         16  courts overturn those proposals, despite the EPA,

         17  the local EPA region saying that this was legal.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         19                 MR. ELMER: But the courts have, as I

         20  understand it, overturned those rulings, and my

         21  understanding is that the ARTBA is now going to be,

         22  and some other organizations are going to be at the

         23  Supreme Court in the next session in October on a

         24  similar case, so it will be interesting to see what

         25  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. This is

          3  certainly what Mr. Werner spoke to in the EPA

          4  regarding the Clean Air Act reference was not the

          5  other issue about the US Supreme Court and what may

          6  be going on there in the new term, it's a separate

          7  thing that requires --

          8                 MR. ELMER: No, I think we're talking

          9  about the same thing. I think the regional EPA is of

         10  the opinion that this is legal, and we're not going

         11  to take a position either way, we're not going to

         12  get involved in litigation of that kind, but I'm

         13  just letting the Committee know that my

         14  understanding is that these kinds of cases, that

         15  there is going to be a case before the Supreme Court

         16  that's similar next month.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 MR. ELMER: Okay?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20                 Yes, I recognize Council Member

         21  Gerson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Hi. Just a

         23  couple of brief follow-up points, Mr. Chair, to your

         24  lines of questioning.

         25                 To Mr. McArdle, is there a
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          2  distinction in the issue of preemption between

          3  retrofitting and fuel requirements.

          4                 MR. ELMER: Are you talking about the

          5  court case?

          6                 My understanding, again, from the

          7  American Road and Transportation Builders is that

          8  the court cases have usually dealt with the

          9  retrofitting requirements. I think the fuel

         10  requirements, as I understand from them, and this is

         11  not firsthand, is a little bit more of a gray area

         12  in the law. They have told us that the retrofitting

         13  requirements, they have been turned over in other

         14  places.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Have they told

         16  you that any fuel requirements have been turned

         17  over, have been overturned?

         18                 MR. ELMER: They say that some of them

         19  have, but that's, I guess they feel that hasn't been

         20  as clear, it hasn't been as clear cut.

         21                 Perhaps some other courts have upheld

         22  them, I don't know. I don't know that much about the

         23  ultra low --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And who is

         25  this that's giving you the information?
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          2                 MR. ELMER: The American Road and

          3  Transportation Builders Association, which is a

          4  trade association that operates out of Washington,

          5  D.C. And there are other organizations involved in

          6  this as well.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, we'll

          8  certainly follow-up with them.

          9                 MR. ELMER: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But we do have

         11  the federal branch charged with enforcing the law,

         12  saying that the City has a green light to do it,

         13  would be hard-pressed and then, you know, federal

         14  government is not very kind to giving up its

         15  preemptive powers or abilities, so I'm very curious

         16  to see these specific cases. They may have been

         17  raised under different fact circumstances or

         18  different legislative circumstances than we face

         19  today. That does make a difference.

         20                 Just I was going back to an earlier

         21  part of your testimony with self-fueling, you know,

         22  you say companies that self-fuel want to retain the

         23  ability to do so. There's nothing in the bill that I

         24  could think of that would deny them that ability,

         25  but is there anything we need to add to enhance that
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          2  ability, or to sustain it or?

          3                 MR. ELMER: I don't think in the bill.

          4  I think the issue, the concern that we're trying to

          5  raise is that to the best of my knowledge there is

          6  only one supplier in the market right now, and that

          7  supplier is going to need to be able to allow

          8  contractors to either sell fuel, or they're going to

          9  be able to, they're going to need to be able to make

         10  some of the supply available at what we call the

         11  rack at fueling stations.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think there

         13  actually is a second supplier that has recently

         14  entered, and certainly one of the objectives of the

         15  legislation is to promote additional suppliers, and

         16  we do have language that I think your association

         17  was helpful in crafting to allow for exemptions in

         18  the event that there were no suppliers.

         19                 MR. ELMER: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But we'll

         21  certainly pursue that.

         22                 MR. ELMER: Well, we have the same

         23  interest as the Council does in promoting

         24  competition, and if there are more suppliers, that's

         25  going to take us a long way down toward making this
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          2  legislation work.

          3                 If there's only one supplier even if

          4  you legislate this, it's just not going to work for

          5  anybody.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. In the

          7  interest of time, I just want to say to Dr. Melius

          8  that, you know, when you have a professor as Chair

          9  of the Committee you sometimes wind up with

         10  homework, but I certainly do look forward to your

         11  input and certainly make the commitment that we want

         12  to work with you to assure that as we improve

         13  environmental requirements, we maintain or even

         14  improve, I would be interested in finding ways of

         15  improved safety requirements along with the

         16  requirements of this bill. I don't think, I do not

         17  want to sacrifice one for the other. We need to do

         18  both, and I am confident there are ways that we can

         19  do both, and I would look forward to working with

         20  you to achieving that.

         21                 DR. MELIUS: We agree, and we would

         22  like to achieve both also, so we appreciate it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Then we will.

         24  Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,
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          2  Council Member Gerson. Thank you. Thank you,

          3  gentlemen.

          4                 Okay, as I previously announced,

          5  we're going to hear from Joel Shufro from NYCOSH;

          6  Dr. Schachter of the American Lung Association; Dr.

          7  Melinda Treadwell, of the Northeast States for

          8  Coordinated Air Use Management.

          9                 To be followed by the next panel,

         10  David Park from NESCAUM; and Guido Schattanek.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         12  right hand.

         13                 In the testimony that you're about to

         14  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         15  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 DR. TREADWELL: I do.

         18                 DR. SCHACHTER: I do.

         19                 MR. SHUFRO: I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21  Please state your names for the record and proceed

         22  with your testimony, and thank you very much for

         23  being here, thank you for your patience. Thank you

         24  for what I know will be -- thank you for your valued

         25  contribution.
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          2                 However you want to proceed. Okay,

          3  Joel, you're on.

          4                 MR. SHUFRO: My name is Joel Shufro.

          5  I'm the Executive Director for the New York

          6  Committee for Occupational Safety and Health,

          7  NYCOSH, a non-profit coalition of 250 local unions,

          8  and 400 health, legal and medical professionals in

          9  the New York metropolitan area dedicated to the

         10  elimination of workplace hazards.

         11                 I am here to lend our voice today to

         12  the call for lowered diesel emissions, and to

         13  compliment the Council for moving forward on this

         14  important legislation.

         15                 Currently more than 1 million workers

         16  are exposed to diesel exhaust, however, due to

         17  expanding use of diesel equipment, increasing

         18  numbers of workers are exposed to exhaust, face the

         19  risk of adverse health effects, ranging from

         20  headaches and nausea to cancer and respiratory

         21  disease.

         22                 Reconstruction of the World Trade

         23  Center will take several years, and the site will

         24  teem with diesel engines protecting the lives of the

         25  men and women who will live and work at this

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  historic site is imperative and important.

          3                 This proposal will require diesel

          4  equipment, operating at or near the World Trade

          5  Center site to meet higher air quality standards,

          6  drastically reducing the sulfur content of fuel and

          7  using new technology to filter toxic particulate

          8  matter and other dangerous pollutants.

          9                 It is a crucial move toward

         10  protecting the health and workers and residents of

         11  Lower Manhattan and ultimately the entire City of

         12  New York.

         13                 Non-road vehicles that operate at

         14  construction sites have much looser regulations than

         15  highway diesel engines. They use fuel that contains

         16  average sulfur levels of 3,300 parts per million at

         17  more than 200 times higher than the 2006 national

         18  limit for highway diesel engines. They are

         19  responsible for almost half of the emissions of

         20  diesel particulate matter, and this portion is

         21  increasing as highway engines become cleaner.

         22                 The health consequences of exposure

         23  to diesel exhaust are well known. In 2002, the US

         24  Environmental Protection Agency issued an evaluation

         25  of hazards of working around diesel exhaust, which
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          2  concluded that exposure can make existing allergies

          3  and asthma worse and may cause lung damage or pose a

          4  lung cancer risk.

          5                 The exhaust consists of very small

          6  particulate matter, particulates that can be inhaled

          7  and deposited deep in the lungs. Diesel exhaust

          8  contains 20 to 100 times more particulates than

          9  gasoline exhaust, and these particulates carry

         10  cancer-causing substances which have been discussed

         11  earlier. And there are a wide range of other

         12  chemicals on substances to which workers are exposed

         13  from this particulate matter.

         14                 You will hear testimony from members

         15  of this panel, which have found that from research

         16  done in 2002 and 2003 that diesel activity

         17  substantially increased fine particulate matter,

         18  exposure for workers and nearby residents, in some

         19  cases as much as 16 times.

         20                 Also, the study by the Northeast

         21  States For Coordinated Air Use Management, found

         22  that equipment operators exposure to particulate

         23  matter exceeded national ambient air quality

         24  standard by 1.9 to 3.5 times.

         25                 The same study found that elevated
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          2  levels of toxic metals in concentrations of benzene

          3  and formaldehyde were sometimes 140 times higher

          4  than federally established screening threshold for

          5  cancer risk.

          6                 Men and women who work around heavy

          7  machinery have elevated risk of illness. The

          8  Building and Construction Trades Department of the

          9  AFL-CIO, and the International Union of Operating

         10  Engineers strongly support the proposal to raise

         11  standards for lower emissions of all diesel engines.

         12                 We are attaching testimony submitted

         13  by the Building and Construction Trades Department

         14  of the AFL-CIO, documenting the health risks to

         15  construction workers and their support for reduced

         16  diesel emissions.

         17                 They also support regulations to

         18  retrofit existing equipment with filters, a move

         19  that would protect workers' health without

         20  overburdening employers economically.

         21                 The costs of making these changes are

         22  manageable and the benefits are substantial. Simply

         23  switching to ultra-low sulfur fuel could decrease

         24  the levels of fine particulate matter in the air by

         25  ten to 20 percent, but more importantly, low sulfur
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          2  fuel allows construction vehicles to be fitted with

          3  after treatment technologies, like particulate

          4  filters and oxidation catalysts.

          5                 The sulfur and diesel fuel clogs

          6  filters and harms catalytic converters. With filters

          7  and emission control technology, the industry could

          8  further reduce particulate matter in exhaust by 90

          9  percent.

         10                 These dramatic improvements in air

         11  quality would have immediate and far-reaching

         12  benefit. Literally within just a few days of

         13  implementation, children and adults with asthma

         14  could breathe with more ease, and fewer would make

         15  trips to the hospital.

         16                 A joint report published this year by

         17  the American Lung Association and Environmental

         18  Defense Fund claims there is a correlation, a direct

         19  correlation, between hospital emissions and

         20  particulate pollution.

         21                 The long-term benefits of this

         22  legislation would be even more profound.

         23                 The recent study of particulate air

         24  pollution found that chronic exposure and fine

         25  particles can shorten lives by one to three years.
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          2  People with extensive exposure, like dock workers

          3  and heavy machine operators and maintenance garage

          4  workers would live longer and be less likely to die

          5  of lung cancer and heart problems.

          6                 Health problems related to diesel

          7  exhaust exposure force many people to miss time at

          8  work and school. Controlling particulate emissions,

          9  nitrogen oxide emissions and other pollutants could

         10  recover a significant portion of the 1 million work

         11  days lost each year to diesel pollution.

         12                 The Natural Resources Defense Council

         13  estimates that the national cost of these

         14  regulations, or excuse me, that implementation of

         15  the stringent regulations would save $78 billion in

         16  social expenditure.

         17                 High air quality standards have

         18  proven to be attainable, effective and affordable in

         19  Europe, where diesel exhaust was regulated soon

         20  after several international health agencies

         21  determined it was a probable human carcinogen.

         22  California already demands the same lowered sulfur

         23  levels of non-road engine fuel as road vehicles.

         24                 In New York we have the opportunity

         25  to demonstrate our commitment to health and leave
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          2  the City, state and nation to a cleaner and safer

          3  future.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Joel,

          6  I appreciate you being here and the good work of

          7  NYCOSH.

          8                 We'll just have everyone do their

          9  statement and then we'll pose questions to the whole

         10  panel.

         11                 The light is off, mic is on.

         12                 DR. SCHACHTER: Can you hear me?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, gotcha.

         14                 DR. SCHACHTER: Okay, Councilman

         15  Gennaro, good afternoon, and thank you for allowing

         16  us to speak this afternoon.

         17                 My name is Dr. Neil Schachter, and

         18  I'm Medical Director of the Respiratory Care

         19  Department and Professor of Medicine at the Mount

         20  Sinai School of Medicine.

         21                 I'm also a member of the Board of

         22  Directors of the American Lung Association of the

         23  City of New York, and a past president of that

         24  organization.

         25                 The American Lung Association of the
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          2  City of New York, for more than 100 years has fought

          3  for lung health, including the fight for cleaner

          4  air.

          5                 Today, on behalf of the American Lung

          6  Association of the City of New York, I am pleased to

          7  represent New York City Asthma Partnership, a

          8  coalition of more than 100 government agencies,

          9  academic institutions, medical centers, and

         10  community-based organizations that have united in

         11  this partnership to fight asthma.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity of

         13  being here today.

         14                 I am pleased to offer the American

         15  Lung Association of the City of New York, as well as

         16  New York City's Asthma Partnership Coalition support

         17  for this legislation for lower emissions for

         18  non-road diesel engines and fuel.

         19                 We strongly support efforts to reduce

         20  the soot and smog-forming emissions from heavy-duty

         21  diesel equipment, and in the next few minutes, I'd

         22  like to highlight the health importance of this

         23  proposal.

         24                 New Yorkers are exposed to some of

         25  the most unhealthful air polluting levels in the
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          2  country. For the fourth year in a row, the American

          3  Lung Association State of the Air Report, found that

          4  every borough monitored for ozone and the

          5  surrounding counties in Connecticut, Long Island and

          6  New Jersey failed our clean air test.

          7                 Richmond County or Staten Island

          8  consistently has the most number of days where ozone

          9  is above federal health standards of any county in

         10  the State.

         11                 The toll of poor air is an enormous

         12  burden on the health of a City already struggling to

         13  breathe. An estimated 5 million New York City

         14  residents have suffered from lung disease in their

         15  lifetime. Air pollution is particularly burdensome

         16  for those with lung disease, as well as for young

         17  children, the elderly, and those working and

         18  exercising outdoors. This City is not breathing

         19  easy.

         20                 Children are particularly susceptible

         21  to the effects of air pollution, since they breathe

         22  55 percent more air per pound of body weight than do

         23  adults.

         24                 Moreover, exposure to harmful

         25  pollutants in high concentrations may actually
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          2  disrupt the normal development of lung tissue,

          3  robbing children of lung capacity as they reach

          4  adulthood.

          5                 New York City is in the middle of an

          6  asthma epidemic, and the mere act of breathing can

          7  put the 1 million asthmatics, 300,000 of them

          8  children, at severe risk for health complications.

          9                 In some neighborhoods, such as

         10  Harlem, nearly 25 percent of children are living

         11  with this debilitating lung disease.

         12                 The City has among the highest asthma

         13  prevalence and mortality rates in the nation for

         14  asthma, and the burden of illness is widespread.

         15                 Asthma is the number one reason for

         16  school absenteeism and entire families suffer loss

         17  of productivity and quality of life when caring for

         18  a family member who has a chronic illness.

         19                 In addition to these indirect

         20  expenses, asthma places a direct financial burden on

         21  the community.

         22                 In the Year 2000 there were nearly

         23  27,000 asthma-related hospitalizations in New York

         24  City, which resulted in more than $242 million in

         25  medical expenses, an average of $9,000 per
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          2  hospitalization.

          3                 Of this total expense, Medicaid

          4  covered 50 percent and Medicare 23 percent. The

          5  fight against asthma rests in large part on the

          6  community's ability to reduce environmental triggers

          7  that can cause asthma exacerbations, of which poor

          8  air quality is a key factor.

          9                 Ozone is the main component of smog,

         10  or a main component of smog, and often triggers

         11  asthma episodes, shortens the breath, chest pain

         12  when inhaling deeply, wheezing and coughing.

         13                 Long-term exposure can permanently

         14  damage lung tissue and results in the loss of lung

         15  function.

         16                 From a health perspective,

         17  particulate matter is as bad as those other

         18  components of smog. Fine particulates become lodged

         19  deep in the lung, causing asthma attacks, wheezing,

         20  coughing and respiratory irritation.

         21                 Over time these particles have been

         22  shown to shorten human life span. The Natural

         23  Resources Defense Council estimates that fine

         24  particles cause an estimated 40,000 premature deaths

         25  nationally, and about 4,000 deaths in New York State
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          2  alone.

          3                 It is clear, diesel pollution is as

          4  bad for our health as it looks and smells. We know

          5  that it contains more than 40 different toxic

          6  chemicals, many of which are known to be

          7  carcinogenic, such as arsenic and benzene.

          8                 With every passing day we learn more

          9  about the health threat posed by diesel pollution.

         10                 Over the past three decades progress

         11  has been made to clean up the nation's diesel fleet.

         12  However, non-road diesel engines continue to be

         13  extremely dirty and cause much of New York City's

         14  diesel threat.

         15                 The fuel in these engines remains

         16  largely unregulated, and as a result the poisonous

         17  sulfur content contributes to ozone and particulate

         18  matter is exceedingly high. It has gone unchecked

         19  too long.

         20                 While this legislation goes a long

         21  way towards reducing emissions from non-road

         22  vehicles, the American Lung Association of the City

         23  of New York, strongly urges that all non-road diesel

         24  engines be incorporated in this legislation, as they

         25  are equally powerful polluters.
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          2                 Currently this proposal, as we

          3  understand it, only addresses diesel engines used in

          4  non-road vehicles overlooking the engines that are

          5  used in non-vehicular applications, such as back-up

          6  electricity generators.

          7                 According to a report released by the

          8  Northeast States for Coordinated Air Use Management,

          9  15,000 stationary generators are currently operating

         10  in New York State, with over 1,700 in New York City.

         11                 Most disturbing, of the units in New

         12  York City, 84 percent are using diesel fuels and are

         13  estimated to be emitting nearly 9,000 tons of

         14  nitrous oxide and 295 tons of particulate matter per

         15  year.

         16                 We have an opportunity here today to

         17  make an impact on the lives of all New Yorkers by

         18  improving the air quality for New York City.

         19  Recognizing the health benefits this legislation

         20  offers, the American Lung Association of the City of

         21  New York is pleased to offer our support for Intro.

         22  191-A to reduce diesel exhaust emissions and to

         23  clean up diesel fuel.

         24                 Again, we strongly urge the

         25  incorporation of non-road engines into this
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          2  legislation to protect City residents from what is a

          3  significant source of air pollution within the City,

          4  and we encourage the Council to act swiftly to pass

          5  this bill, so that we can all begin to breathe

          6  easier.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Dr.

          8  Schachter. I appreciate your testimony very much. I

          9  appreciate it.

         10                 I'm going to talk to you in a minute

         11  about your non-road engine thing, we just want to

         12  proceed with all the testimony from the panel first.

         13                 DR. TREADWELL: Thank you very much.

         14  I've provided copies of the slides that I'll be

         15  presenting.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 DR. TREADWELL: And I'm presenting

         18  excerpts of those slides today in the interest of

         19  time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is this it?

         21                 DR. TREADWELL: It is, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would just ask

         23  you to state your name for the record.

         24                 DR. TREADWELL: Certainly.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And give your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 DR. TREADWELL: My name is Dr. Melinda

          4  Treadwell, and I'm a senior toxicologist for the

          5  Northeast States for Coordinated Air Use Management,

          6  and in fact the testimony I'll provide today is

          7  regarding the study that was referenced by the

          8  panelists here today, of which I was the principal

          9  investigator.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 DR. TREADWELL: I'm pleased to

         12  represent specifically the State of New York, the

         13  Department of Environmental Conservation here today,

         14  but also the entirety of the Northeast Region.

         15  NESCAUM is a multi-state non-profit group, which

         16  provides technical policy insight for the States of

         17  New England, New York and New Jersey, and we applaud

         18  this initiative that you're putting forth today, and

         19  as we'll hope to demonstrate the effort to reduce

         20  emissions from diesel engines, particularly the

         21  non-road sector, is a critical need, and your

         22  exposure reductions will be very significant and

         23  very important from this bill.

         24                 NESCAUM is an association of air

         25  quality division representatives. We also work
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          2  hand-in-hand with a number of public health

          3  agencies, and we work primarily to assist the states

          4  with compliance with federal regulation, otherwise

          5  you'll hear from my testimony today and from my

          6  colleague David Park, we also tried to move beyond

          7  federal regulation when necessary and clearly a

          8  large thrust of our focus at this time is with

          9  respect to diesel.

         10                 We are organized into a number of

         11  teams. I am a team leader of the public health team.

         12  There are six toxicologists who work with me at

         13  NESCAUM, and I'm here representing their work as

         14  well.

         15                 We also have a science and technology

         16  team, and the mobile source and the stationary

         17  source team of which David Park will be representing

         18  shortly in his testimony.

         19                 To reiterate a bit of the importance

         20  of the diesel engine on air quality impacts in the

         21  northeast region and specifically in the urban

         22  environment of New York City. We've heard a great

         23  deal today from colleagues at the Environmental

         24  Protection Agency, as well as my copanelists,

         25  regarding the emissions of oxides of nitrogen, which
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          2  can be very important for ozone, and also for a

          3  secondary particulate.

          4                 Also, diesel engines are known to

          5  emit a significant percentage of fine particulate

          6  matter, in fact, more than perhaps 95 percent of the

          7  particles emitted from diesel engines are the fine

          8  particulate matter size.

          9                 We estimate at this time that when we

         10  look at ambient particulate matter across the region

         11  and across the country, as referenced this morning

         12  by the EPA, that diesel engines themselves may

         13  contribute somewhere between four percent and over

         14  half of total ambient PM 2.5 emission inventory. So

         15  your efforts to control this source category are

         16  very critical.

         17                 As has been referenced already on

         18  this panel, diesel engines also emit not only the

         19  fine particulate, which will deliver itself deeply

         20  within the human lines, but a complex mixture of

         21  several organic hydrocarbons, many of which are

         22  known human carcinogens, as well as respiratory

         23  irritants, and may be very, very important when

         24  considering long-term health outcomes.

         25                 With respect to the non-road diesel
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          2  engine, we certainly have done some evaluations of

          3  emission inventories throughout the region, and

          4  we've identified through our work at NESCAUM that

          5  nitrogen oxide specifically, construction equipment

          6  in our region contributes as much as ten percent of

          7  our entire inventory of nitrogen oxide. Many times

          8  we think of power plants as being a prime source of

          9  emissions, and, in fact, in a recent study put forth

         10  by the Natural Resources Defense Council, non-road

         11  engines have been affiliated as second only to power

         12  plants with respect to emissions of gaseous

         13  constituents like nitrogen oxide or particulate

         14  matter.

         15                 With respect to fine particles, the

         16  non-road construction equipment has been identified

         17  to emit as much as 33 percent of our entire mobile

         18  source inventory of fine particles in the region.

         19  Beyond that, with respect to those volatile organic

         20  compounds that I mentioned of concern with respect

         21  to cancer and respiratory irritation, we know that

         22  the non-road motor vehicles fleet in the Year 2005

         23  will actually overtake gasoline-powered engines with

         24  respect to direct emissions of cancer-causing toxic

         25  air pollutants of concern.
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          2                 We also know that non-road engines at

          3  this time are our dominant source of primary

          4  emissions of the carcinogenic and irritant gases,

          5  acetaldehyde and formaldehyde, and I'll show you

          6  some data from our monitoring study on that in a

          7  moment.

          8                 These engines, the non-road sector

          9  specifically emit somewhere between 72 percent and

         10  90 percent of our entire emissions fleet.

         11                 And with respect to mobile source

         12  particulate matter in year two-thousand --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I can jump in

         14  there?

         15                 DR. TREADWELL: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't want to

         17  ask too many questions during the actual

         18  presentation, I want to save that to the end, but 73

         19  to 90 percent of primary acetaldehyde and what?

         20                 DR. TREADWELL: Formaldehyde.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And

         22  formaldehyde, but would ultra low sulfur diesel make

         23  a big impact in that?

         24                 DR. TREADWELL: No. But your

         25  additional efforts for other best available control
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          2  technologies would.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

          4                 DR. TREADWELL: And David Park will

          5  mention some of the quantitative reductions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine.

          7                 DR. TREADWELL: So you'll get

          8  protection across the board.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right.

         10                 DR. TREADWELL: The ultra low sulfur,

         11  however, will attack the other last bullet on the

         12  slide, which is by the year 2010 we anticipate

         13  non-road diesel engines specifically to contribute

         14  70 percent of mobile source particulate, and so we

         15  do anticipate those reductions to be very, very

         16  helpful, to reduce this estimate.

         17                 We've already heard a great deal

         18  regarding the health impact.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Anything that we

         20  can just sort of skip past, that's fine, too.

         21                 DR. TREADWELL: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're trying to

         23  rock here.

         24                 DR. TREADWELL: Okay, I'll move right

         25  to my monitoring data for New York specifically. But
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          2  we already know of the health outcomes, and now what

          3  I'd like to do is give you some idea of what we

          4  measured in New York City, and also I'd be remiss if

          5  I didn't state that New York City was not alone,

          6  every non-road site we visited had these problems.

          7  You are the leader, and we hope to follow these

          8  initiatives elsewhere.

          9                 In our study that we conducted over

         10  the past year, we monitored five non-road

         11  construction or activity sites. This work was funded

         12  by the Environmental Protection Agency, and a group

         13  called Break-Through Technologies. I was the

         14  principal investigator at King State College, and

         15  then we had the University of Massachusetts and

         16  NESCAUM.

         17                 We worked at a small construction

         18  site in Keene, a modest size construction site also

         19  in New Hampshire, and the largest roadway

         20  construction project in New Hampshire, a lumber yard

         21  and a dairy farm and then we were at World Trade

         22  Center 7.

         23                 The monitoring results I'm about to

         24  present were gathered before the use of ultra-low

         25  fuel and the control technologies you'll hear from

                                                            141

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  shortly from David Park.

          3                 At this time we don't have all of our

          4  quality assured data, but we are developing three

          5  peer-reviewed articles for submission by the end of

          6  the year on these results.

          7                 What I'd like to do is focus your

          8  attention on some of the concentrations we observed

          9  in New York City, around the World Trade Center 7

         10  site. Again, this is pre-retrofit and low sulfur

         11  fuel. I'll show you a panel of gaseous pollutants,

         12  these are carcinogens and respiratory irritants.

         13  Also our ambient fine particulate matter that we

         14  collected and diesel particulate matter

         15  specifically, the levels that we saw and compare

         16  those with health thresholds.

         17                 In this panel I show concentrations

         18  that we measured at the World Trade Center site. The

         19  Y axis of this chart shows the concentration in the

         20  ambient air over the day that we sampled.

         21                 We has perimeter samples collected at

         22  the site, and then three pieces of equipment. The

         23  blue bar is acetyldehyde, the yellow bar is

         24  formaldehyde, which I've already referenced, and the

         25  purple bar that you see here is for benzene, a known
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          2  human carcinogen.

          3                 The black hash marks that you see at

          4  the bottom are the one in one-million cancer risk

          5  screening thresholds that are usually applied to

          6  stationary sources, to justify emission control

          7  reductions. So, the order of magnitude exceedence we

          8  see here is very significant.

          9                 For fine particulate matter, you've

         10  heard reference from EPA about their ambient air

         11  quality standard. The current 24-hour standard is 65

         12  micrograms per cubic meter. NESCAUM is currently

         13  preparing comments to submit to EPA during their

         14  review of this. We did not believe from a public

         15  health perspective the standard is adequately

         16  protective. We believe in fact that the standard

         17  should be lower, perhaps in the order of 15 to 24

         18  micrograms per cubic meter for a day.

         19                 The reason I raised this is to show

         20  you that in New York City, as well as in Keene, New

         21  Hampshire, and a few samples in the very rural site

         22  of Maine, we can see that at this time we exceed the

         23  current standard, for fine particulate matter, and

         24  some samples in New York, and if we were to move on

         25  a health basis to a lower 24 hour standard, we would
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          2  see non-road equipment significantly increasing and

          3  driving non-compliance with criteria-pollutant

          4  standards.

          5                 This is important, primarily when you

          6  look at these numbers, and realize that the levels

          7  in the ambient air outside that non-road

          8  construction site in New York averaged around 20. So

          9  you can see we double, or even beyond doubling the

         10  level of ambient PM 2.5 around a non-road site.

         11                 So, to show you some real time

         12  particulate monitoring data and how much it varies

         13  across the construction site, this was at World

         14  Trade Center 7, and what we see on these sites for

         15  the average concentration, it's 44 and 55 micrograms

         16  per cubic meter. Again, if we were to move that on a

         17  health basis below 30, we exceed the allowable

         18  standards near the non-road site.

         19                 For diesel, I just want to draw

         20  attention to this much more toxic compound, EPA has

         21  not finalized a standard with respect to cancer, but

         22  what they have adopted is a reference concentration

         23  for non-cancer health effects, for diesel exhaust,

         24  and recognize it's far more toxic than regular PM

         25  2.5 that we look at. Their standard for safety is
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          2  five micrograms per cubic meter, and included here

          3  are some occupational standards just to show the

          4  vast difference between what workers would be

          5  exposed to acceptably, and what our environmental

          6  standards would allow us and one of our other

          7  interests is reducing exposures for workers.

          8                 These are diesel particulate matter

          9  specifically, black carbon samples collected at the

         10  World Trade Center 7 site, and we can see here that

         11  the average diesel particulate concentration

         12  exposure to workers and nearby residents, exceeds

         13  the 5 microgram per cubic standard that EPA has

         14  adopted, and it various significantly throughout the

         15  course of the data. This data is very representative

         16  at all sites that we visited with non-road

         17  equipment.

         18                 So, in conclusion, in all five

         19  locations we visited certainly New York which I

         20  presented specific data on, diesel equipment

         21  substantially increased fine PM. Average

         22  concentrations, as one of my copanelists identified,

         23  were between one and 16 times greater than you'd

         24  normally see as a direct result of the non-road

         25  activity.
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          2                 The concentrations of gaseous

          3  pollutants were several hundred times greater than

          4  what we would consider safe for cancer, and

          5  concentrations of toxic metals have varied as well,

          6  particularly nickel, maganese and Vanadium, which we

          7  are continuing to investigate.

          8                 The occupational exposures are well

          9  above the safe limits from EPA's perspective, and

         10  we're in the process of discussion with AFL-CIO and

         11  other labor interests to try to reduce these

         12  occupational standards.

         13                 And I'll close with why not await

         14  federal requirements in support of your bill. At

         15  this time the EPA requirements will be phased in

         16  over the Year 2008 and 2014. What we know for

         17  non-roads construction equipment is these vehicles

         18  can last several decades, two to three decades in

         19  the field.

         20                 What that will mean is new fuels and

         21  engine technologies will not likely be in the field

         22  for decades to come, and the after market emission

         23  controls and cleaner fuels that you're proposing in

         24  this bill will mean exposure reductions immediately,

         25  and this is a quote from Sir Bradford Hill, which is
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          2  particularly relevant with respect to diesel health

          3  effects, and I think supportive of your bill, which

          4  is that we'll never really know directly how potent

          5  diesel is, we'll debate it for years to come. We

          6  still debate our asbestos, the idea here is that we

          7  may need to move in advance of an absolute

          8  scientific certainty to try to reduce exposures and

          9  improve public health.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 I appreciate your comprehensive

         14  testimony and also, you know, you being so gracious

         15  to come down here from Boston. I really appreciate

         16  that very much. Let me just speak to each of the

         17  panel members I guess in order.

         18                 I want to be brief because we still

         19  have a lot more to go.

         20                 Joel, you indicate that California

         21  already demands the same low sulfur fuels of

         22  non-road engine fuels as road vehicles; how long has

         23  that been in place?

         24                 MR. SHUFRO: I don't know when they

         25  instituted it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But it is the

          3  case now in California that they currently require

          4  that.

          5                 MR. SHUFRO: According to the EPA

          6  report I read today, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And do you know

          8  what their experiences are, the experience has been?

          9  Obviously they're doing it, it's policy.

         10                 MR. SHUFRO: They're doing it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: In California,

         12  making that demand is it just for government

         13  vehicles, or is it all vehicles?

         14                 MR. SHUFRO: Once again, I don't know

         15  the answer to that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 MR. SHUFRO: I can provide you that

         18  information.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Well, take

         20  a look at that, because, you know, California is a

         21  pretty big state, and we'll take a look at their

         22  experience to help bolster our own case.

         23                 Dr. Schachter, I thank you for urging

         24  us to incorporate, you know, non-road engines.

         25  Certainly we'll take a close look at what non-road
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          2  engines contribute, and perhaps, you know, we should

          3  look to expand this beyond just the vehicles.

          4                 Certainly it's your contention that

          5  these -- I mean in non-road engines we're talking

          6  back-up diesel generators, what other kinds of

          7  devices are we talking about?

          8                 DR. SCHACHTER: Anything that uses

          9  diesel fuel that's non-vehicular, in other words,

         10  that doesn't move.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. What

         12  would that be?

         13                 DR. SCHACHTER: Pumps.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. I see,

         15  yes.

         16                 DR. SCHACHTER: Any equipment that's

         17  used in a construction site that uses diesel fuel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Okay,

         19  yeah. And so, we always try to be inclusive in this

         20  institution, right?

         21                 DR. SCHACHTER: Well, it seems like a

         22  perfect opportunity, this is not so distant that

         23  it's illogical to marry the two together.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         25                 And Dr. Treadwell, I certainly
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          2  appreciate -- so, we have all of the slides that you

          3  have, right?

          4                 DR. TREADWELL: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: On this copy.

          6                 DR. TREADWELL: I'd be happy to

          7  provide an electronic copy as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

          9                 DR. TREADWELL: I'd be happy to

         10  provide an electronic copy, if they're hard to view,

         11  and we have a website you could access as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That would be

         13  terrific, yes. If you could make sure that's

         14  available to Committee staff.

         15                 DR. TREADWELL: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We want to make

         17  this case. We want to use every conceivable argument

         18  and angle, pie chart, everything that we could sort

         19  of throw in the mix to make the strongest case.

         20                 DR. TREADWELL: If I may add one

         21  thing, sir?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         23                 DR. TREADWELL: I did provide a copy

         24  of the California Resources Board Risk Management

         25  Plan to the Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, yes.

          3                 DR. TREADWELL: That was in the Year

          4  2000 and it goes into discussion of the California

          5  Resources Board efforts to reduce diesel exposure,

          6  including low-sulfur fuel, and I think it will

          7  answer some of the questions regarding the diesel

          8  and the State of California's actions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 Just one question and I'll be -- I'll

         12  just read this question, and this will be for any of

         13  the panel.

         14                 Is there a direct link between

         15  particulate matter and the onset of asthma or is

         16  particulate matter associated only with the

         17  aggravation of asthma. I guess perhaps that's a

         18  question most appropriate for Dr. Schachter.

         19                 DR. SCHACHTER: Well, certainly as you

         20  indicate, there's no question that irritating

         21  material that's inhaled, especially small diameter

         22  material that can go to the smaller airways is

         23  irritating and can provoke exacerbations of existing

         24  asthma.

         25                 The questions of whether it causes
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          2  new onset asthma I think is very relevant to what's

          3  happened here, in the World Trade Center area, but I

          4  think we have some indication from industry, that

          5  syndromes like RADS, which is Reactive Airways

          6  Dysfunction Syndrome, which is the massive

          7  irritation of the airway by particulates and

          8  aerosols and gases can cause a syndrome

          9  indistinguishable from asthma, and so in principle,

         10  yes, it can.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How about

         12  ozones. The same questions to ozones?

         13                 DR. SCHACHTER: Ozone, again, is

         14  certainly a trigger, whether it's a cause of asthma,

         15  it's been postulated as that. I don't know that the

         16  data is as clear cut.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you

         18  all.

         19                 Council Member Gerson has very brief

         20  questions as well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think I'll

         22  be able to confine it to one to each, give everyone

         23  equal treatment. But thank you for your very

         24  impressive testimony, each of you.

         25                 Dr. Shufro, I just want to -- you and
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          2  your organization are involved in many different

          3  environmental and safety issues, pertaining to the

          4  work site activity.

          5                 Earlier, some concern was raised

          6  involving safety issues with respect to equipment

          7  using low sulfur or equipment requiring

          8  retrofitting, I'd be curious as to any thoughts you

          9  have as to how we can deal with those concerns, what

         10  additional provisions, if any, or in fact are they

         11  concerns?

         12                 MR. SHUFRO: I would suggest that the

         13  Committee contact the construction trade that were

         14  involved in the "big dig," in Boston, where there

         15  has been significant retrofitting of equipment, to

         16  ask what their experience has been.

         17                 The reference I have seen to the

         18  experience in the literature cited by the EPA, is

         19  that this has not been a problem. So, I think while

         20  I defer to dr. Melius, who is close to the ground in

         21  representing the laborers, and has day-to-day

         22  responsibility for this, and I credit his concerns

         23  seriously, I think there is empirical data that we

         24  can find from the "big dig" in Boston.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You're
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          2  confident we should be able to deal with it without?

          3                 MR. SHUFRO: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. And Dr.

          5  Treadwell, I would think from your involvement with

          6  the state, you might have some information on this

          7  issue of a federal preemption about which we heard

          8  some concerns raised earlier; do you have any -- can

          9  you share with us any of your information on that

         10  point?

         11                 DR. TREADWELL: I believe that my

         12  colleague David Park may be able to address it in

         13  more detail. I was mostly involved with gasoline

         14  reformulations, so I haven't done any investigation

         15  of the test in the courts for that, but it has been

         16  an issue that we struggled within the courts for

         17  on-road vehicles. We don't anticipate any problems

         18  with non-road vehicles, from my understanding, but,

         19  again, David I'm hoping can address that, or will

         20  certainly get you those bits of information.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, and

         22  we'll be hearing from him shortly I believe?

         23                 DR. TREADWELL: Yes. I believe he's on

         24  the next panel. Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Oh, by the
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          2  way, congratulations on the format of the submission

          3  of your written testimony, it actually very, very

          4  helpful. And Dr. Schachter, I just want to thank and

          5  congratulate you and your organization and for your

          6  input in the development of this bill and thank you

          7  and congratulate you for your -- thank you and

          8  congratulate you for the person of Craig Wilson, who

          9  really did tremendous work with us. He's a

         10  tremendous resource to all of us.

         11                 We have this approach, and your point

         12  about expanding it is appreciative. We have this,

         13  you know, dual approach of requiring the ultra-low

         14  sulfur fuel, and also requiring the best available

         15  technology with the retrofitting. Any thoughts of

         16  the balance? I mean, do the two work together in

         17  this way? Any thoughts of how we need if at all to

         18  improve that? Should we kind of tilt more towards

         19  one rather than the other, or is it okay the way we

         20  have it?

         21                 DR. SCHACHTER: Well, I'm a physician,

         22  so those technical questions are a little outside of

         23  my realm. But listening to my copanelist here, I

         24  would say that certainly there are other pollutants

         25  that are generated by these engines that you want to
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          2  control, so retrofitting might be important.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And do you

          4  have any, just to follow up on the point, we will

          5  follow up with that, on the non-road vehicles, what

          6  we will follow up with you on that point, and I

          7  appreciate your input on that as well.

          8                 Okay, thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         10  very much. I really appreciate your presence here

         11  before the Committee, and your testimony is very

         12  valuable and will help us greatly.

         13                 Thank you all very much.

         14                 The next two panels we'll hear brief

         15  statements. This is the next panel. Susan Stetzer,

         16  Linda Belfer we'll hear brief statements, to be

         17  followed by a panel of David Park of NESCAUM, Guido

         18  Schattanek of Parsons Brinckerhoff, and Thomas

         19  Hinman from Corning.

         20                 We appreciate the indulgence of the

         21  second panel to make way for the statements that we

         22  made by Susan Stetzer and Linda Belfer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Linda, we know

         24  your facing a challenging situation personally. We

         25  appreciate your courage in being here and difficult
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          2  circumstances, and with all the work that you day in

          3  and day out for the community, and Susan Stetzer, we

          4  appreciate your ongoing advocacy for all good

          5  things.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I

          7  also welcome you. I ask that you state your name for

          8  the record and proceed with your statement.

          9                 Thank you for your patience.

         10                 MS. BELFER: My name is Linda Belfer,

         11  and I am a 21-year resident of Gateway Plaza in

         12  Battery Park City. I'm on Community Board 1, and the

         13  President of the Gateway Plaza Tenants Association,

         14  and also a political party district leader. I will

         15  not say which, just to be fair to everybody.

         16                 I came today in order to advocate for

         17  the forgotten victim, and the forgotten victim in

         18  all of this are those of us who live directly across

         19  the street.

         20                 I'm one of them. Just as an example,

         21  my apartment in Gateway Plaza faces southeast, and I

         22  stood at my window that day and saw them fall off

         23  the building and got blasted in the face with all of

         24  the debris and particulates that fell on that day.

         25  My apartment was contaminated. I had to leave the
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          2  apartment for four months and could not come back

          3  but did come back upon the assurance of the EPA and

          4  the state that everything was fine.

          5                 Well, obviously they lied to me, and

          6  to the many citizens that I represent.

          7                 They didn't get around to coming and

          8  cleaning my apartment, although I had my apartment

          9  cleaned by hazardous cleaning company in November of

         10  2001, and did not come back til January because my

         11  street, Gateway Plaza being the closest to the site,

         12  the Ground Zero, our portion of Southend Avenue was

         13  the last portion to be reopened, so we had to stay

         14  out as long as we did.

         15                 I decided as a representative of the

         16  community when the EPA finally said that it would do

         17  testing in our apartments, to volunteer my

         18  apartment, they did not clean my apartment, and I

         19  was there for a portion of the cleaning, and I can

         20  assure you I use that term very advisedly until late

         21  March. April 14th I got a letter from them saying

         22  that my apartment was clean. That was this April

         23  14th. August 22nd I got a second letter from them

         24  saying that my apartment was contaminated with lead,

         25  and I almost had a heart attack and the first person
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          2  I called was Alan, and I have since been assured

          3  that the level of lead that they found is not enough

          4  to harm me, but can I be really sure of that at this

          5  point? No. Can I be sure of anything that the EPA

          6  tells me? No. Can I be sure of anything that the

          7  Pataki Administration tells me? No. And now,

          8  although I am very, very grateful that the City

          9  government is finally taking the lead and doing

         10  something, you cannot forget that while you are --

         11  while these companies are doing the work in the next

         12  ten years, that there are thousands of us who

         13  literally live right across the street. And I am

         14  very concerned that if this bill does not get

         15  passed, and this bill is only the first of many

         16  bills that need to be passed, in order to protect

         17  those of us who choose to try to rebuild Lower

         18  Manhattan -- this has been my home for 21 years

         19  already, and I don't want to be forced to move out,

         20  but I also do not want to lose a portion of my life

         21  just because I'm willing to repioneer the

         22  neighborhood again. And I would suggest that not

         23  only this bill, which of course is a very, very

         24  important first step, that the City Council take the

         25  lead here and make sure that any protections that
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          2  can be given to those of us who are 250 feet away

          3  from this, be done, because otherwise you are going

          4  to have mass exodus, and the most beautiful section

          5  of New York City is going to be lost, and that would

          6  be a damn shame.

          7                 But many people did not even allow

          8  their apartments to be tested by the EPA, because

          9  they had no faith anymore in it. Where do you come

         10  two years after the fact and do it?

         11                 So, please, really take this

         12  seriously, because there are over 10,000 of us who

         13  live right across the street, and that's only

         14  Battery Park City, that's not to talk about the

         15  people who live in IPM, it's not to talk about the

         16  people who have homes on Liberty Street, on Murray

         17  Street, on Warren Street, you're talking about

         18  taxpaying citizens of New York City, who in the last

         19  20 years have built a phenomenal neighborhood that

         20  is going to die if you people don't really force the

         21  state and federal government to go along with you on

         22  what you're trying to do.

         23                 Thank you for allowing me to speak.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         25                 MS. STETZER: Hello. My name is Susan
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          2  Stetzer. I'm a member of Community Board 3 and Chair

          3  of the Public Safety Committee. Our Chair, Board

          4  Chair Harvey Epstein was here earlier and wanted to

          5  testify but he was not able to wait. But Community

          6  Board 3 thinks this is very important legislation.

          7                 I'll just give a few points from my

          8  testimony. Thank you for the opportunity to testify

          9  on Intro. 191-A. This legislation would affect the

         10  downtown community south of 14th Street, which

         11  includes all of Community Board 3.

         12                 Community Board 3 has a history of

         13  aggressively supporting policies that would improve

         14  air quality, because it so greatly impacts the

         15  health of our community.

         16                 We have been particularly aware of

         17  the impact of particulate matter, including the fine

         18  particulates, because of the disproportionate number

         19  of our community who suffer from asthma and related

         20  respiratory disease.

         21                 We know that particulate matter is

         22  also related to cardiovascular disease and recent

         23  studies have shown that it is related to Lung

         24  Cancer.

         25                 In 2001, Dr. Luz Claudio, a
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          2  biomedical research scientist at the Division of

          3  Environmental and Occupational Medicine at Mount

          4  Sinai School of Medicine prepare testimony for our

          5  board. This is in regard to the impact of

          6  particulate matter and the residents in our

          7  community.

          8                 The study focused on the area

          9  immediately south of 14th Street on the East Side

         10  and showed there are members of a community who are

         11  disproportionately affected by particulate matter,

         12  because of high incidence of asthma and related

         13  respiratory disease.

         14                 Other studies in the Board 3 area

         15  have focused on disproportionate incidence of asthma

         16  in Chinatown and the high level of particulate

         17  matter in the Canal Street corridor.

         18                 Community Board 3 is greatly

         19  concerned about the effects of the pollutants,

         20  particularly particulates, as it affects our public

         21  health, and we have always supported the use of the

         22  best available technology to reduce pollutants.

         23                 We'll bring Intro. 191-A before our

         24  Board to vote on this legislation, but we presume

         25  that we'll support it.
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          2                 I'd like to make just one more

          3  comment. In previous testimony, it was -- the

          4  downtown community was defined as "Houston Street

          5  and south," instead of leaving out the area from

          6  Houston to 14th Street, and I'd like to comment

          7  particularly in the 10009 zip code. This is an

          8  environmental justice community with a particularly

          9  high incidence of asthma and respiratory disease

         10  that has been documented and I think this needs to

         11  be taken into consideration. Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you both

         13  very, very much.

         14                 MS. BELFER: Can I add just one thing?

         15  I know it's late but what disturbed me in the

         16  testimony today was until Madeline Wils spoke, the

         17  community was not mentioned at all. When the Port

         18  Authority spoke, when the Silverstein people spoke,

         19  all of the other thoughts were about the cost and

         20  efficiency of the machinery, not taking into

         21  consideration the impact on people.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Linda, if I

         23  may? That is one of the reasons why the Chair of

         24  this Committee, Chair Gennaro, made sure in setting

         25  up this hearing, that there would be community
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          2  representatives such as yourself, such as Susan

          3  Stetzer, such as Ms. Wils, and we have other

          4  representatives who are still waiting, and I just

          5  want to point out that is exactly precisely why I

          6  know our chair insisted that the community be

          7  represented at this hearing. So your voices will be

          8  heeded by this Committee and I'm sure by this

          9  Council.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. And thank

         11  you, both, for being here. Thank all members of the

         12  local community for coming out and giving of their

         13  time on this very important cause, and everyone in

         14  Lower Manhattan should be rest assured that all of

         15  their concerns are adequately heard at City Hall

         16  because you've got an excellent Council member who

         17  I'm proud to call my friend and colleague.

         18                 Thank you. Thank you very much.

         19                 The next panel, as previously

         20  mentioned, David Park from NESCAUM. It looks like

         21  it's Guido, no? Guido. Guido Schattanek of Parsons

         22  Brinckerhoff and Thomas Hinman of Corning, to be

         23  followed by the environmental panel of Andy Darrell,

         24  Swati Prakash, and Rich Kassel of NRDC.

         25                 So, those are the next two panels. I
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          2  thank everyone for their indulgence. I thank

          3  everyone for their patience and at a certain point I

          4  guess in every hearing, there are many, many good

          5  things that have been said and it's always nice to

          6  hear things again, but to the extent that if there's

          7  any part of your testimony that's going to be

          8  especially duplicative of testimony that has

          9  preceded you, to the extent that subsequent

         10  witnesses can focus on new information that has not

         11  yet been brought forth, that would be most

         12  productive.

         13                 So, thank you, and thank you all for

         14  coming. Thanks to the panel for coming, and Donna

         15  will administer the oath, and then you can proceed

         16  with your testimony. Thank you.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         18  right hand.

         19                 In the testimony that you're about to

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MR. PARK: I do.

         23                 MR. HINMAN: I do.

         24                 MR. SCHATTANEK: I do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very
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          2  much, and I guess go in whatever order makes the

          3  most sense. Who is going to go?

          4                 MR. PARK: Starting right to left, my

          5  name is David Park, and thank you for having me

          6  here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Speak in a

          8  robust voice right into the microphone.

          9                 MR. PARK: I'm very honored to be in

         10  the presence of such experts, as we've seen today.

         11                 I'm representing the Northeast States

         12  for Coordinated Air Use Management.

         13                 I'll skip the introduction --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO; please. Please.

         15                 MR. PARK: And in fact, I'll skip most

         16  of my up-front testimony, you can read it on your

         17  own.

         18                 I'd like to just mention a couple of

         19  things about history, which is we were asked to come

         20  down to the Ground Zero area to help clean up the

         21  diesel emissions during the recovery effort. And for

         22  a number of factors we could not accomplish that,

         23  but it positioned us very well for Silverstein

         24  properties and Tishman to approach us and get our

         25  expertise on diesel emission controls, and we
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          2  certainly have a very long history in terms of

          3  diesel emission controls, technology and

          4  implementation.

          5                 I was asked here today to talk

          6  specifically about the implementation of diesel

          7  controls at 7 World Trade Center, or at the 7 World

          8  Trade Center site, just giving a little bit of

          9  history, when we were asked to come assist 7 World

         10  Trade Center, or Silverstein in controlling diesel

         11  emissions from 7 World Trade Center, we were told,

         12  first of all, excavation is already underway for

         13  that building. The contracts had already been

         14  signed. So, we were starting at a little bit of a

         15  deficit. We did have ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel

         16  introduced and we did install diesel emission

         17  control devices.

         18                 The question of fuel sulfur levels

         19  came up earlier. The fuel sulfur at 7 World Trade in

         20  our initial tests were about 15 parts per million

         21  sulfur, so that sulfur level is available and I

         22  believe Sprague Energy will testify later on the

         23  quality of their fuel.

         24                 I'd like to just skip from what we've

         25  learned from our experiences. I don't think it's
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          2  debatable that the emission control technology

          3  works, first of all. Ultra low sulfur diesel fuel is

          4  available. I'll let Sprague Energy speak to the

          5  technical issues associated with that product that

          6  the General Contractors Association brought up

          7  earlier, but just so you know, we view ultra low

          8  sulfur diesel fuel as a gateway to more advanced

          9  emission control technologies. It has some emission

         10  benefits, but it's really a stepping stone to

         11  installing better technologies.

         12                 Secondly, we don't believe that all

         13  control technologies are equal. With or without

         14  ultra low sulfur diesel fuel, some require ultra low

         15  sulfur diesel fuel, others do not. Although having

         16  the ultra low sulfur diesel fuel available is

         17  certainly a benefit.

         18                 We've learned a lot about the

         19  construction industry, and as you embark on this

         20  regulation, you're going to obviously feel a certain

         21  amount of backlash, and perhaps some of our lessons

         22  can help you make the decisions that you'd like to

         23  make.

         24                 First of all, the construction

         25  equipment comes in a multitude of shapes and sizes.
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          2  It's very difficult to find an add-on technology

          3  that will fit an individual piece of construction

          4  equipment, therefore you will generally lengthen the

          5  time that it takes to install a piece of equipment

          6  on the specific construction equipment.

          7                 Secondly, the emission reduction

          8  requirements should be in the contract bid

          9  specifications, as you have stated in your law and

         10  we certainly do agree with that.

         11                 If those requirements are not up

         12  front in the bid specifications, the contractors

         13  will not have the ability to adequately budget for

         14  those expenses, and certainly they value their time

         15  and money.

         16                 With regard to time, time is money.

         17  The construction industry is very conservative, and

         18  that is because they deal with such logistically

         19  difficult issues regarding both building and human

         20  nature, and they come under the understanding that

         21  these problems will arise. Murphy's Law is certainly

         22  a part of the construction industry.

         23                 This calls for a certain amount of

         24  assistance that should accompany your rule.

         25  Certainly you don't want to require something
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          2  blindly.

          3                 The construction industry tends to

          4  lease a large amount of their equipment, therefore,

          5  you have equipment coming in from many parts of the

          6  region, not just the City, and you will have to deal

          7  with the issues with equipment coming from outside

          8  of this geographic territory. This rule being a

          9  specific to one geographic territory is obviously,

         10  the equipment does not stay just within the

         11  boundaries. And in fact, the equipment itself is not

         12  static. If you think of construction equipment as a

         13  labor, just as we consider a person on a

         14  construction site, it's the time that it's on a site

         15  and not working is money lost to be the owner or

         16  operator of that piece of equipment, and that

         17  certainly should be taken under consideration when

         18  you try to adopt this law.

         19                 Finally, I would say that the law

         20  should not be structured in a way that is so

         21  specific that it bars technologies outside of, for

         22  instance, on the fueling side, the requirement of

         23  ultra low sulfur diesel fuel does not bar the

         24  introduction of other clean fuel technologies.

         25                 And, of course, I got the sense from
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          2  earlier testimony that there is this regional

          3  interest in diesel emission controls and a certain

          4  amount of cooperation regionally will go a long way

          5  to adopting rules such as this, and we certainly do

          6  apply to your efforts at adopting this, we think

          7  it's really a benchmark regulation that you're

          8  putting forward.

          9                 Thank you for your time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you for coming down from Boston as well. I'll have

         12  questions for the panel when everyone has made their

         13  statement.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. HINMAN: Good afternoon, Mr.

         16  Chair. I will introduce myself. I'm Thomas Hinman,

         17  Vice President and General Manager for Diesel

         18  Technologies at Corning, Incorporated. I'll skip a

         19  little bit of my initial introduction here at

         20  Corning, other than to say that we have 30 years of

         21  experience in manufacturing the ceramic cores that

         22  go into automotive catalytic converters, and more

         23  recently over the last 20 years, cores for both

         24  substrate converters and diesel particulate filters,

         25  some of which are actually used here today in New
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          2  York City on your transit buses.

          3                 I'm impressed with the foresight of

          4  the City Council in wanting to address the issue of

          5  diesel emissions in urban settings.

          6                 You are aware of the health impacts

          7  of diesel exhaust, as indicated by the numerous

          8  studies on the topic and the testimony of various

          9  health experts. You know firsthand the benefits and

         10  cost, the best available technology to remove diesel

         11  exhaust contaminants, based on your years of

         12  experience here with your transit buses.

         13                 My purpose today is to reaffirm that

         14  the technology is available and that Corning

         15  Incorporated is committed to this market.

         16                 To illustrate the applicability of

         17  the technology, let me offer a taste of the similar

         18  programs that are being implemented throughout the

         19  world.

         20                 Of most pertinence to your proposed

         21  bill is the non-road equipment diesel filter

         22  retrofit mandate in Switzerland, and as an aside I

         23  have a dozen copies of a recent report that was

         24  given early in September concerning the VERT Program

         25  in Switzerland.
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          2                 Based on the success of retrofitting

          3  equipment used in some tunnel digging projects, last

          4  year the country began mandating filter retrofits on

          5  all diesel equipment both on- and off-road.

          6                 As part of the mandate, they have

          7  verified the applicability of approximately a dozen

          8  filter systems through rigorous emissions and

          9  durability testing.

         10                 As such there is much competition and

         11  choice for the contractor. So far more than 6,000

         12  systems have been installed with less than a two

         13  percent failure rate. By 2006 the expectation will

         14  be that more than 20,000 non-road and 15,000 on-road

         15  systems will be installed completing the mandate.

         16                 The cost of the filter systems runs

         17  approximately $30 per horsepower today.

         18                 Tokyo also has a far-reaching diesel

         19  retrofit mandate that requires diesel particulate

         20  filters on most diesel engines used in the City by

         21  April 2006.

         22                 Like Switzerland, they are

         23  implementing a technology verification procedure

         24  that has validated a performance and effectiveness

         25  of upwards of a dozen systems.
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          2                 California is embarking upon a

          3  mandatory retrofit initiative, whereby the intent is

          4  to retrofit all the diesel engines in the State by

          5  2010.

          6                 Their verification process covers a

          7  range of retrofit technologies, encompassing simple

          8  oxidation catalyst to the best available technology

          9  of filters.

         10                 Other programs of note are in Sweden,

         11  where filter in NOx retrofit technologies are needed

         12  on all diesel vehicles, entering the core of their

         13  three largest cities.

         14                 In Hong Kong, all diesel vehicles

         15  need oxidation catalysts today, but they are moving

         16  towards filters, and in the United States there is a

         17  voluntary retrofit initiative that last year alone

         18  has received commitments to retrofit upwards of

         19  100,000 diesel engines with ultra low sulfur fuel

         20  catalysts and/or filters.

         21                 Of note, the EPA recently initiated a

         22  clean school bus USA program in spring, with the aim

         23  of replacing or fitting all 400,000 school buses

         24  with filters by 2008. Like Switzerland, Tokyo and

         25  California, the EPA has a retrofit technology
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          2  verification process in place. An operator can

          3  access a website and see descriptions of and context

          4  for the technologies that have been verified. It has

          5  just started so there are only a few listed, but by

          6  2005 there should be more than a dozen verified

          7  technologies.

          8                 All of the programs described here

          9  have access to ultra low sulfur diesel fuel, a key

         10  requirement for program success. It enables the

         11  widest range of technology options.

         12                 In anticipation of supplying the

         13  retrofit and the original equipment manufacture

         14  markets, Corning is investing $200 million in a new

         15  plant and technology near Corning, New York.

         16                 The plant will be specifically

         17  dedicated to the production of diesel engine

         18  catalytic converter substrates and particulate

         19  filters and will start production early next year.

         20  We anticipate hiring more than 200 people to work in

         21  this facility.

         22                 We developed the diesel filter

         23  technology more than 20 years ago. Since then over

         24  70,000 heavy duty diesel engines have been

         25  retrofitted with diesel particulate filters.
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          2                 Most of these are trucks and buses,

          3  but one of our longest standing businesses for

          4  filters is for mobile equipment in mining

          5  applications.

          6                 New York City is embarking in a

          7  diesel retrofit program that will reduce exposure of

          8  your citizens to diesel exhaust.

          9                 As I've illustrated, you are not

         10  alone. Aside from dozens of companies providing the

         11  technology and support, many other regions in the

         12  world are pursuing similar, if not more aggressive

         13  programs. The early indication is that they are all

         14  successful.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you very much for coming down all the way from

         18  Corning, giving us the benefit of your views and

         19  I'll have a comment or a question for you once we

         20  hear all the testimony.

         21                 Okay, sir?

         22                 MR. SCHATTANEK: Good afternoon,

         23  Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Again, you'll

         25  have to speak in a real robust voice right into the
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          2  mic, just like I'm doing right here.

          3                 MR. SCHATTANEK: I'll get a little

          4  closer.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          6                 MR. SCHATTANEK: I'm Guido Schattanek

          7  from Parsons Brinckerhoff and I'm going to talk

          8  today about the diesel retrofit program for the

          9  Central Artery Town Project in Boston,

         10  Massachusetts. To give you a sense of the magnitude

         11  and see how this compares to what could be Lower

         12  Manhattan, the construction period that started in

         13  1992 would last until 2005 when the project is

         14  finished.

         15                 In that seven and a half mile

         16  corridor, the project is constructing 160 lane miles

         17  of highway, half of them in tunnels, 150 acres of

         18  new parks, some of them islands used with the

         19  excavated material, 13 million cubic yards of

         20  excavated dirt, 4 million cubic yards of concrete,

         21  and important to these, over 200 pieces of

         22  construction equipment that has been working

         23  simultaneously over several years.

         24                 What you can see here in a few images

         25  this is elevated central artery built in the 1950s,
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          2  that will come down next year as it is replaced with

          3  all the new tunnels in downtown Boston. This is a

          4  complete urban environment where construction had

          5  been going on over 10 years.

          6                 The central artery construction

          7  program did three things in the beginning; assigned

          8  staging for construction trucks in order to keep

          9  them away from building intakes residential areas,

         10  limit idling to less than five minutes when not in

         11  operation, uninitiated retrofit construction

         12  equipment program for the construction equipment.

         13                 The diesel retrofit program started

         14  in 1998, in combination with Massachusetts

         15  Department of Environmental Protection and NESCAUM.

         16  Dade Park next to me was part of that.

         17                 It focused only on off road diesel

         18  equipment, and it focused on equipment that was

         19  close to residential areas, hospitals, building

         20  fresh air intakes and also underground construction,

         21  in order to affect not only the general public, but

         22  also the aspects of workers' health and safety.

         23                 These images given you an idea of

         24  what the construction area look then at the south

         25  end of the project when we started a diesel retrofit
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          2  program.

          3                 This is the south end of the Ted

          4  William Tunnel already open to general traffic,

          5  since February. The project decided to use diesel

          6  oxidation catalyst instead of particular filters for

          7  a few reasons. It was important then to reduce

          8  carbon monoxide, hydrocarbons and odors. Since odors

          9  was a main concern.

         10                 East of installation and maintenance,

         11  lower average unit cost in the range of 2,000, they

         12  vary between one and 3,000, depending on the size of

         13  the equipment, versus then particular filters in the

         14  range of 10,000, prices had come down today.

         15                 And also proven technology. There are

         16  over a million oxidation catalysts in operation

         17  today.

         18                 The first phase of the program

         19  retrofitted eight pieces of construction equipment,

         20  three contractors participated, and I have to say

         21  these are the voluntary programs. The contractors

         22  already were working on the project.

         23                 The manufacturers of equipment

         24  control equipment association make up, provided the

         25  oxidation catalyst, and the contractors contributed
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          2  to the labor cost of installation. An important

          3  factor was engine manufacturers from the

          4  construction equipment provided written warranties

          5  that the equipment will work.

          6                 The second phase of the program

          7  between 1998 and 2000, retrofit an additional 60

          8  pieces of equipment. In that case, the project the

          9  oxidation catalyst. On the third phase since

         10  September 2000, make a mandate to retrofit all

         11  construction equipment, for the 23 remaining

         12  contracts. To date over 150 pieces of equipment have

         13  been retrofitted. In terms of construction

         14  equipment, I would say this is the largest program

         15  of this kind in the United States.

         16                 What type of equipment was

         17  retrofitted? You see it here, cranes, lifts,

         18  excavators, bull-dozers, generators, compressors,

         19  everything ranging from 50 to 300 horsepower.

         20                 There are a few images here of cranes

         21  working underground, a picture of an oxidation

         22  catalyst as a retrofit, an excavator, a bull-dozer.

         23                 The project also initiated a clean

         24  fuel program. That means the use of Purenox

         25  (phonetic), that is what it's called, an emulsified
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          2  diesel. It is a mixture of diesel and additive and

          3  water. And I'm not going to expand too much since I

          4  know that representatives of Lubrizol are going to

          5  comment in the next panel.

          6                 What it does is it reduces nitrogen

          7  oxides and black smoke and does not require engine

          8  modification. EPA has certified its fuel to reduce

          9  NOx I believe up to 20 percent and particulate

         10  matter up to 58 percent.

         11                 The project did a test on a

         12  caterpillar excavator, run it for three weeks, 16

         13  hours a day, burn 600 gallons of fuel, and did a

         14  test with number two diesel fuel, that is the

         15  standard on-road diesel, approximately 350 parts per

         16  million, sulfur and Purenox.

         17                 The results, as you can see there,

         18  nitrogen oxide's reduction from 24 to 30 percent,

         19  black smoke reduction from 93 to 97 percent. Almost

         20  non-visible. We had no performance problems. The

         21  operators only reported at consume a little more

         22  fuel and need a little more power in deep mud

         23  conditions. Something anticipated because water has

         24  no chloric (phonetic) power.

         25                 In conclusion, in this brief summary,
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          2  these programs are very cost effective. When you

          3  look at the cost of an oxidation catalyst is one or

          4  two percent of the cost of the construction

          5  equipment, probably no more than a set of tires, and

          6  the benefits are 20 to 50 percent in terms of

          7  emission reduction. You had the great benefit to

          8  eliminate black smoke and diesel odors.

          9                 To conclude, in the name of the

         10  Massachusetts Turnpike Authority Chairman Matthew

         11  Amorello, we would like to thank the New York City

         12  Council for inviting us to present this information.

         13                 As a contact person, Alex Casper for

         14  the Massachusetts Turnpike Authority, is their

         15  quality manager for the program on site.

         16                 Thank you very much. Any questions

         17  we'll be here to respond.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Mr. Schattanek, am I saying that

         21  right? Mr. Schattanek?

         22                 MR. SCHATTANEK: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Your particular

         24  fuel concoction, it was the, whatever it was --

         25                 MR. SCHATTANEK: The retrofit where
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          2  oxidation --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, no, no. The

          4  fuel you used. It was a mixture of diesel.

          5                 MR. SCHATTANEK: Purenox is an

          6  emulsified diesel.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 MR. SCHATTANEK: It's a mixture of

          9  diesel, 80 percent diesel, 20 percent water,

         10  approximately.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, would that

         12  count as ultra-low sulfur diesel, or is that a

         13  question we should direct to the few people who will

         14  testify later?

         15                 MR. SCHATTANEK: No, that's a

         16  different type of product because it could be used

         17  with standard diesel or with any type of diesel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         19                 Okay, well, we'll probe that further

         20  with the fuel people. And Mr. Hinman, with regard

         21  to, you make both the filters and the oxidizers; is

         22  that right?

         23                 MR. HINMAN: Yes, the substrates that

         24  go into the oxidation capsules.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I can't hear
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          2  you. Just speak right into the microphone then.

          3                 MR. HINMAN: Yes. We make both the

          4  substrates that go into the oxidation catalysts, and

          5  then as well the filters.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see, so

          7  both ways that our piece of legislation going,

          8  whether the retrofits, you don't just do one or the

          9  other, you do both of them.

         10                 MR. HINMAN: That's right. Many of

         11  these retrofit systems we'll use the substrate in

         12  combination with a filter, because they offer

         13  different functionalities for specific reasons.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. I

         15  see.

         16                 This is going to be a question for

         17  anyone. The price differential between oxidation

         18  catalyst and particulate filters; is there a price

         19  difference between those technologies or are they

         20  ordinarily used in concert or how is that; how does

         21  that work?

         22                 MR. HINMAN: Yes, there is a price

         23  differential. In the case of the filters, depending

         24  upon the size and the configuration and what you're

         25  comparing to can be fine to six times more expensive
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          2  than the substrate, what you then acquire is a

          3  greater functionality in terms of particulate

          4  removal that you can't get with a substrate in a

          5  flow-through oxidation catalyst configuration.

          6                 Final system costs really depend upon

          7  the specific vehicle that you're going into, and the

          8  requirements, you know, in terms of mounting the

          9  unit and where you have to actually install it on

         10  the actual unit.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just let me

         12  follow-up. Does our bill, as currently written, sort

         13  of lay it out appropriately in terms of what we're

         14  looking for in terms of the retrofit as to what

         15  we're calling for and the kind of performance we're

         16  looking for. I know you indicated there are other

         17  entities around the world that are doing things that

         18  are perhaps more aggressive than what we're doing,

         19  but do you believe that in what we call for in

         20  retrofits, does our language make sense to you?

         21                 MR. HINMAN: Yes, it does.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         23                 MR. HINMAN: You're on target.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         25                 Guido had a follow-up?

                                                            185

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. SCHATTANEK: One thing as a

          3  clarification, between an oxidation catalyst, it

          4  reduced carbon monoxide, hydrocarbon and particulate

          5  matter, particulate matter in the range of 20, 30

          6  percent.

          7                 Diesel particulate filters,

          8  particulate designed to reduce the amount of

          9  particulate matter to levels much higher, 60 to 80,

         10  90 percent.

         11                 So, all depends on the pollutant that

         12  one is targeting for a certain area and what is the

         13  concern, he makes the decision to go with one

         14  product or another one.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. Okay, I

         16  have one last question.

         17                 Has any engine manufacturer indicated

         18  there would be any warranty problems that would be

         19  associated with using retrofits? Has that been

         20  anyone's experience on the panel?

         21                 MR. HINMAN: I would say in general

         22  many of the engine manufacturers are ramping up for

         23  the 2007 time frame where they're required to have

         24  these devices on their over-the-road vehicles, and

         25  they do see a trend toward installing them across
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          2  the board on all engines, and therefore they are all

          3  initiating retrofit programs on their own.

          4                 In this case caterpiller, for

          5  instance, is certainly beginning an aggressive

          6  retrofit program.

          7                 MR. SCHATTANEK: Our experience, in

          8  the beginning in '98, was a little bit of reluctance

          9  on some of the engine manufacturers. I would say

         10  caterpiller was the most forward looking and there

         11  were others that were a little less.

         12                 But within a year the problem was

         13  solved and all of them came on board, warranting the

         14  engines, even if this was a muffler replacement type

         15  of any product, assuming the product was certified,

         16  EPA has in their certification list between 12 and

         17  15 products that you can look in the web page, what

         18  are the benefits. But I think that that issue is an

         19  issue, as my colleague Dave Park said, is of the

         20  past. Now they're all jumping in, trying to take

         21  these products.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you all very much. I appreciate your presence.

         24                 Sorry. Councilman Gerson has a

         25  question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just in anyone

          3  who wants to field this: Particulate filters versus

          4  oxidation catalysts, (a) is that the full universe?

          5  Is there anything else out there that we should be

          6  considering presently? And (b) any thoughts from

          7  what you know of our situation in Lower Manhattan

          8  and what we are likely to endure as to which is

          9  preferable?

         10                 MR. PARK: There is a full suite of

         11  emission control options. You know, you can start

         12  from the top with either buying a new piece of

         13  equipment, or installing a new engine, obviously.

         14  And then there is a chain of decision processes you

         15  have to make in terms of what types of controls you

         16  want to go with. Filters are on the high end. Also,

         17  it depends on what pollutants you're interested in.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm sorry,

         19  what what?

         20                 MR. PARK: What pollutants you're

         21  interested in.

         22                 Certainly this rule seems to be

         23  targeting particulate matter, and diesel oxidation

         24  catalysts and filters are certainly some of the

         25  better known solutions.
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          2                 Also, what Guido mentioned earlier,

          3  the diesel emulsions. Certainly they have been

          4  proven to work in reducing both particulate matter

          5  and NOx, and I'll turn it over to my colleagues

          6  here.

          7                 MR. SCHATTANEK: I didn't want to get

          8  so complicated. I just eliminated a slide that

          9  explained all that this morning.

         10                 But I'll refer then as the type of

         11  pollutant, control pollutant products like Lenox or

         12  selective catalytic converters, but those are much

         13  more sophisticated and are geared, if the issue is

         14  controlling nitrogen oxides in order to reduce

         15  ozone.

         16                 In that case, the cost gets quite

         17  higher. If we could say diesel oxidation catalysts

         18  today for non-road equipment is in the range of

         19  eight to ten dollars per horsepower, a particular

         20  filter is probably $10 to $18. Other more complex

         21  products goes several times that price.

         22                 MR. HINMAN: So, I can't comment on

         23  the specific pollutants that you're trying to

         24  change, but there are other technologies available,

         25  but the mainstays are really the substrate
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          2  technology, if it's part of diesel oxidation

          3  catalyst, and as my colleague has said, you know,

          4  that aims at one set of pollutants and a partial

          5  reduction of the particulate matter that's

          6  eliminated.

          7                 And if you really are going after a

          8  significant, if not close to near complete reduction

          9  or elimination of particulate, then you had toward

         10  filters. But with it, it's a more complex system, it

         11  requires much more engineering to ensure it operates

         12  on an ongoing basis, that technology exists and has

         13  been proven with a lot of years of experience, but

         14  that is why in fact you see the higher costs of

         15  those systems versus the simpler substrate or

         16  oxidation catalyst technology.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         18                 MR. HINMAN: You're welcome.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you all very much. And certainly special wishes to

         21  the Corning Company, as they make such a great

         22  investment of $2 million in the new plan, a new

         23  technology, a great thing for New York State, hiring

         24  of people, cleaning up the environment, we're loving

         25  it. Very nice. I appreciate everyone being here, and
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          2  thank you for your wonderful testimony.

          3                 And the next panel, Rich Kassel,

          4  NRDC; Andrew Darrell, Environmental Defense; Swati

          5  Prakash of WEACT; and Christina Hemphill of New York

          6  City Environmental Justice Alliance.

          7                 And to be followed by the panel after

          8  this, Steven Levy of Sprague Energy; Bill Coughlin

          9  of Sunoco; and Kevin Snape, looks like Lubrizol.

         10  That will be the following panel.

         11                 Okay, thanks for being here. Thanks

         12  for your patience. Thanks for your patience, we

         13  greatly appreciate it.

         14                 Yes, and as I said, thank you for

         15  your patience. Donna DeCostanzo will swear you in,

         16  and you can proceed with your testimony.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         18  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         19  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 (witnesses sworn collectively.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you. I guess you can proceed in whatever order kind

         24  of makes sense, and everyone will -- I always like

         25  when I throw it out that way, it's like do we do
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          2  ladies first, do we do left to right? Everyone

          3  there, they're instantly called upon to invest some

          4  paradigm or protocol or it's a wonderful -- you know

          5  where's a sociologist when you really need one, you

          6  know what I'm saying?

          7                 MS. PRAKASH: Well, since I'm sitting

          8  at this end, I think --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely. We

         10  need someone to take charge.

         11                 MS. PRAKASH: I'm going first.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, please,

         13  whoever is going to go first, just state your name

         14  for the record and proceed with your testimony.

         15                 MS. PRAKASH: My name is Swati

         16  Prakash, I'm the Environmental Health Director for

         17  West Harlem Environmental Action, and I'm here today

         18  to testify on behalf of Peggy Shepard, who is our

         19  Executive Director, and I want to thank the Council

         20  for inviting us.

         21                 WEACT is a 15-year-old

         22  community-based environmental justice organization

         23  fighting for environmental justice in communities of

         24  color in New York City and beyond. And I'm here

         25  today to express my support for the proposed bill,
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          2  Intro. 191-A, and to make a few suggestions for

          3  improvement.

          4                 Diesel exhaust has long been a

          5  problem air pollutant in New York City, as you've

          6  heard from many people today, this afternoon, and I

          7  won't repeat what you've already heard, but I will

          8  say that in addition to contributing to lung cancer

          9  and early mortality from cardiovascular disease in

         10  the longrun that diesel exhaust is a particular

         11  problem from an asthma perspective. It exacerbates

         12  asthma, and in communities of color in New York

         13  City, which are home to some of the highest rates of

         14  asthma hospitalizations in the country, diesel

         15  exhaust is a special problem.

         16                 For example, East Harlem in the South

         17  Bronx have long led the country with the highest

         18  rates of childhood asthma hospitalizations up to

         19  five times the national average.

         20                 And recent findings indicate that a

         21  staggering one in four children in Central Harlem

         22  are suffering from asthma, which is three times the

         23  national prevalence of childhood asthma.

         24                 Communities of color throughout New

         25  York City, and I'm skipping around in my testimony
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          2  here, are home to a disproportionate burden of

          3  diesel exhaust sources, such as highways, bus and

          4  truck depots, warehouses and loading facilities, and

          5  those are largely on-road oriented. But non-road

          6  diesel exhaust sources do also pose a serious danger

          7  to public health in our communities, where

          8  construction projects frequently take place less

          9  than a few dozen feet from the windows of people's

         10  homes.

         11                 And as an example of the recently

         12  completed New York City Transit 100th Street bus

         13  depot, in a residential community of East Harlem,

         14  subjected community residents across the very narrow

         15  streets there to several years of diesel pollution

         16  from the construction equipment that was used to

         17  first raise the two-story depot, and then to rebuild

         18  a 12-story structure.

         19                 So, I'm here today to express my

         20  strong support for this bill, and in particular, for

         21  the quick phase-in period, for the requirements laid

         22  out for the low sulfur diesel fuel and for emission

         23  controls laid out in the bill, and the limiting of

         24  sulfur content in fuel to 15 parts per million.

         25                 These are two of the most crucial
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          2  components that provide the maximum public health

          3  benefits to New York City.

          4                 WEACT does have a few concerns about

          5  the bill as it's currently written. The first

          6  relates to the timing of the phase-in for the

          7  emission controls and sulfur content requirements of

          8  the bill.

          9                 While it's important to focus on the

         10  construction projects in Lower Manhattan, and these

         11  projects do provide a manageable focus for the

         12  initial application of these requirements, from a

         13  public health perspective, I cannot overemphasize

         14  the importance of having an accelerated phase-in

         15  period for the rest of New York City.

         16                 For the asthma-burdened communities

         17  that I live and work in, the year-long wait for the

         18  requirements of this bill to kick in means a year of

         19  asthma hospitalizations and their associated costs

         20  that could be avoided.

         21                 Ideally New York City communities

         22  outside of Lower Manhattan would not be made to wait

         23  for this additional year to benefit from the

         24  provisions of this bill.

         25                 The next best option is to include a
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          2  requirement for pilot projects outside of Lower

          3  Manhattan during that first year, projects that

          4  would be prioritized on a health basis.

          5                 So, in other words, those communities

          6  suffering from the highest burden of ambient diesel

          7  pollution and its associated respiratory effects

          8  would be prioritized for pilot projects.

          9                 And I also want to note here that the

         10  facts about the bill does apply to all of New York

         11  City communities at some point is one of the most

         12  important provisions of the bill, unlike the

         13  Coordinated Construction Act, which was referred to

         14  by Ms. Sullivan of the City DCA earlier. So, that

         15  is, again, a very strong component of this bill that

         16  needs to stay in there.

         17                 A second concern relates to the scope

         18  and purview of the projects that fall under this

         19  bill.

         20                 While the public works contracts are

         21  defined as those projects, and I quote, the

         22  financing of which is provided in whole or in part

         23  by the City, economic development projects that are

         24  funded or financed with City money through the

         25  Empowerment Zone Program, the Industrial Development
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          2  Agency, the Economic Development Commission, as a

          3  few examples, don't necessarily fall under this

          4  definition.

          5                 Similarly, Port Authority and

          6  Metropolitan Transportation Authority Construction

          7  projects also don't fall under the requirements of

          8  this legislation.

          9                 But for communities like Northern

         10  Manhattan, these are the construction projects that

         11  will most severely impact our quality of life, and

         12  as an example over the next decade East Harlem is

         13  looking at the construction of a giant home depot

         14  and Cosco at 116th Street, a General Motors Automall

         15  at 126th Street, and the reconstruction of a Second

         16  Avenue subway. All of these are projects that

         17  receive substantial amounts of City money, none of

         18  them would necessarily fall under the requirements

         19  of this legislation as it's currently written.

         20                 The result is that many of New York

         21  City residents really will not maximally benefit

         22  from the significant potential of this bill to clean

         23  up City construction projects, and the Council

         24  should do everything in its power to close this

         25  loophole, if possible by specifically and explicitly
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          2  mentioning in this legislation those projects, and

          3  as the next step the Council should seize the

          4  opportunity to issue a resolution urging the State

          5  Legislature to adopt similar requirements for

          6  state-funded projects, and I urge you to work with

          7  your colleagues in Albany to create and pass similar

          8  legislation.

          9                 Another thing I'll mention that's not

         10  written in here is just that there are other

         11  non-road sources not included in this bill, and that

         12  specifically is generators. Construction generators,

         13  which are not back-up generators, or equipment

         14  that's used on construction sites to provide

         15  electricity, and that's something that I think given

         16  that it's a key part of a construction project can

         17  explicitly be mentioned so that it's not limited to

         18  just construction vehicles, and then while we're

         19  talking about generators really, looking at a

         20  specific number of back-up generators used by the

         21  City, in hospitals, as an example, as well as sewage

         22  treatment facilities, they're not back-up, they're

         23  normal generators or diesel-fueled. So, again, this

         24  is a good opportunity to really look at all of the

         25  diesel fueled equipment that falls under City
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          2  contracts or a City is owned by the City, and look

          3  at phasing in emission controls and low sulfur,

          4  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel for those.

          5                 And in closing I'll just reiterate

          6  that WEACT strongly supports the City Council and

          7  applauds your efforts to make New York City a

          8  national model for cleaning up the fuel and the

          9  emissions from non-road diesel construction

         10  equipment through Intro. 191-A.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         13  you very much. Thank you. We'll have questions for

         14  you once we finish with the panel. Please give our

         15  regards to Peggy. She's terrific.

         16                 Okay.

         17                 MR. DARRELL: Good afternoon. My name

         18  is Andy Darrell. I'm the New York Regional Director

         19  at Environmental Defense where I'm also the Director

         20  of our Living Cities Program for the Urban

         21  Environment.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  testify today. One of the nice things about being at

         24  the end of the day is that I can keep my testimony

         25  comparatively short, I hope, and try to answer some
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          2  of the questions that have been raised throughout

          3  the day.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You can do it

          5  the other way around since there's no one waiting.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've got

          7  another panel.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I know.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've got two

         10  more panels.

         11                 MR. DARRELL: I've submitted some

         12  written testimony, and I won't go through that in

         13  detail. You've heard a lot about the health impacts

         14  of diesel, and especially the non-road sector, and

         15  of course, Environmental Defense is very strongly in

         16  support of this bill, and I just wanted to point out

         17  a few of the reasons why we are so supportive of

         18  this particular bill, and then make a few

         19  suggestions for moving forward.

         20                 This bill, in our view, represents a

         21  very practical approach to a very serious problem.

         22  There are lots of sources of diesel pollution, and

         23  we would urge the City Council to have a look at the

         24  range of sources of diesel emissions across the

         25  City, including generators and ferries, and a whole
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          2  host of sources that plague our air quality. This is

          3  an important step forward. It's a bite-size piece

          4  and it's a very important piece of the puzzle.

          5                 It follows a commitment that was made

          6  in the fall of 2002 by the State and the State

          7  agencies working downtown, to ultra-low sulfur

          8  diesel, and best available technologies in the

          9  reconstruction of Lower Manhattan. That commitment

         10  was a very important commitment. It did not include

         11  City fleets and City contracts, and it also did not

         12  include a provision for taking that commitment

         13  Citywide.

         14                 This bill fills those gaps and is

         15  therefore extremely important, and it puts the City

         16  out front nationally in dealing with this challenge.

         17                 We think the bill is crafted in a way

         18  that is doable for industry. You've heard some

         19  testimony on that today, by calling for the use of

         20  best available technology, it lets agencies figure

         21  out what pieces of technology are the best match for

         22  their particular machines and their fleets, and it's

         23  a smart way to go, we certainly support that

         24  direction.

         25                 We also strongly support the
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          2  provision in the bill that calls for the use of 15

          3  part per million ultra-low sulfur diesel. There have

          4  been efforts to shift that commitment to 30 parts

          5  per million, we're strongly in support of 15 parts

          6  per million, both because it sets a very important

          7  national precedent, and also because a lot of the

          8  advanced retrofit technologies are dependent on the

          9  use of the cleanest grades of diesel fuel, and 15

         10  parts per million or less is the cleanest grade

         11  available in the market today.

         12                 And that's a key point, is that the

         13  15 parts per million diesel fuel are available in

         14  the market today, and we think that by making this

         15  kind of a commitment now the City is simply is going

         16  to grow the market for that fuel and encourage the

         17  providers of the fuel to come into this region and

         18  make it available on a cost effective basis.

         19                 The bill is also a flexible bill. In

         20  some respects we see that the flexibility might be a

         21  little bit too much for our taste, but we understand

         22  the need to have some flexibility in here, to have

         23  excess for agencies in cases of unavailability or

         24  perhaps extreme high cost. Fortunately we don't see

         25  those as likely conditions. And for that reason we
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          2  would urge you to have a look at those provisions

          3  and perhaps tighten them up a little bit and we'll

          4  be happy to provide some suggestions for how to do

          5  that.

          6                 I just want to respond to a couple of

          7  comments made by people who testified earlier. There

          8  was one comment made about Section 209 of the Clean

          9  Air Act and potential conflict for federal law. We

         10  strongly believe that this bill is crafted in a way

         11  that is not in conflict with the Clean Air Act, it's

         12  based on the City's contracting power and by taking

         13  that route, we believe it is free and clear of any

         14  potential problems.

         15                 And secondly, as Swati had mentioned,

         16  the City Administration testified about the

         17  Coordinated Construction Act up in Albany and

         18  offered that as an alternative to this bill, and I

         19  support Swati very strongly in submitting that that

         20  bill is not an alternative for this bill, for the

         21  very important reason that that bill focuses only on

         22  a portion of Lower Manhattan and not on a Citywide

         23  solution. This bill does both and is for a much

         24  better approach.

         25                 So, thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you, Mr. Darrell.

          4                 Okay, Rich.

          5                 MR. KASSELL: I'm going to take the

          6  other approach of the end of the day. I was just

          7  kidding.

          8                 My name is Richard Kassell, and I'm a

          9  senior attorney --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Richard, you've

         11  got to speak closer into the mic.

         12                 MR. KASSELL: My name is Richard

         13  Kassell. I'm a senior attorney at the Natural

         14  Resources Defense Council and at NRDC I direct our

         15  National Vehicle and Fuels Project, which includes a

         16  range of local, regional, national and even global

         17  vehicles projects.

         18                 It's through that lens that we

         19  actually think Intro. 191-A is an extremely

         20  important piece of legislation, not just for New

         21  York City, not just for Lower Manhattan, but as an

         22  important model for other cities that are grappling

         23  with how to reduce emissions from the growing and

         24  extremely noxious and unhealthful emissions from

         25  non-road diesel engines.
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          2                 191-A continues the Council's

          3  leadership on clean vehicles issues that dates all

          4  the way back to Local Law 6 which the Council passed

          5  in 1991 and which still governs the City's

          6  procurement of vehicles. Maybe one day we'll have a

          7  hearing about that piece of legislation, but in the

          8  meantime it's an important leadership path that the

          9  Council has always taken.

         10                 You've heard many, many times today

         11  about why various speakers are concerned about

         12  diesel emissions. Our testimony goes through those

         13  concerns very briefly.

         14                 You've heard from me many, many times

         15  over the years why NRDC is so concerned about diesel

         16  emissions, and I won't go over them again, but I

         17  will touch on why the system's approach that the

         18  Council is taking on here makes so much sense.

         19                 The system's approach, I mean looking

         20  at construction equipment, non-road engines and

         21  vehicles, as a system that is more than just the

         22  engine, more than just the fuel, but rather it's

         23  taking a look at the whole system that includes fuel

         24  and engine and emission controls that can reduce

         25  emissions that come out of that engine to bring
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          2  these emissions as low as possible.

          3                 This is the approach that New York

          4  City Transit uses with its buses, it's the approach

          5  EPA has used in its most recent rule-making to bring

          6  ultra-low sulfur diesel national, first for highway

          7  vehicles in 2006, and a proposal that would do the

          8  same for non-road engines by 2010, which isn't final

          9  yet.

         10                 It's the right way to go and we

         11  applaud you for it.

         12                 It's important, though, to note that

         13  the City shouldn't wait for EPA to act, though, on

         14  non-road engines and non-road equipment.

         15                 We all know, we've heard it many

         16  times today that EPA has put out a proposal to do

         17  just that, but let's be very clear, the EPA proposal

         18  is just that, the proposal will be finalized if all

         19  goes according to plan in Washington, D.C. some time

         20  next spring. The low-sulfur diesel that we're

         21  talking about here today would be required

         22  nationally in 2010. There are a couple of ifs in

         23  those two conditions, when and how will the proposal

         24  be finalized? When and how will this low-sulfur come

         25  into place.
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          2                 What we know, though, is that

          3  nationally the highway market is moving entirely to

          4  15 PPM fuel in mid-2006, and this proposal

          5  piggy-backs on that, and that won't change, and so

          6  that is the right way to go, and we would strongly

          7  discourage you from waiting to see what EPA does on

          8  non-road engines before acting.

          9                 Why? Two obvious reasons. Lower

         10  Manhattan communities, residents, workers and

         11  visitors need to know that the construction impacts

         12  of the next ten years will be as minimal from an air

         13  quality perspective as possible, and everybody in

         14  the City, in all five boroughs, needs to get a

         15  strong signal from the Council that air quality in

         16  Queens, Manhattan, north of 14th Street, the Bronx,

         17  Brooklyn and Staten Island, it's as important in all

         18  those boroughs as it is in Lower Manhattan. And

         19  construction equipment, unfortunately, is as dirty

         20  in those boroughs as it is in Lower Manhattan.

         21                 Let me just touch on three important

         22  improvements that I hope you will be able to

         23  incorporate in the final 191-A.

         24                 First, Andy has already touched on

         25  it, whether 15 parts per million or PPM is the right
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          2  threshold for the City and its non-road diesel

          3  program.

          4                 We think it is. In fact, we strongly

          5  disagree with stakeholders from industry or

          6  elsewhere who suggest that a 30 PPM cap might be

          7  appropriate. We think a 30 PPM cap is wholly

          8  inappropriate.

          9                 In 2000, just as a bit of context, in

         10  2000 the MTA started using 30 PPM fuel for their

         11  Transit buses in the City. We applauded that move.

         12  But we applauded that move at a time when the

         13  federal cap for highway diesel fuel is 500 parts per

         14  million. In the oil industry and the refining

         15  industry was dead set against lowering that cap to

         16  the kinds of numbers we're talking about now.

         17                 EPA's 15 part per million proposal

         18  was not yet even a proposal yet, so the context was

         19  different. Today we're in a very different place.

         20  Refiners are on track to implementing the national

         21  15 PPM highway diesel rule on time in mid-2006, and

         22  early reports suggest that there will be more than

         23  adequate supply to fuel New York City's construction

         24  and other non-road equipment. At minimum, if any,

         25  incremental cost.
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          2                 Recently EPA surveyed all the

          3  refiners and found that 95 percent of the highway

          4  diesel fuel that will be on line in mid-2006 would

          5  be ultra-low, 15 parts per million. The actual rule

          6  only requires 80 percent.

          7                 We don't think there's going to be a

          8  supply problem. We also think any incremental cost

          9  concerns will go away when those economy of scale

         10  are reached. A very important point, it's critical

         11  to recognize that as much as we applaud the MTA's

         12  decision to go to 30 PPM three years ago, that

         13  decision should not be codified in any way and it

         14  shouldn't be extended to other sectors of New York

         15  City's public fleets or their contractors.

         16                 We do not want to end up in a place

         17  two years from now where we have to redebate what

         18  the appropriate standard for highway diesel fuel or

         19  any other diesel fuel should be because New York

         20  City decided that 30 was a better number than 15,

         21  it's a really important point.

         22                 The second point I want to just touch

         23  on is setting the appropriate technology threshold.

         24  Again, Andy touched on this. It's an important

         25  point. There's a lot of flexibility in the proposed
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          2  191-A and we support that. We think that 191-A

          3  appropriately leaves the decision of what's the best

          4  available technology to Commissioner of

          5  Environmental Protection, who I would hope would

          6  consult with the key agencies in making those

          7  determinations.

          8                 The bottom line is that decisions on

          9  what's best available should be based on

         10  quantifiable facts, not preferences, not technology

         11  that we think today will be better in 2006 or '08 or

         12  '10, but on certification data that's coming out of

         13  EPA, California or Resources Board or comparable

         14  data coming from engine certifying government

         15  agencies.

         16                 Doing so will help make the

         17  determination of what's best available as

         18  self-executing as possible, which should be the goal

         19  here. And it should be the goal because diesel

         20  emission control technologies are advancing rapidly.

         21  What was the cleanest technology two years ago is

         22  not the cleanest today and it won't be what's

         23  cleanest two years from now. And, so, I think you've

         24  appropriately drafted the proposal in a way that

         25  reflects those changing conditions.
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          2                 It is important, though, and it's

          3  critical that the Council clarify what is actually

          4  meant by non-road engines and non-road vehicles.

          5                 You've heard a number of speakers

          6  today talk about the fact that there are non-road

          7  engines and non-road vehicles being used, non-road

          8  engines being used at construction sites that might

          9  not be covered by language in its current form, and

         10  we would like to have that discussion with you in

         11  detail. In short order I think it would be useful to

         12  make sure that there's no discrepancy between what

         13  EPA defines as a non-road engine for its non-road

         14  engine proposal and what the City is proposing to do

         15  with its proposal.

         16                 I think that would go a long way to

         17  solving problems. And last, I want to just touch on

         18  the waiver provisions in subdivisions I, J, K and L,

         19  we think that they're too lax here. We think given

         20  that the Intro requires the use of new and emerging

         21  fuels and technologies, some incremental costs

         22  should be expected. That's the track record of

         23  bringing in new technologies in every setting. Those

         24  incremental costs decrease and disappear over time

         25  in most cases, but by allowing agencies to opt out,
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          2  if there is any incremental costs, the Council is

          3  indicting such opt-outs, asking each agency to

          4  consider avoided health costs doesn't solve the

          5  problem because there are huge inconsistencies and

          6  uncertainties in avoided cost calculations done by

          7  various government agencies and others.

          8                 Other programs have looked at this

          9  issue and come up with formula for incremental cost

         10  thresholds and so on, we would just like to have

         11  that discussion with you in detail. We don't think

         12  you hit the nail on the head yet at that point.

         13                 And I'll close here. I want to thank

         14  you for the opportunity to testify. Andy has already

         15  touched on the Supreme Court issue. In brief I

         16  should take a paragraph on it and just to let you

         17  know, that we think that the General Contractors

         18  Association is 180 degrees wrong in their

         19  contentions that this program could be at risk, or

         20  may lightly be at risk because of the Supreme Court

         21  case. NRDC will be filing briefs in that case, we'll

         22  provide them to the members and to the staff if

         23  you'd like them.

         24                 We absolutely think that this has

         25  been crafted with that case in mind, and addresses
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          2  the concerns that are being raised there.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 Okay, Ms. Hemphill, thank you. Just

          7  state your name for the record and please proceed.

          8                 MS. HEMPHILL: Okay. My name is

          9  Christina Hemphill, with the New York City

         10  Environmental Justice Alliance, NEJA. We are a

         11  network of grassroots organizations in New York City

         12  that address the excessive environmental burdens

         13  placed on low-income and minority communities. I'm

         14  just going to skip over a little bit of my testimony

         15  and just highlight the main points, but the

         16  communities that we serve are disproportionately

         17  exposed to environmental hazards, and one of these

         18  which is diesel exhaust, is a source of severe

         19  health problems. Therefore, we support the efforts

         20  of the City Council to pass Intro. 191-A that would

         21  require the use of ultra-low sulfur fuel and

         22  emission control technologies in non-road vehicles.

         23                 The communities that NEJA serves

         24  suffer from very high rates of asthma, many times

         25  national average. Swatzi already talked about some
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          2  of our communities that are in Harlem, the South

          3  Bronx and in Williamsburg, Brooklyn, that not only

          4  suffer from diesel exhaust from on-road impacts from

          5  trucks and cars but also from bus depots and power

          6  plants and also non-road sources as well.

          7                 Faced with the growing scientific

          8  data proving the health threat of diesel fuel of the

          9  EPA, has already taken steps to reduce emissions

         10  from diesel fuel engines, and in 2001 EPA enacted a

         11  rule that reduces the allowable sulfur content of

         12  diesel fuel and places strict emission standards on

         13  highway interests such as trucks and buses. And the

         14  similar rule is to be adopted soon for non-road

         15  engines due to the large contribution to air

         16  pollution, about 44 percent from non-road sources.

         17                 With the adoption of the EPA's

         18  non-road rule, it will be a requirement for non-road

         19  diesel engines in New York City to comply with the

         20  new emission standards. Therefore, the Council's

         21  intro was proactive in regards to EPA standards that

         22  will be effective in the coming years. And the

         23  production of ultra-low sulfur fuel is increasing

         24  due to that EPA's fuel in the future will be the

         25  only type of diesel fuel that will actually be
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          2  available.

          3                 Overall NEJA is in favor of Intro.

          4  191-A, but we also would like to make some

          5  suggestions that we feel would make the law even

          6  more effective. The perfect bill stipulates for the

          7  new restrictions to apply first only in Lower

          8  Manhattan and then for the rest of the City;

          9  however, we would like to see the restrictions be

         10  for the rest of the City just as quickly because of

         11  all the effects that the diesel fuel was having on

         12  low-income communities of color.

         13                 We feel that low-income communities

         14  of color are in a great need to see this law

         15  realized. Also, we feel that the law should apply to

         16  engines and not only vehicles, as some other people

         17  had mentioned beforehand, because there are many

         18  engines used on construction sites, such as

         19  generators and pumps that will also release a lot of

         20  diesel fumes as well.

         21                 And also, if technologically

         22  feasible, the law should apply to engines that are

         23  under 50 horsepower. We thought that this

         24  stipulation is necessary to inhibit the use of

         25  smaller engines in combination to forego the new
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          2  standards placed on the larger engines.

          3                 And, finally, in addition, entities

          4  such as the Metropolitan Transit Authority and the

          5  Port Authority and projects through the empowerment

          6  program are not covered under the term "City agency"

          7  in the bill and we believe that they should also be

          8  subject to the new laws.

          9                 The EPA estimates that the costs for

         10  ultra-low diesel fuel and pollution control

         11  technology to total approximately one percent of the

         12  cost for non-road vehicle. We feel that it's a

         13  reasonable figure for all City agencies to meet

         14  since the use of ultra-low sulfur fuel reduces

         15  operating costs to schedule maintenance of the

         16  vehicles.

         17                 NEJA has long supported cleaner

         18  fuels, whether the alternative fuels are better,

         19  cleaner burners of existing fuels, and we see there

         20  is no reason to compromise public health when

         21  alternative fuels with lower pollution emissions and

         22  pollution controls technologies exist.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you, all, very much, for your very illuminating
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          2  testimony. I just have a couple of comments with the

          3  WEACT testimony. Certainly you made it very clear

          4  that all these other City monies that are flowing

          5  into these other things to the extent that we can

          6  craft something that takes into account to the

          7  extent that we can, all these other City monies.

          8                 I'm not an attorney. I won't pretend

          9  to be one, but certainly to the extent that we can

         10  craft something that pulls in more projects and

         11  gives us the ability to place further control, we'd

         12  be happy to do that.

         13                 Andy, I certainly did appreciate your

         14  comprehensive testimony as well.

         15                 I didn't make comments in the margins

         16  to set up my little comment period here, you know?

         17  But I do wish to ask you whether or not you support

         18  the expansion of the bill to include other types of

         19  fuel, and if so, why? And if not, why not?

         20                 The bill calls for ultra-low sulfur

         21  diesel, and this is a question for everyone. I mean,

         22  should we leave it as an ultra-low sulfur diesel

         23  bill or expand it to include other types of fuel?

         24  Does that make sense to everybody here?

         25                 MR. DARRELL: Well, there's the fuel
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          2  issues and then the engines issues that was touched

          3  on.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Again, my

          5  hearing is not that good.

          6                 MR. DARRELL: Right, sorry. Sorry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

          8  speak right into the mic.

          9                 MR. DARRELL: There were two issues in

         10  terms of expansion. One had to do with the fuels,

         11  the other had to do with the vehicles engines

         12  definition, and they're both important.

         13                 I think ultra-low sulfur diesel is a

         14  very important starting point. Purenox, for example,

         15  can be used in combination with ultra-low sulfur

         16  diesel fuel. At present we don't see an alternative

         17  out there that is better than ultra-low sulfur

         18  diesel as a starting point. If there is something

         19  that can be better, we'd be happy to talk about it

         20  and consider it, but at the moment we think it's a

         21  good starting point.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great.

         23                 MS. PRAKASH: If I can just jump in

         24  very quickly?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.
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          2                 MS. PRAKASH: I think the Council can

          3  certainly include language that would encourage,

          4  although not require, that City contracts consider

          5  completely alternative fuels, like compressed

          6  natural gas, for construction vehicles. It's

          7  innovative, it's cutting edge stuff, but they do

          8  exist and I think the contracts can certainly

          9  encourage that agencies consider them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 Rich.

         12                 MR. KASSELL: I think the key issue on

         13  the fuels is really this whether 15 is the cap or

         14  whether there should be flexibility beyond. And I

         15  think that, you know, New York City we always think

         16  is the center of the universe, of course, and we're

         17  largely right. But we're not right when it comes to

         18  trying to create -- I'm kidding there -- trying to

         19  create changes in the market for non-road engines or

         20  any automotive engines. The non-road engine world is

         21  a global industry, and it's responding to global

         22  regulatory changes that are happening, lead

         23  principally by the US, the European community and

         24  Japan. And in that context, ultra-low sulfur diesel

         25  and the type of emissions control technologies that
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          2  have been talked about today are really the name of

          3  the game, and there are niche products, and Swati is

          4  right, that there could be a role for some

          5  alternative fuels here, but we should lose sight of

          6  the principal focus, which is let's use this intro

          7  as a way to bring the newest and the best of the

          8  technology development that's going on to New York

          9  so it happens here, rather than Ohio or rather than

         10  somewhere else.

         11                 MR. DARRELL: If you don't mind?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         13                 MR. DARRELL: I would just add to that

         14  the importance of the link between the ultra-low

         15  sulfur diesel and the advanced retrofit technology,

         16  the best retrofit technologies only work with the

         17  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MR. DARRELL: So it's important to

         20  have them together.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         22                 And, Rich, also thank you for your

         23  commentary about the waiver provisions and how we

         24  define best available technology. These are things

         25  that we'll consider.
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          2                 Thank you. Thanks very much. Thanks

          3  for your patience. Thanks for being here. I

          4  appreciate your sort of sticking with us through the

          5  whole hearing, and the benefit of your views. Thank

          6  you. Thanks a lot.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, as

          8  the witnesses depart, I would be remiss if I did not

          9  make mention of the role played by Andy Darrell and

         10  Rich Kassell and their respective organizations in

         11  the investigations and development leading to this

         12  bill, and we really appreciate that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And look

         15  forward to our continuing interrelationship.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         17                 And the next panel, Steven Levy, Bill

         18  Coughlin, Kevin Snape. And then the panel to follow,

         19  the panel to follow is Patricia Dillon and Ann,

         20  looks like Arlen. Ann Arlen.

         21                 And we'll have, of the current panel

         22  we'll have Steve Levy testify first, after people

         23  would just excuse me for one minute. I'll be right

         24  back. In the meantime Donna can swear in the

         25  witnesses.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          3  right hand.

          4                 In the testimony that you're about to

          5  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MR. LEVY: Yes.

          8                 MR. COUGHLIN: Yes.

          9                 MR. SNAPE: Yes.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

         12  Everybody is sworn, right?

         13                 MR. LEVY: Yes, we are.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good, thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We appreciate

         16  your patience.

         17                 MR. LEVY: Thanks for the opportunity.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And look

         19  forward to hearing your testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I didn't

         21  want to miss a word of it, that's why I asked you to

         22  wait. Thank you.

         23                 I've got your testimony here. Great,

         24  okay, Mr. Levy. Thanks very much.

         25                 MR. LEVY: Thank you. My name is
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          2  Steven Levy, and I represent Sprague Energy. Thanks

          3  for the opportunity to speak to you today and

          4  hopefully answer some questions of some issues that

          5  were brought up by other people that were

          6  testifying.

          7                 I'm the Managing Director of Clean

          8  Fuel for Sprague. I've been in the business for

          9  almost 30 years. I've been involved with ultra-low

         10  sulfur diesel fuel since 1998. You can read about

         11  Sprague and so on, but I will tell you that our

         12  relationship with the City of New York goes back to

         13  1980, 1981 for many different energy products. I got

         14  involved with ultra-low sulfur before New York City

         15  Transit Authority, but most importantly got involved

         16  with two feet in January of 2000 when we made our

         17  first delivery of ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel which

         18  went to the Mother Clara Hale Depot.

         19                 Prior to that, the New York State DEC

         20  and the New York City Transit came to me and said

         21  they had this project that they want to reduce

         22  emissions. And being born and raised in New York, as

         23  most of the MTA people were, I was pretty skeptic

         24  because they were telling me that they were going to

         25  reduce emissions by over 90 percent.
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          2                 I was enthralled with it. We got

          3  involved, as I mentioned, in January 2000 we made

          4  our first delivery. Mother Clara Hale operates 250

          5  buses, and after one month we did testing. There was

          6  testing before we used ultra-low and testing right

          7  after, and the emission results were astounding, not

          8  only using ultra-low by itself, but in proceeding

          9  testing that we did a few months later with emission

         10  control devices, they indeed reduced emissions for

         11  PM, carbon monoxide, and total hydrocarbons by over

         12  90 percent.

         13                 In September of 2000, the MTA decided

         14  to change over all 4,400 buses, 18 depots to

         15  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel.

         16                 At that point, and seeing the results

         17  of that and seeing the new regulations by the EPA,

         18  seeing the new regulations coming down from the EPA

         19  in the years to come, and also the need to reduce

         20  emissions and from proactive entities, such as the

         21  NRDC and environmental defense and the American Lung

         22  Association and so on, and seeing the results of the

         23  project, it was a no-brainer for us. We made a big

         24  investment in ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel, not only

         25  to acquire supply but then as now to set up a
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          2  segregated distribution and transportation system to

          3  maintain product integrity for the ultra-low sulfur

          4  diesel fuel.

          5                 Since that time, ultra-low sulfur

          6  diesel fuel today, as we will explain to you the

          7  specifications of it, is not only being used by the

          8  MTA New York City Transit, but New York City Transit

          9  is also using it in their non-revenue vehicles, they

         10  are also proactive in recommending the use for new

         11  contracts of building new depots in New York City to

         12  their contractors. It's being used by livery lines,

         13  which for the county of Westchester, in all their

         14  transit buses, and Liberty Lines is a franchisee for

         15  New York, to some of the fleet for Department of

         16  Sanitation, Department of Transportation, as well.

         17                 It's also powering the buses that

         18  move people around Battery Park, and we'll talk a

         19  little bit more about the construction uses in New

         20  York City.

         21                 Ninety-five percent of Sprague's

         22  business is in the Northeast, although we've made

         23  ultra-low sulfur diesel deliveries and other energy

         24  product supply from Maine to Tennessee. But we're

         25  supplying other heavy and medium and light duty
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          2  vehicles, both on-road and off-road fleets right now

          3  in the Northeast, and also not only the off-road

          4  construction equipment, but also use the stationary

          5  equipment, used for power generation, for utilities,

          6  for hospitals and for emergency generators, both for

          7  buildings as well as even down at the World Trade

          8  Center.

          9                 Ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel is

         10  available, it has been available. As a matter of

         11  fact, in the New York area now, we plan to have our

         12  third terminal open up in the Bronx on or before

         13  November 1st, but there are four terminals, three of

         14  which we use, that have ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel

         15  in it today.

         16                 Entities like Early or Tully

         17  Construction has its own vehicle. They can come and

         18  pick up ultra-low sulfur with their own vehicle, and

         19  bring it to their own construction equipment.

         20                 We also sell to other fuel

         21  wholesalers or distributors who will come with their

         22  fuel trucks and make deliveries to their customers.

         23  In addition to that, we make deliveries ourselves.

         24  Understand as well that these trucks also must only

         25  be used for ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel, not for
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          2  any other fuel, so it must be a segregated truck.

          3                 This real success of the program has

          4  been the proactiveness of users, as well, but also

          5  it's not just for users like New York City Transit

          6  Authority. I mean, deliveries are made of ten

          7  gallons to 7,400 gallons in local New York City. So,

          8  there isn't a minimum size delivery.

          9                 As a matter of fact, as soon as there

         10  is demand at the retail service station pump,

         11  ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel will be available there

         12  as well, and we plan in the next six months to have

         13  it available at a couple of stations because there

         14  is demand for those service stations, too.

         15                 Now, the specifications of ultra low.

         16  Ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel is different to no

         17  matter who you speak to around the country. Being

         18  one of the leaders of ultra-low in the country over

         19  the years, we went with the specification of typical

         20  15 parts per million, with a maximum of 30. And if

         21  you speak to the Transit Authority, if you look at

         22  City specifications, if you look at the MBTA in

         23  Boston or Boston public schools or New York City

         24  schools or New Jersey Transit, or anybody else that

         25  I did mention, their specs will read that.
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          2                 The specs will also be the same for

          3  end-users in Chicago, all the way to Seattle, as a

          4  matter of fact throughout the whole northern tier of

          5  the United States.

          6                 There is 15 PPM max in Southern

          7  California, through a refinery that's delivering

          8  right there, to its local customer, where it can be

          9  controlled. There the products are coming directly

         10  out of a refinery to the end-user.

         11                 Here in New York we must go through a

         12  distribution channel, and to have a rule of 15 PPM,

         13  even though it might leave the refinery a ten or a

         14  15 or so on, I've always felt that we needed a

         15  little extra edge just in case we pick up some

         16  sulfur somewhere in the distribution channel,

         17  especially since we have other resalers coming to

         18  pick up product for their customers, as well as when

         19  you start to test and to read the specifications in

         20  parts per million, for sulfur testing gets a little

         21  gritty, and I might have 15, you might test it and

         22  you might come up with 22. Even though we're using

         23  the same test method. Therefore, those are the

         24  reasons why we prefer to have a maximum 30.

         25                 We're reviewing it. It is very
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          2  unlikely we will reduce it to a maximum of 15 at

          3  this time.

          4                 However, I do recommend that would

          5  also correlate with the EPA guidelines that perhaps

          6  you come up with in your bill maybe a typical 15

          7  with a max of 30 until June or September of 2006 of

          8  which then it would go to a maximum of 15, which is

          9  when the federal on-road rules come into effect.

         10                 Those are the high points that I

         11  wanted to make, and I look forward to answering any

         12  questions that you might have, and I thank you for

         13  the opportunity.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you very much. We will have some questions once

         16  everyone is completed their statement.

         17                 Whoever wants to -- how about we just

         18  go in order?

         19                 MR. SNAPE: All right. My name is

         20  Kevin Snape and I'm representing Lubrizol and Engine

         21  Control Systems.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         23  speak a little louder, I'm sorry.

         24                 MR. SNAPE: Okay, that's quite all

         25  right.
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          2                 My name is Kevin Snape and I

          3  represent Engine Control Systems, and Lubrizol

          4  Corporation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Wait. Let me

          6  just make sure I have your statement in front of me.

          7                 Okay.

          8                 MR. SNAPE: All right?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right in front

         10  of me, there you go.

         11                 MR. SNAPE: I would like to thank the

         12  Council for holding this hearing, and I'd also like

         13  to compliment you on your stamina.

         14                 What I'd like to do is, since you've

         15  got my written testimony, is to cut right to the

         16  chase, it's probably been long for everybody.

         17                 We really are, in reading over the

         18  legislation, we'd like to speak strongly in support

         19  of it, we think it's a great idea and we compliment

         20  you being as proactive as you are on this one. Most

         21  urban communities are kind of waiting for their

         22  states to take the lead and we're glad to see

         23  someone stepping out.

         24                 That said, there are a couple of

         25  points in the legislation we'd just like to point
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          2  out that might use a bit of work, might have a few

          3  snags. One of them is the question of what are you

          4  trying to achieve?

          5                 There's a lot of discussion about the

          6  public health impacts of all of this, but the

          7  technology discussion that goes with it is focused

          8  almost exclusively on particulate matter reduction,

          9  and as we heard from the medical community earlier,

         10  nitrogen oxide goes hand-in-hand with PM, in terms

         11  of asthma triggers and other respiratory problems.

         12                 And, so, what we would do is argue

         13  that perhaps you need to cast a wider net in terms

         14  of technology. There are good technologies out there

         15  for NOx reduction, not as broad as the pool for PM,

         16  and we can go over that in a minute, I've actually

         17  got a table for you.

         18                 But at least, I think not to diminish

         19  the ULSD track, I think that's crucial. In fact, I

         20  think it's essential, but you may want to think

         21  about phrasing the bill more in terms of a

         22  performance standard rather than a ULSD plus best

         23  available technology.

         24                 The other reason I would just point

         25  out that performance standard might be a better way
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          2  to phrase it, is that diesel engines can last up to

          3  40 years. And if you look at a diesel engine made in

          4  1997, and compare it to one made in 2002, they don't

          5  look like the same beast.

          6                 If you go back to 1987, it looks like

          7  it's from a different planet. These things are

          8  large, they're bulky and they have gone through

          9  tremendous change. Therefore, finding a single best

         10  available technology is almost impossible.

         11                 We recently did a retrofit of a fleet

         12  in California, where they had a range of engines

         13  ranging from 1984 to 2001. We had to deploy four

         14  different combinations of technology to maximize

         15  their PM reduction, because they were so different

         16  in terms of individual types of engines. And I think

         17  the point I really want to make is one size doesn't

         18  fit all. So that the more you can do to set it as a

         19  performance, you must go to say 30 percent below

         20  certification level, 40 percent below certification

         21  level for the pollutants you're interested in may

         22  well be a better strategy and then let the end-user

         23  who has to actually implement this, make the

         24  decision based on what's out there.

         25                 And the other thing I would point
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          2  out, as the last panel pointed out very accurately,

          3  we are in a rapid rate of evolution right now.

          4  Technologies that are available today are going to

          5  be outdated in three years, and we're going to have

          6  a whole new generation of diesel retrofit

          7  technology. By marrying yourself to something other

          8  than a performance standard, you leave yourself

          9  being legislatively trapped in what you've already

         10  said, and then you're going to have to go back and

         11  go through the painful process of reopening the

         12  legislation and rewriting.

         13                 So, for that reason alone, I think

         14  the whole idea of a moving standard based on a

         15  performance, what do you want to achieve, rather

         16  than trying to specify and guess what the technology

         17  is going to be.

         18                 EPA did that for a long time, and

         19  they concluded they froze technology, because they

         20  couldn't employ the new technology, so there was no

         21  incentive, people stopped developing it.

         22                 The other thing I wanted to just go

         23  through very quickly, if you're following along, on

         24  the bottom of page two there is a technology chart.

         25  This is just what's available at the moment, and
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          2  what I tried to do is capture where we're at in the

          3  technology tree right now, and ULSD, and these are,

          4  by the way, when I have PM reductions and NOx

          5  reductions in the second and third columns, they're

          6  based on EPA and CARB verifications. Those are not

          7  our commercial numbers. That's what they have tested

          8  and said this is what the technology will do.

          9                 And if you look at it, you have a

         10  whole range of costs and options available to you,

         11  and in part I think one of the jobs Council is going

         12  to have to do is sort out, if you use the

         13  performance standard, you then don't have to deal

         14  with this, but if you're going to go with defining

         15  what is a best available technology, then you're

         16  going to have to use this kind of a resource and

         17  start figuring out how do we go about defining, what

         18  are we going to define as best available, what are

         19  the criteria we're going to set up, and just a final

         20  note on criteria. The EPA and CARB have already gone

         21  through the hard work of verifying -- I don't want

         22  to say this in too flippant a manner, but there's a

         23  lot of very new innovative technologies that will

         24  never deliver a thing. They're good ideas that never

         25  pan out. But there's always someone that has a
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          2  commercial story and a database and they'll sell you

          3  a product.

          4                 EPA, to try to circumvent that, has

          5  created the verification web page, and I would argue

          6  it's a really good tool. And one of the things you

          7  may want to think about is saying you've either got

          8  to be on CARB's verification page, or EPA's

          9  verification page, because we want to know we're

         10  getting what we pay for, and you're not just selling

         11  just a bill of goods. And so that would just be a

         12  kind of final suggestion.

         13                 The last thing I'd like to do is make

         14  an offer. Since we've made this to Philadelphia, I

         15  think it's only fair we make it to New York City.

         16  Engine Control Systems goes through and one of the

         17  things that we do is we offer to do a fleet survey.

         18  So as you start talking about your construction of

         19  fleets that you want to look at, we're more than

         20  willing to send at no cost to you or the

         21  construction fleets an engineer in to do the fleet

         22  survey and actually look at what are the

         23  technologies. Because the one thing that hasn't come

         24  out today, and I should probably close with, is if

         25  you mismatch the technology to the application,
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          2  you're likely to destroy the technology.

          3                 So, that if you take a 1986 Detroit

          4  diesel engine and you try to use ULSD and try to put

          5  a particulate filter on it, most likely within six

          6  months that filter will be utterly inoperable, even

          7  if you regenerate it constantly and you're doing

          8  everything right, because the carbon loading from a

          9  two-stroke engine that old is so high you will

         10  overwhelm the technology.

         11                 Part of this is saying sometimes you

         12  have to go with the less advanced technology because

         13  it's more robust and can handle it. Sometimes the

         14  DOT, which is an older technology, is actually the

         15  best choice, because you may only get 40 percent

         16  reduction as opposed to 80. But you'll get it

         17  consistently, you'll get it all the time and you

         18  won't be messing with it, where the 80, you may get

         19  it for six months and then the poor thing dies and

         20  then you've got to buy something that's five times

         21  more expensive and you've got to pay for it again.

         22                 So, I thank you for your time, I

         23  appreciate the chance to testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you for your insights. They're very valuable,
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          2  valuable to us, as we try to, you know, navigate

          3  these technological questions and set out public

          4  policy and law that will give us the best result and

          5  the most practical result, and I thank you. I thank

          6  you for that.

          7                 Mr. Coughlin.

          8                 MR. COUGHLIN: Good evening. My name

          9  is Bill Coughlin. I'm from Sunoco. I'm the Manager

         10  of Strategic Planning and Clean Fuels from our

         11  Corporate Headquarters in Philadelphia.

         12                 On behalf of Sunoco, we support your

         13  proposed legislation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have a

         15  statement from Sunoco?

         16                 MR. COUGHLIN: Yes, you should.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Sorry.

         18                 MR. COUGHLIN: No problem.

         19                 I think bottom line is we support the

         20  fact that you are addressing the people, the

         21  environment, and quite frankly at the same time your

         22  image, and I think that should be applauded.

         23                 So, quickly what I would like to do

         24  is just kind of walk you through the supply chain

         25  side of all of this so that you have some reasonable
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          2  understanding of what it takes to move the product

          3  from point A to point B, and I'd like to do that in

          4  four real simple ways.

          5                 Let's agree to agree in terms of

          6  validating where are we today in terms of

          7  legislation, what you're asking for. Secondly, see

          8  if I can in layman's terms help you understand what

          9  the challenges are for the refiner, a/k/a Sunoco,

         10  and a supplier, such as Sprague Energy, two

         11  different entities here, okay?

         12                 And then I guess I'd like to make

         13  sure that in looking at your proposed legislation I

         14  have a clear understanding of your options and

         15  similar to the way Kevin closed, I have a couple of

         16  questions, okay?

         17                 I guess first and foremost, from a

         18  validation standpoint, it appears to me, and I

         19  applaud this --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just a second.

         21                 Donna, I just want to indicate that I

         22  need you back here. Thank you.

         23                 MR. COUGHLIN: What I wanted to

         24  applaud in the legislation and at the same time

         25  validate is the following: You are addressing the
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          2  off-road, the non-road, the off-highway, we have all

          3  these kinds of expressions, but what it appears that

          4  what you are doing is you are right now suggesting

          5  that engines that are employed in typical off-road

          6  activities that are not governed by the pending

          7  ultra-low sulfur diesel 15 part per million spec,

          8  you know, in a couple of years, you're reaching out

          9  there way in advance basically of 2010 and you're

         10  saying that in the time line that your proposed

         11  legislation moves forward with, you want to take the

         12  on-road requirements and place them on the off-road

         13  vehicles sooner than the on-road.

         14                 And frankly, I followed all that, I

         15  hope you did as well, from a Sunoco standpoint we

         16  kind of applaud that because you're taking some of

         17  the complexity that lies in this road ahead, as Mr.

         18  Warner said earlier, you've got a new off-road

         19  engine spec that doesn't go in until '07, then you

         20  have the mandate to clean up all the off-road

         21  vehicles by 2010. That means in seven years the oil

         22  industry has to manage multiple grades of

         23  sulfur-containing fuel. You are pushing the envelope

         24  by trying to move things forward, and that is

         25  appreciated.
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          2                 What's going on right now is the

          3  industry is trying to determine how we're going to

          4  manufacture low, ultra-low sulfur diesel to 15, and

          5  the bigger challenge here really is that across the

          6  Board, and Steven may be right, there may be a

          7  refiner in Southern California that's making 15

          8  today, but I would submit to you, in terms of a mass

          9  produced commodity product, there's not a domestic

         10  refiner today making 15 parts per million, and I

         11  think we need to define what that really means again

         12  in layman's terms.

         13                 For the manufacturer to certify that

         14  the product that ultimately goes in an end-user's

         15  vehicle is indeed 15 parts per million, I will tell

         16  you and anybody else, the refiner has to certify it

         17  at the refinery gate at zero. No presence of sulfur.

         18  So, when we talk about 30 and 15 and all of these

         19  other thresholds, please recognize that the refining

         20  manufacturing spec is way below the marketplace spec

         21  that you're calling for.

         22                 Today, currently Sunoco makes 600,000

         23  gallons a day of ultra-low sulfur diesel somewhere

         24  in the 12 to 15 part per million sulfur max

         25  threshold so that we can certify that when it leaves
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          2  our refinery and comes up here to the New York City

          3  metropolitan area for use in the MTA's fleet it's

          4  going to be at a 30 max.

          5                 Now, that's not to say there are not

          6  cargoes that come in at 28, 25, okay the point is

          7  it's certified at 30 at the end-users location, and

          8  to do that, to certify 30 and the end-users

          9  location, and this is why my theme here is on the

         10  supply chain, we have to move that product from

         11  Philadelphia into the Port of New York via barge.

         12  The barge is contracted, the barge is cleaned, it's

         13  inspected, it's certified so that we can put about a

         14  12 to 15 part per million sulfur onboard that barge,

         15  move it up here to the harbor, bring it into the

         16  supply chain, keep it sulfur free, in other words,

         17  maintain its integrity so that by the time it goes

         18  on a carrier's truck and ends up at a terminal, it's

         19  still within the threshold.

         20                 So, there are components of the

         21  supply chain that I'd like to make sure that

         22  everybody understands.

         23                 Now, today's Sunoco on-road sulfur

         24  spec is 470 max. What typically resides in our

         25  refinery is 350. So, what challenges do we have as a

                                                            241

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  supplier to get to 15? My parallel, again, is what

          3  we have to do for the MTA, and I'll build again on

          4  what Mr. Werner said. He shared with you that

          5  off-road is probably in the vicinity of two to

          6  three-thousand parts per million, that's a valid

          7  statement, if it's off-road it could be that high,

          8  you have the typical on-road which is at 350, so

          9  there's two grades. You have what's being produced

         10  for the MTA, which is to be not exceeding 30, and

         11  your proposed language says we want something

         12  basically not to exceed 15.

         13                 So, that's four grades of vanilla, if

         14  you follow me, all right? Each with its own unique

         15  set of ingredients and challenges.

         16                 So, in order to deliver you

         17  cost-effectively 15 parts per million, every receipt

         18  that comes into the City for your compliance

         19  purposes, and the key here is cost effectively,

         20  quite frankly, you need critical mass. You need a

         21  lot of volume to do that.

         22                 So, I'm just going to walk you

         23  through a real brief scenario that says in the

         24  absence of critical mass, and let me define that for

         25  you. You heard the New York City Transit Authority
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          2  consumes 50 million gallons a year of ultra-low

          3  sulfur diesel. I'm just going to say to you, that's

          4  the entry level to get critical mass and get the

          5  kind of across the board supply chain efficiencies

          6  that you would need to have a cost-effective

          7  solution here. Critical mass is necessary, high

          8  sulfur diesel has to be segregated from low-sulfur

          9  diesel, ultra low has got to be shipped in such a

         10  manner that you eliminate any contact with other

         11  sulfur-bearing fuels.

         12                 The biggest risk to moving product

         13  out of a refinery into a storage facility is the

         14  method of delivery, the barge or the pipeline and

         15  it's ultimately the storage tank that the products

         16  go in. So, let's not lose sight of that. And in the

         17  absence of critical mass, I submit to you the only

         18  way you're going to get product into the Port of New

         19  York, between now and 2006, 2007, is via barge.

         20  That's the only method of delivery you're going to

         21  be able to bring it in. And I'm not challenging your

         22  legislation, I'm trying to provide a reality check

         23  here.

         24                 To finish, you know, validating

         25  everything, it would appear to me that if we had the
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          2  opportunity to just walk through what the refiner

          3  does, what the supplier does, and then I can

          4  basically wrap up.

          5                 In the absence of critical mass, at

          6  least 50 million gallons of 15 parts per million

          7  sulfur, the refinery is going to schedule three

          8  grades of diesel, they're going to produce for your

          9  purposes a zero PPM max, they're going to segregate

         10  each grade with individual tanks, all of the

         11  intrarefinery moves are going to have to be

         12  micromanaged to minimize contamination, it's just

         13  like you would never follow chocolate with vanilla,

         14  right? Because you're just going to pick up all of

         15  that stream. You have to flush all of the loading

         16  lines and pumps and then you have top arrange for

         17  bard (sic) cleaning, testing and certification.

         18  That's what the refiner has to do.

         19                 The supplier, which could be a/k/a

         20  Sprague Energy, they've got to arrange to take the

         21  product in via marine or off of a barge and find a

         22  terminal that has to be segregated, both on the

         23  receiving lines and inside the terminal, the tank

         24  must have segregated discharge lines and pumps to

         25  the load rack, because Steven's point is extremely
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          2  valid in terms of dedicated closed systems. But let

          3  me build on Steven's caution.

          4                 There's a very small fleet that's

          5  deployed today in New York City hauling ultra-low

          6  sulfur diesel at 30. You can't use those same

          7  vehicles to haul ultra-low sulfur diesel at 15, all

          8  right? Because they're going to pick the last

          9  contents of the product up, so if you're hauling 30,

         10  you can't use that same vehicle to haul 15, all

         11  right? You're going to need probably yet another set

         12  of delivery assets to maintain the integrity that's

         13  required at 15 parts per million.

         14                 So, that's what's going to happen on

         15  the supplier's side.

         16                 So, as I begin to wrap up, you know,

         17  I ask myself what are your objectives and what

         18  options do you have to get there. I think there are

         19  four very, very simple ones, without debating

         20  technology.

         21                 You can advance your proposed

         22  legislation and attempt to mitigate the high cost of

         23  supply associated with a relatively low level of

         24  demand. And I'm going to be very honest with you, I

         25  don't have a crystal ball here, I would submit to
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          2  you, just reading your legislation, you probably

          3  have no more than a million gallons a year worth of

          4  fuel consumed, or fuel consumption needs in the way

          5  it is currently written, right? I'm guessing again,

          6  I don't have a crystal ball here, but you have a

          7  small, targeted set of volume.

          8                 So, it would be expense to move that

          9  small sets of demands. I think your other option

         10  might be to convince other diesel consumers to move

         11  to 15 parts per million, to help offset some of that

         12  higher cost. Example, the MTA. The Department of

         13  Education just went out this summer and went out to

         14  a consolidated fuel bid. Unfortunately they stayed

         15  at low-sulfur diesel, 350 parts per million max.

         16                 So, if you look at some of the other

         17  pockets or buckets of demand, it could pull things

         18  together to help legitimize your 15 parts per

         19  million and get some supply chain economic.

         20                 Conversely, you can remain with the

         21  30 that is in the New York City marketplace today.

         22  I'm not debating any of the other comments that that

         23  might give the optics that, oh, maybe we'll just

         24  stop at 30, nobody is going to stop at 30, the EPA

         25  has got everybody charging for 15. So, the point
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          2  here is could you live with 30 until the EPA's

          3  mandate comes in?

          4                 And I think the final option that I

          5  believe you might have available to you within the

          6  language of your proposed legislation is, what other

          7  alternative technologies and fuels are at your

          8  disposal? Because as Kevin just said here, one size

          9  does not fit everything. And I know that's not your

         10  intent, but I ask you to recognize that not

         11  everything is going to get the desired emission

         12  reduction simply by using ultra-low sulfur diesel

         13  and retrofit technologies.

         14                 So, as I close, I have in my mind

         15  what I think are just a few questions, okay? If I

         16  can find them. All right. And I look at this

         17  holistically and not from a fuel standpoint, okay?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are these

         19  questions for yourself, or? They're not questions

         20  for me, are they?

         21                 MR. COUGHLIN: Yes, they are.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, we sort of

         23  ask the questions here, but just put them out there.

         24                 MR. COUGHLIN: Okay, very brief. I'm

         25  just curious of what, other than the obvious goal,
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          2  to reduce PM, I'm just wondering, is there something

          3  that's quantifiable out there? Just how much are you

          4  looking to reduce?

          5                 Your proposed language seems to be

          6  silent on NOx, as has been pointed out here

          7  previously.

          8                 And I guess I'm curious, given the

          9  age profile of all the fleets, I submit to you that

         10  from a cost-effectiveness standpoint, many

         11  commercial enterprises are going to have a hard time

         12  justifying moving to ultra low sulfur and a hardware

         13  retrofit investment. Therefore, other technologies,

         14  it was discussed earlier this evening, emulsified

         15  diesel, as an example, is it technology that doesn't

         16  require any hardware investment? It can be made with

         17  ultra low and it can be made with regular low sulfur

         18  diesel, and you get PM reductions and NOx

         19  reductions.

         20                 So, I was just asking myself and you,

         21  is there a real specific target that you're looking

         22  for?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Your

         24  questions are duly noted, and as we go back and have

         25  deliberations on how we tweak this legislation to
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          2  make it better and make it more palatable and make

          3  it more economic and make it more easier to do, yet

          4  getting the biggest impact for like the least amount

          5  of yelling and screaming certainly will take those

          6  into account. And it is part of the purpose of the

          7  hearing to have people pose comments and ideas and

          8  things that we haven't thought of and things that we

          9  could do better. I think we've heard a lot of that

         10  today, and this panel particularly has been very

         11  illuminating in order to help us along.

         12                 I take it from your statement that,

         13  you know, from your perspective it's a whole

         14  different animal to get us, you know, 15 parts per

         15  million on site, and Steve also supported that, you

         16  know, contention as well.

         17                 MR. COUGHLIN: Well, Mr. Gennaro, I

         18  agree with the way that you summarize, but, again, I

         19  would say to you, we can do it. The industry can

         20  provide you what you want. I submit to you, you can

         21  help yourself, as well as help us on our side, by

         22  martialing a greater set of demand so that it could

         23  cost effectively be done. That's really my message.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. I can

         25  appreciate that.
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          2                 I did want to explore with Mr. Snape

          3  for just a second, you made a point regarding best

          4  available technology and doing things differently

          5  where we can mix and match appropriate technological

          6  solutions to the engines that we're dealing with and

          7  if there's a better way of saying, you know, what it

          8  is we're trying to say in the bill that would get us

          9  a result that would be better for everyone, if you

         10  can think of a good way for us to say that, or some

         11  additional insight that you'd like to pass along to

         12  us or other people who have done this in the past

         13  and perhaps a better way than we've expressed it in

         14  our bill, bring that information to our attention

         15  because we want to do a good job here. I didn't sit

         16  here for six hours to say, okay, I'm done now, let's

         17  just do whatever happens. Yes, I was intrigued by

         18  your assessment of how the best available technology

         19  isn't always the way to go, depending upon what kind

         20  of engines you're dealing with, and I won't

         21  reiterate your whole statement, but you know it

         22  better than I. But anything that you believe will

         23  help us say it better, then that would be

         24  appreciated.

         25                 MR. SNAPE: I actually have some
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          2  alternative wording for you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

          4                 MR. SNAPE: I actually have some

          5  alternative wording for you. On page three

          6  particularly. I didn't bring it up here but I will

          7  send it on to Donna so she's got a copy of it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please. Please.

          9  Absolutely.

         10                 MR. SNAPE: Yes, I think more than

         11  anything what it comes down to is that given the

         12  development of diesel there are just so many quirks

         13  about each successive generation of vehicles that

         14  you wind up having incompatibilities.

         15                 And, so, for example, the diesel fuel

         16  emulsion overrides most of those, but you're not

         17  going to get as much PM reduction. I mean, it will

         18  get you about 60 percent. And that may be what

         19  you're looking for. If you could get 60 percent

         20  across the entire range of your fleet, you may be

         21  willing to say that's good enough, and in part

         22  that's why I also posed the question exactly what is

         23  the goal, because if you can say that what we want

         24  to do is take the old smokers from the 1980s, which

         25  are still in those construction fleets, by the way,
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          2  they haven't gone anywhere, if we can get 30 percent

          3  out of them and out of the newer ones we can get 60

          4  percent, that's a win. Well, then there are

          5  technologies that we can help you with and we can

          6  mix and match and we can put that package together.

          7  And, so, that's why I just wanted to raise the

          8  caution, and this is a caution I have for EPA, and I

          9  think they do it all the time, is EPA pushes for a

         10  one-size fits all technology picture, because

         11  they're trying to force the next technological

         12  generation in engine development, and I understand

         13  that, and so a lot of the people who do what Engine

         14  Control Systems does tries to go straight to the

         15  OEMs and they sell products straight to them to be

         16  put into the vehicles.

         17                 Very few people focus on the

         18  retrofits side, which is very, very different,

         19  because we've got to deal with 40 years of poor

         20  engineering, or, you know, going backwards in time

         21  basically, and we've got to go back and fix those

         22  engines. And that's why I think we wind up with a

         23  sometimes very different perspective, and it comes

         24  down to the question of how do you deal with the

         25  worst part of your fleet?
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          2                 Because we can all, I mean anyone,

          3  Corning mentioned it, anyone can take a post-1997

          4  engine and get 90 percent PM reduction. That's not

          5  hard, it's not cheap, but it's not hard. But it's

          6  what do you do with the 1985 engine. And you can't

          7  do all the nice neat bells and whistles that are

          8  currently out there, they won't work. You'll kill

          9  them. And so the question is, how do you deal with

         10  that aspect, and that's one of the reasons why we

         11  offered up -- if you'd like I've got some language,

         12  but we can also bring in an engineer to help look

         13  at, pick one of the fleets who might be a contractor

         14  and let us down, do the analysis and then sit down

         15  with the staff and see if we can't find a way,

         16  what's reasonable to expect, what's it going to

         17  cost, what would happen if, and run out some

         18  scenarios for Council so you've got them in your

         19  hands.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, or just how

         21  we would say it. How we would, you know, express it

         22  legislatively and still get the results that we

         23  wanted, and not be confusing and ambiguous and so

         24  that's why we have good staff, and we do have good

         25  staff.
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          2                 MR. SNAPE: I've heard that today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, a question

          4  for Mr. Levy.

          5                 Do you foresee any problems with

          6  providing the City with sufficient quantity of ultra

          7  low sulfur diesel for City non-road vehicles in

          8  Lower Manhattan? And I have a follow-up to that.

          9                 MR. LEVY: No.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No. See, there

         11  you go.

         12                 Do you foresee any problems with

         13  providing a sufficient quantity of ultra-low sulfur

         14  diesel for City non-road vehicles Citywide?

         15                 Oh, I get the same question except

         16  it's just the Citywide question.

         17                 MR. LEVY: Citywide non-road?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         19                 MR. LEVY: At the specifications that

         20  I'm recommending? No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He indicated at

         22  the specifications that he is recommending there

         23  would not be a problem in doing that.

         24                 MR. LEVY: Until 2006.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But of course
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          2  there would be a problem with doing it at 15?

          3                 MR. LEVY: From before 2006? If you

          4  said to me that you could do 15 but have a plus or

          5  minus of ten to 15 PPM, I would say yes. But if you

          6  said a maximum PPM, I would say it would be a

          7  problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          9                 MR. LEVY: Big problem.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How does the

         11  fuel efficiency of ultra-low sulfur diesel compared

         12  to that of standard diesel, fuel efficiency?

         13                 MR. LEVY: The ultra low sulfur diesel

         14  fuel specification that we've been delivering since

         15  really pre, the TA, in January of 2000, remarkably

         16  if there's any effect you can't see it.

         17                 As you've heard other testimony

         18  today, the operation remains the same and there were

         19  some questions first in the Transit, you know,

         20  running the City's cycle, going down Fifth Avenue,

         21  stop and go, stop and go, there's no power loss.

         22  When we started the project at 7 World Trade Center.

         23  The contractors were very concerned am I going to

         24  have a power loss, and you know, lifting equipment

         25  and so on. There hasn't been any problems at all and
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          2  it's for all types of equipment.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Another

          4  question. How does the, and I hope this is a word,

          5  how does the lubricity of ultra-low sulfur diesel

          6  compare to that of standard diesel? Interesting word

          7  being "lubricity"?

          8                 MR. LEVY: Lubricity is just what it

          9  is. As a matter of fact, ultra-low sulfur diesel

         10  fuel has this lubricity added in it that meets or

         11  exceeds all engine manufacturers, whereas there are

         12  some fleets today buying fuel that does not meet the

         13  lubricity specification for engine manufacturers.

         14  So, it's an added incentive to use the product.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Council

         16  Member Gerson has a question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Certainly I

         18  think we all appreciate your offers and your

         19  questions. Going to a performance standard, and I

         20  think you're kind of all recommending in one way or

         21  another, I just want to make sure I understand

         22  clearly what you're recommending. Essentially would

         23  it work that we would identify the target goals

         24  reductions in the various emissions, the NOx, the

         25  particulate, the C02 and set standards and then
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          2  leave it to the users to come up with the mix and

          3  match to achieve that standard? Or how would it

          4  work?

          5                 MR. SNAPE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, I got

          7  it.

          8                 MR. SNAPE: That's what I would

          9  propose, is that what you do, and if you look at it,

         10  what we're talking about is, DOC is going to get you

         11  about 35 percent, a particulate filter will get you

         12  up to 90, but you can't use a particulate filter on

         13  the whole fleet.

         14                 And, so, what I would do is argue

         15  that perhaps your best bet is to say you've got to

         16  generate an average savings of 60 percent off of the

         17  certification of each engine, so you total up how

         18  many pounds of PM, how many pounds of NOx, that you

         19  want to say that's going to be required and then

         20  it's their job to figure out the way to bid the

         21  contracts so that they can deliver that, and if that

         22  means they then pick that on one portion of their

         23  fleet they do just fuel and one portion they go all

         24  the way and max everything out they can and spend

         25  all the money on certain newer vehicles, but they
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          2  give you a consistent 60 percent savings across

          3  their fleet.

          4                 That is something that would be not

          5  easily but readily doable.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Two types then

          7  of performance standards we can implement; one is

          8  fleet-wide and leave it to the fleet owner to

          9  determine how to reach that goal. The other is for

         10  each vehicle require.

         11                 MR. SNAPE: Yes, and set a percentage

         12  fee, 60 percent off the EPA certification numbers.

         13  The engine was supposed to be an eight gram engine,

         14  well you've got to take it down now to 3.2 grams,

         15  that's your job. And then let them figure out what's

         16  the best way. And that gives you the added advantage

         17  that this new technology emerges and hits the

         18  verification page, they can go that and say, oh, we

         19  thought we would have to retire this vehicle, we can

         20  use this and hit the standard. So that it's a more

         21  dynamic process that way.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, well,

         23  I'll look forward to following up, and just to get

         24  to my last point, going back to the issue of 30

         25  versus 15 and the critical mass, I'm thinking back
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          2  and looking at the testimony we heard earlier from

          3  the folks from the Port Authority and from the

          4  Silverstein concern where they testified that they

          5  have implemented use of ultra-low sulfur diesel

          6  fuel, and I think it implicit because what we were

          7  proposing is that they were able to use the 15 PPM

          8  standard, but do you know if -- I mean, we obviously

          9  can get back to them and find out, I mean do you

         10  know if they achieve that, and do you know how they

         11  were able to achieve that, given, you know, your

         12  concerns over the need for a critical mass?

         13                 MR. LEVY: We are the largest

         14  suppliers of ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel in

         15  Northeast and maybe the country right now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And does that

         17  mean 15, when we say ultra-low?

         18                 MR. LEVY: Ultra-low sulfur, correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Means 15? I

         20  just wanted to know the term --

         21                 MR. LEVY: No, it doesn't mean 15.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: What does it

         23  mean?

         24                 MR. LEVY: What it means is, is that

         25  our typical is we try to achieve 15. In all
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          2  actuality, our average over the last three years has

          3  been a 15. We've been as low as six, as high as 24.

          4  But the reason why we leave it as a maximum is 30,

          5  because as you start to use more and more product

          6  and more people are using it as different modes of

          7  transportation and other people are using trucks, we

          8  wanted to be conservative that we were always below

          9  the max of the specification.

         10                 The product that we did it at

         11  Silverstein and 7 World Trade Center, as with the

         12  New York City Transit Authority and all customers,

         13  you know, we have never met the 30.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is Silverstein

         15  getting the same product as the MTA, or is he

         16  getting a different problem, do you know?

         17                 MR. LEVY: Same product.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Same product.

         19                 MR. LEVY: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: All right.

         21  Well, I'll look forward to following up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Also, Bill wanted

         23  to speak to this point as well.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, please.

         25                 MR. COUGHLIN: Attempting, I guess, to
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          2  get more clarity here, and I don't know how much you

          3  know of our silly industry, all right? But there is

          4  a product posting that comes out every single day

          5  called the "Plats Oil Gram" (phonetic), and it lists

          6  in New York Harbor the price values for all the

          7  products that come into New York Harbor and are

          8  available for consumption.

          9                 Now, to your point, there is today,

         10  just again, for clarity purposes, there is no such

         11  thing as ultra low sulfur diesel. That phrase ultra

         12  low sulfur diesel, quite frankly, is linked to the

         13  EPA's requirement for 15 parts per million.

         14                 What Steven has done with the other

         15  people interested here in New York City over the

         16  last few years, is tried to differentiate from low

         17  sulfur number two, a phrase you probably are

         18  somewhat familiar with, which is today's regular

         19  diesel, about 300 parts per million sulfur.

         20                 What Steven alluded to earlier in his

         21  testimony was that he was approached and said could

         22  you help us solve a problem by getting us cleaner

         23  fuels, particularly lower sulfur.

         24                 So, informally, in this part of the

         25  country you have what's referred to as ultra low
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          2  sulfur diesel, because it's less than the Platz

          3  product called low sulfur diesel at 350 parts per

          4  million. So, when Steven says and you asked, did the

          5  World Trade Center site have 15? Well, on any given

          6  day, like I said earlier, a refiner produces

          7  product. Some days when the sun, the moon and the

          8  stars line up, they pick up no contamination

          9  anywhere and that stuff is pristine. It could be

         10  eight. The product that leaves our refinery that

         11  Sprague ultimately delivers into the marketplace

         12  could be eight on some days because it picked up

         13  absolutely no contamination along the way.

         14                 So, from a point of clarity, when the

         15  gentlemen sat here and said we at the World Trade

         16  Center have used 15, the other side of his mouth

         17  could have said, but there have been some days when

         18  we had 27 there. You know what I'm trying to say?

         19  It's not always 15.

         20                 When the new regulations come in

         21  place, you will always have 15, because that's what

         22  the marketplace is mandated by the EPA to have, and

         23  the refiners will make it that way.

         24                 I hope I didn't complicate it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, I

                                                            262

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  appreciate it.

          3                 My last point is, Mr. Chair, I guess

          4  we've got to figure out a way to make more of those

          5  some days in advance of 2007.

          6                 MR. COUGHLIN: Yes. And the way to do

          7  that is give us a bigger set of volumes to make.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Fifty million

          9  is what you said, right?

         10                 MR. COUGHLIN: That would be great.

         11  Another 50 million on top of the MTA and we're off

         12  --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Oh, that was

         14  on top of the MTA.

         15                 MR. COUGHLIN: Oh, unless you convert

         16  the MTA -- or convert, right, okay.

         17                 All right, thank you very much.

         18                 MR. COUGHLIN: My pleasure. Thank you

         19  for giving all of us the opportunity.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         21  much. I appreciate all of your testimony. It was

         22  very illuminating, and we appreciate you coming and

         23  sharing your views with us and being so patient

         24  also. Thank you.

         25                 Okay, our final panel, Patricia
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          2  Dillon and Ann Arlen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Oh, Mr.

          4  Chairman, Ms. Arlen had to leave. She did leave a

          5  written testimony, which I will submit to the

          6  Committee on her behalf. So, Ms. Dillon is our

          7  wrap-up.

          8                 MS. DILLON: Yes, I'm it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And knowing

         10  her, we cannot have a better wrap-up.

         11                 MS. DILLON: And I'm going to be very

         12  brief, so you'll all get to go home soon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Hold on a

         14  second.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         16  much for your patience. You get the patience award.

         17                 MS. DILLON: My name is Pat Dillon,

         18  and I am here on behalf of the Independent Plaza

         19  North Tenants Association, that's IPN, for short,

         20  and we're very grateful to have the opportunity to

         21  testify. We're even more grateful to Council Members

         22  who developed this legislation because we think it's

         23  so very important.

         24                 IPN is a mixed income housing complex

         25  located six blocks north of the World Trade Center
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          2  site, between Greenwich and West Streets. In

          3  addition, due north of the World Trade Center site,

          4  in addition to being exposed to the lethal

          5  contaminants released from the collapse of the

          6  towers, our buildings were also subjected, our homes

          7  were subjected for over eight months to the

          8  uncontrolled toxic dust and diesel emissions that

          9  were generated by the haphazard rescue and recovery

         10  operation.

         11                 Governor Pataki's Executive Order

         12  suspending state regulations governing the transport

         13  and disposal of toxic waste enabled the clean-up to

         14  be completed months ahead of schedule but at a very

         15  high price to the health of people who live and work

         16  downtown.

         17                 As a matter of fact, on the very day

         18  that the Governor signed that Executive Order, the

         19  students of Stuyvesant High School were mandated to

         20  go back to class, which was right next to the toxic

         21  waste disposal site, which was then unregulated.

         22  Terrific.

         23                 Many of us, many residents and many

         24  people in the neighborhoods around us, are still

         25  sick with respiratory digestive, skin and other
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          2  disorders relating to 9/11 and its aftermath. We're

          3  tough New Yorkers and we're patriotic Americans, so

          4  while we did try to get the State, City and federal

          5  government agencies to improve the situation during

          6  the clean-up process, we were so traumatized and we

          7  were so heart broken for the families that lost

          8  loved ones, and we understood so well the immense

          9  challenges that the government was facing with its

         10  unprecedented disaster, so we didn't form a human

         11  chain across West Street to stop the trucks or do

         12  anything to delay the recovery process, but now we

         13  are determined not to be subjected during the

         14  reconstruction to the kind of sloppy, uncontrolled,

         15  unregulated processes that were in effect during the

         16  recovery and clean-up.

         17                 We demand that the health of New

         18  Yorkers who are still alive is given maximum

         19  attention and consideration during reconstruction.

         20                 We feel that Intro. 191-A is one

         21  small but very important step toward that end, and

         22  we hope that it will be passed very quickly.

         23                 Finally, we believe there should be a

         24  way that a portion of 9/11 recovery funds is

         25  allocated to provide incentives to contractors, to
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          2  retrofit old equipment or purchase new equipment,

          3  and we urge so that more contractors, companies can

          4  meet the requirements of the legislation, and we

          5  urge the City to work with the State, Governor

          6  Pataki, the LMDC and all those players, to

          7  accomplish that.

          8                 Again, I thank you very much for this

          9  opportunity to speak.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         11  much. It's wonderful when people who want to

         12  participate in a hearing, given of their own time,

         13  not paid to be here, and it's very heartening that

         14  there are people such as yourself who are so intent

         15  on making a positive difference and will formulate

         16  recommendations, particularly one you just made

         17  regarding some of the funds to possibly make them

         18  available to facilitate the retrofitting of the

         19  equipment.

         20                 I mean, something that we will

         21  consider and see if we can do that.

         22                 MS. DILLON: Wonderful. Great. Because

         23  it's being spent on all kinds of things that would

         24  be better spent. Thanks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just want to

          3  say ditto to what my chair said, or what our chair

          4  said. I want to say I hope it's a little bit of a

          5  consolation for your patients that I think your

          6  testimony provided the perfect wrap-up to this very

          7  important hearing.

          8                 So, I thank you for today, but for

          9  everything you've done over the past weeks and

         10  months for our community.

         11                 MS. DILLON: Thank you, Alan. I would

         12  like to add that it's really wonderful to have a

         13  progressive environmental protection Committee in

         14  the Council.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, it is.

         16  It's a perfect seguay into my reiteration of where I

         17  began, and that is my note of appreciation to our

         18  Chair, Chair Gennaro, and, of course, his

         19  magnificent staff. Thank you so very much for this

         20  hearing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Alan.

         22  Thank you for your leadership. Without your

         23  leadership we wouldn't be sitting here today talking

         24  about this very important bill, which I'm very eager

         25  to advance.
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          2                 I just want to also state for the

          3  record, that people did submit written testimony,

          4  the Engine Manufacturers Association, the

          5  Manufacturers of Emission Control Association, the

          6  Sierra Club, NYPIRG and Ann Warner Arlan also

          7  submitted written testimony for the record. That

          8  concludes our hearing. With no one else wishing to

          9  be heard, the hearing is adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 6:43 p.m.)
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